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SOPHARMA GROUP
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

1. BACKGROUND INFORMATION ON THE GROUP

SOPHARMA GROUP (the Group) is comprised of the pa@mpany and its twenty one (2010:
eighteen) subsidiaries. In addition, the Group dasnvestment in one joint venture (2010: one joint
venture and one associate — until 4 September 2010)

Parent company

SOPHARMA AD (the parent company) is a businesstyemégistered in Bulgaria with a seat and
address of management: Sofia, 16, lliensko Shdbsse

The court registration of the Company dates fronNbsember 1991 — Decision No. 1/1991 of Sofia
City Court.

Subsidiaries
The subsidiaries of the Group as at 31 Decembet 2@te as follows:

Sopharma Trading AD — a business entity registeredBulgaria by Decision No.
3594/16.10.1998 of Varna District Court, with atssad address of management: Sofia, 16,
Rozhen Blvd.;

Bulgarian Rose Sevtopolis AD — a business entigistered in Bulgaria by Decision No.
3912/1991 of Stara Zagora District Court, with atssnd address of management: Kazanluk,
110, 23 Pehoten Shipchenski Polk Blvd.;

Pharmalogistica AD — a business entity registenddulgaria by Decision of Sofia City Court
dated 12 August 2002, with a seat and address mdgesment: Sofia, 16, Rozhen Blvd.;

Elektroncommerce EOOD - a business entity regdter®ulgaria by Decision of Sofia City
Court under Company File No. 24456 of 1991, wideat and address of management: Sofia,
1, Samokovsko Shousse Str.;

Biopharm Engineering AD — a business entity registein Bulgaria by Decision No.
524/1997 of Sliven District Court, with a seat auttiress of management: Sliven, 75, Trakiya
Blvd.;

Momina Krepost AD — a business entity registereBufgaria by Decision No. 3426/1991 of
Veliko Tarnovo District Court, with a seat and agkfr of management: Veliko Tarnovo, 23,
Magistralna Str.;

Sopharma Buildings REIT — a business entity regestein Bulgaria by Decision No.
1/14.08.07 of Sofia City Court, with a seat andradd of management:Sofia, 16, Illiensko
Shousse Str.;
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SOPHARMA GROUP
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

Unipharm AD — a business entity registered in Brigghy Decision of Sofia City Court under
Company File No. 3685 of 1994, with a seat and esiklof management: Sofia, 3, Traiko
Stanoev Str.;

Rostbalkanpharm ZAO — a business entity register&iissia by Decision No. 1026101791594
of 9 October 2002, with a seat and address of negmewt: Russia, Azov, 10, Osipenko Str.;

Sopharma Poland OOD, in liquidation — a businedgyeregistered in Poland by Decision
No. KRS 0000178554 of 4 November 2003 of XX Ecormmivision of Warsaw Regional
Court Register, with a seat and address of manage®eland, Warsaw, 58, Shashkova Str.;

Sopharma Warsaw EOOD — a business entity registerdtbland by Decision No. DSR
0000372245 of 17 December 2010 by XlII Economic §lan of the State Court Register of
Warsaw, with a seat and address of managemennd?Méarsaw, 8, Halubinskiego Str.;

Sopharma USA — a business entity registered in UgM®ecision No. 97227599 of 25 April
1997 in California State Secretary Office, with eatsand address of management: USA,
California, Los Angelis, 4622, Hollywood Blvd.;

Extab Corporation USA — a business entity registémeJSA by Decision No. 090292393 of
6 November 2008 in the Delaware State Secretaryc&ffwith a seat and address of
management: USA, Delaware, Wilmington, New CastgiBn, 1209 Orange Street;

Extab Pharma Limited, United Kingdom — a businag#t\eregistered in England by Decision
No. 06751116 of 17 November 2008, with a seat aftesss of management: Oxfordshire,
RG9 1AY, Henlay on Thames, 10 Station Road;

PAQ Vitamini — a business entity registered in lkeaby Decision No. 133 dated 15 April
1994 of Uman City Court, with a seat and addressmahagement: Ukraine, Cherkasy
Province, Uman, 31, Leninski Iskri Str.;

Ivanchich and Sons OOD - a business entity regidtém Serbia by Fi-11350/91 on 14
October 1991 by the Commercial Court of Belgradthai seat and address of management:
Republic of Serbia, Belgrade, 13, Palmoticheva Str.

Briz OOD, Latvia — a business entity registered -atvia by Decision No. 000302737 dated
18 September 1991 of the Commercial Registry ofReeublic of Latvia, with a seat and
address of management: Latvia, Riga, Rasas Nd/ 5, 1057;

Brititrade SOOOQO, Belarus — a business entity regest in Belarus by Decision No. 1983 dated
24 September 2004 of Minsk City Executive Committegth a seat and address of
management: Belarus, Minsk, 118, M. Bogdanomiciha &fice 303 — B;

Tabina OOOQO, Belarus — a business entity registier&sklarus by Decision No. 1432 dated 29
December 1999 of Minsk City Executive Committeethvd seat and address of management:
Belarus, Minsk, 57, Kuybisheva Str., ap.1;

ZAO Interpharm, Belarus - a business entity regest in Belarus in the Unified State
Register of Legal Entities arddividual Entrepreneurs under N800000556, with a seat and
address of management: Belarus, Vitebsk, Stroifgjeare, bl. 3 ap. 2;
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SOPHARMA GROUP
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

Superlats OOD, Latvia — a business entity regidterd_atvia by Decision No. 40003960404
dated 5 October 2007 of the Commercial RegistrthefRepublic of Latvia, with a seat and
address of management: Latvia, Riga, 117 Dzelz&trasLV — 1021.

Joint venture

The joint venture is Sopharma Zdrovit AD, in ligatthn — a business entity registered in Poland by
Decision KRS 0000298139 dated 27 September 200Wavsaw Republican Court Registry, with a
seat and address of management: Poland, WarsaiNp8hnitskego Str.

Associate

The company ZAO Interpharm, Belarus, acquired ley@noup in 2011 had initially the status of an
‘associate' (from 8 April 2011 to 17 December 20dit)subsequently the control over it was obtained
and its status was changed to 'subsidiary' (Nofe 41

The associate company within the Group until 4 &aper 2010 was Sopharma Logistica AD -
business entity registered in Bulgaria by Decidian 1/1999 dated 30 December 1999 of Sofia City
Court, with a seat and address of management:,9&fj&ozitano Str.

On 13 January 2010, by virtue of a merger cont(acd Annex thereto dated 3 March 2010)
concluded between Sopharma Logistica AD and Sophdmmading AD, the latter was transformed
through a merge-in of Sopharma Logistica AD (AG28 of the Commercial Act). As a result of the
transformation, the total assets of Sopharma Liogi#tD were transferred to Sopharma Trading AD
and Sopharma Logistica AD was wound-up without iigtion. As from 4 September 2010,
Sopharma Logistica AD was deleted from the ComraéRegistry.

As a result of the above circumstances, the pa@mpany acquired through an exchange additional
849,144 shares from the capital of Sopharma Traéid@Note 42).

1.1. Ownership and management of the parent company

SOPHARMA AD is a public company under the BulgarRumblic Offering of Securities Act. As of
November 2011, its shares started to be tradedralke Warsaw Stock Exchange.
The joint-stock capital structure of the parent pany as at 31 December 2011 was as follows:

%

Donev Investment Holding AD 24.56
Telecomplect AQXformal holder of the shares as per the Registrthat 20.42
Central Depository (CD) until the entry of Telecdegp Invest AD

in the CD Registry — Note 44)

Financial Consulting Company EOOD 16.24
Gramercy Select Master Fund 6.34
Gramercy Emerging Markets Fund 5.89
Other legal persons 23.23
Physical persons 3.32

7
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SOPHARMA GROUP
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

SOPHARMA AD has a one-tier management system witiveemember Board of Directors as

follows:

Ognian Donev, PhD Chairman
Vessela Stoeva Member
Unipharm AD represented by Ognian Palaveev Member
Alexander Todorov —till 29.06.2011 Member
Alexander Chaushev — from 29.06.2011 Member
Andrey Breshkov Member

The parent company is represented and managed Byetutive Director Ognian Donev, PhD.

1.2. Structure of the Group and principal activise

Thestructureof the Group as at 31 December includes SOPHARNDAaA a parent company and the
companies stated below:

Subsidiaries 31.12.2011 31.12.2010

Acquisition
Interest Interest of control
% % date
Companies in Bulgaria
Sopharma Trading AD 81.33 82.5 08.06.2006
Bulgarian Rose Sevtopolis AD * 52.77 51.81 22.04.2004
Pharmalogistica AD 76.54 76.54 15.08.2002
Electroncommerce EOOD 100.00 100.00 09.08.2005
Biopharm Engineering AD 69.43 69.43 10.03.2006
Sopharma Buildings REIT 42.64 40.87 04.08.2008
Momina Krepost AD * 51.10 50.10 01.01.2008
Unipharm AD * 52.05 49.99 27.10.2010
Companies abroad
Rostbalkanpharm ZAO 51.00 51.00 27.07.2001
Sopharma Poland OOD - in liquidation 60.00 60.00 16.10.2003
Sopharma USA 100.00 100.00 25.04.1997
Extab Corporation 80.00 80.00 05.08.2009
Extab Pharma Limited ** 80.00 80.00 05.08.2009
Briz OOD 51.00 51.00 10.11.2009
Brititrade SOOO ** 49.73 49.73 10.11.2009
PAO Vitamini 99.56 99.56 18.01.2008
Ivanchich and Sons OOD 51.00 51.00 10.04.2008
Sopharma Warsaw EOOD 100.00 100.00 23.11.2010
Tabina OO0 ** 50.49 - 08.04.2011
ZAO Interpharm ** 49.27 B 17.12.2011
Superlats OO0 ** 31.24 - 20.05.2011
* efficient percentage of participation
** indirect participation
8
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SOPHARMA GROUP
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

Bulgarian Rose Sevtopolis AD is a subsidiary to BBRMA AD, the control thereon being
acquired and exercised through the direct particpaf the parent company in the ownership
of Bulgarian Rose Sevtopolis AD with 49.99% and théirect participation of the parent
company with 2.77% through the subsidiary Sophaifrading AD holding 3.41% of the
capital of Bulgarian Rose Sevtopolis AD;

Momina Krepost AD is a subsidiary to SOPHARMA ADetcontrol thereon being acquired
and exercised through the direct participation hid parent company in the ownership of
Momina Krepost AD with 49.85 % and the indirecttfdpation of the parent company with
1.25% through the subsidiary Sopharma Trading Aldihg 1.54 % of the capital of Momina
Krepost AD,;

Unipharm AD is a subsidiary to SOPHARMA AD, the trah thereon being acquired and
exercised through the direct participation of thegmt company in the ownership of Unipharm
AD with 49.99 % and the indirect participation bétparent company with 2.06% through the
subsidiary Sopharma Trading AD holding 2.53 % ef¢hpital of Unipharm AD;

Sopharma Buildings REIT is a subsidiary by virtdeavritten control agreement concluded
between SOPHARMA AD and other shareholders;

Extab Pharma Limited, United Kingdom, is a subsidthrough Extab Corporation, USA, the
latter company being 100% capital holder of Extahrfha Limited, United Kingdom;

Brititrade SOO, Belarus, is a subsidiary of BrizDQatvia — Briz OOD holds 97.50% of the
capital of Brititrade SOO;

Tabina OOO, Belarus, is a subsidiary through Br@20D Latvia — Briz OOD holds 99% of
the capital of Tabina OOO;

ZAO Interpharm, Belarus, is a subsidiary throughz BDOD, Latvia — Briz OOD holds
96.61% of the capital of ZAO Interpharm; and

Superlats OOO, Latvia, is a subsidiary through B¥@D, Latvia — Briz OOD holds 61.25%
of the capital of Superlats OOO at the amount ofNB&thousand for the purpose of a future
sale within 12 months. The Group sold its investnerSuperlats OOO in February 2012 for
BGN 4 thousand.

The principal activities of the Group companies fa®ised on the pharmaceutical sector except for
separate companies having principal activities afsghe field of investment in real estate and
securities.
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SOPHARMA GROUP
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

The principal activities of the companies withie tGroup are as follows:

SOPHARMA AD - production and trade in medicinal staimces and finished drug forms;
research and development activities in the fielthetlicinal products;

Sopharma Trading AD — trade in pharmaceutical prtsju

Bulgarian Rose Sevtopolis AD — production of fimddirdrug forms;

Biopharm Engineering AD — production and tradenifiugion solutions;

Pharmalogistica AD — secondary packaging of phaeuézal products and real estate leases;

Electroncommerce EOOD - trade, transportation aukaging of radioactive materials and
nuclear equipment for medicinal use, householdmeics and electrical equipment;

Sopharma Buildings REIT — investment of funds, amglated by issuance of securities, in
real estate (securitisation of real estate) thrqugichase of title and other real rights over real
estate, rent-out, lease, and/or sale;

Momina Krepost AD — development, implementation gmdduction of medical goods for
human and veterinary medicine;

Unipharm AD — production and trade in pharmacelgi¢a subsidiary as from 27 October
2010);

PAO Vitamini — production and trade in pharmacelsc
Rostbalkanpharm ZAO — production and trade in phaeuticals;
Ivanchich and Sons OOD - production and trade arphceuticals;
Sopharma Poland OOD, in liquidation — market angipwpinion research;

Sopharma Warsaw EOOD — market and public opiniaeaech (a subsidiary as from 23
November 2010);

Sopharma USA — trade in pharmaceuticals and fopdlsments;

Extab Corporation, USA — market and public opinmiesearch;

Extab Pharma Limited, United Kingdom — market antlig opinion research;
Briz OOD, Latvia — trade in pharmaceuticals;

Brititrade SOOO, Belarus — trade in pharmaceutjcals

Tabina OOO, Belarus — trade in pharmaceuticals;

ZAO Interpharm, Belarus — trade in pharmaceuticals;

Superlats OOO, Latvia — trade in furniture, ligltifixtures and other articles for domestic
use.

10
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SOPHARMA GROUP
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

The parent company and the subsidiaries Sopharradiny AD, Bulgarian Rose Sevtopolis AD,

Pharmalogistica AD, Electroncommerce EOOD, Biophd&ngineering AD, Sopharma Buildings

REIT, Momina Krepost AD and Unipharm AD (a subsigias from 27 October 2010) perform their
activities in Bulgaria; Sopharma Poland OOD - iguidation and Sopharma Warsaw EOOD (a
subsidiary as from 23 November 2010) operate immbl Rostbalkanpharm ZAO — in Russia, PAO
Vitamini — in Ukraine, Ivanchich and Sons OOD -Serbia, Briz OOD - in Latvia, Brititrade SOOO ,

Tabina OOO and ZAO Interpharm — in Belarus, Extabaria Limited — in the United Kingdom, and

Sopharma USA and Extab Corporation, USA —in USA.

As at 31 December 2011, the interest of the Grouthéjoint venture Sopharma Zdrovit AD — in
liquidation, was 50.01% together with Natur Prodfdtovit OOD, Poland.

The principal activities of the joint venture indkiresearch and development activities in the fiéld
medical science and pharmacy, wholesale in phanttiaeés. Sopharma Zdrovit AD — in liquidation
has been a joint venture since 27 September 2007.

The Group had no interestassociatess at 31 December 2011.

From 1 February 2011 to 17 December 2011 the Ghelgb indirectly 22.48% of the associate ZAO
Interpharm and after that period it acquired thetrcd thereon.

Until 4 September 2010, the group held 28.44% ef ¢hpital of Sopharma Logistica AD — an
associatecompany and after that date the company was defetm the Commercial registry due to a
transformation — merger into the subsidiary Soplaafimading AD.

The average number of Group’s personnel in 20113889 workers and employees (2010: 3,654).

11
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SOPHARMA GROUP
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

1.3. Main indicators of the economic environment

The main economic indicators of the business enwient that have affected the activities of the
Group companies throughout the period 2009 — 2&Elpresented in the table below:

Indicator 2009 2010 2011

GDP in million levs (Bulgaria) 66.256 70.474 75.265
Actual growth of GDP (Bulgaria) 5% 0.20% 1.70%

Year-end inflation (Bulgaria) 0.60% 4.50% 2. 750
Year-end inflation (Belarus) 9.80% 10.10% 108.70%
USD/BGN average for the year 1.40553 1.4779 1.4065
USD/BGN at year-end 1.36409 1.4729 1.511p
PLN/BGN average for the year 0.45284 0.4892 0.47590
PLN/BGN at year-end 0.47415 0.49327 0.4387_2
RUB/BGN average for the year 0.04434 0.04864 0.04787
RUB/BGN at year-end 0.04496 0.04824 0.04683
RSD/BGN average for the year 0.02082 0.01894 0.0191/8
RSD/BGN at year-end 0.0204 0.01854 0.01869
UAH/BGN average for the year 0.18046 0.186313 0.17660
UAH/BGN at year-end 0.17083 0.18494 0.18992
GBP/BGN average for the year 219719 2 274313 2 25443
GBP/BGN at year-end 2.16353 2.27369 2.34147
LVL/BGN average for the year 277162 2 75964 2.76943
LVL/BGN at year-end 2.75741 2.75554 2.79604
1000 BYR/BGN average for the year 0.5038 0.4948 0.181B
1000 BYR/BGN at year-end 0.4763 0.4923 0.1818
Basic interest rate at the year-end (Bulgaria) 0.55% 0.18% 0.2204
Unemployment rate at the year-end (Bulgaria) 9.13% 9.24% 10.40%

Source: BNB, National Banks of Ukraine, RussiaaRd) Serbia and Belarus.

2. SUMMARY OF THE SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES O F THE GROUP

2.1. Basis for the preparation of the consolidatiaancial statements

The consolidated financial statements of SOPHARMAUp have been prepared in accordance with
all International Financial Reporting StandardR#}, which comprise Financial Reporting Standards
and the International Financial Reporting Intergtiens Committee (IFRIC) interpretations, approved
by the International Accounting Standards BoardS@), as well as the International Accounting

Standards (IAS) and the Standing Interpretations@ittee (SIC) interpretations, approved by the
International Accounting Standards Committee (IAS@hich are effectively in force on 1 January

2011 and have been accepted by the Commissior @&ulopean Union.

For the current financial year the Group has adbpaé new and/or revised standards and
interpretations, issued by the International AcemgnStandards Board (IASB) and respectively, by

12
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SOPHARMA GROUP
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

the International Financial Reporting InterpreaiocCommittee (IFRIC), which are relevant to its

activities.

The adoption of these standards and/or interposisitieffective for annual periods beginning on 1
January 2011, has not resulted in changes in Gsoaptounting policies, except for some new
disclosures and expanding of those already edbtaloljshowever, not resulting in other changes in the
classification or valuation of individual reportiitgms and transactions.

These standards and interpretations include:

e IFRS Improvements (May 2010) - improvements in1A37, 28, 34, IFRS 1, 3 and 7 and
IFRIC 13 (in force for annual period beginning onadter 1 January 2011 (or 1 July 2010) —
endorsed by EC)These improvements introduce partial amendmentshén respective
standards primarily with a view to remove existingonsistency in the application rules and
requirements of individual standards as well asetoup more precise terminology with regard
to: (a) presentation of the analysis of other cahpnsive income (by item — in a separate
note or in the statement of changes in equity)itiie)approach for a measurement choice of
the non-controlling interest, the presentation li# tontingent consideration and all share-
based payment transactions, which are part of basicombinations — from the amendment of
IFRS 3 (2008); (c) improvement of the qualitativisctbsures on the risks associated with
financial instruments together with the quantitatones and the disclosures on the collateral
held; (d) enhanced disclosure requirements forrimtefinancial reporting regarding all
significant events and transactions, including desn in fair values, transfers and
classification of financial instruments, and finethénformation update compared to the most
recent annual financial statements; (e) correspondhanges for prospective application in
associates and joint ventures according to the dments to IAS 27 (2008); (f) clarification
of the term 'fair value' for the purpose of measgrine award credits in customer loyalty
programmes.

The management of the parent company has donerchsaad has concluded that the stated below
amendments to standards and interpretations, andgtestandards and interpretations for 2011, have
not affected the accounting policies and the aciognfor of Group’s assets, liabilities and
performance results as far as it has no practickoarstatus for similar type of items, deals and
transactions, and respectively, no reporting okibiga:

« IAS 24 (amended) “Related Party Disclosures” (imct for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2011 — endorsed by ETe amendments are focused on improvement of the
definition for the scope and types of related parand introduce a specific rule for a partial
exemption from full disclosure regarding relatedtiea, controlled by or under significant
influence by government bodies at internationatjonal and local level and other entities
owned thereby — with regard to the types of refetjaccounts and balances and transactions
with them.

13
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SOPHARMA GROUP
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

IAS 32 (amended) “Financial Instruments: Presemati (in force for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 February 2010 — endorsedBfy as from 1 February 20106}
regarding the classification of issued rights. Bngeendment is aimed as a clarification of the
treatment of rights, options and warrants for agitjoh of a fixed number of entity’s equity
instruments for a fixed amount of any currency @ity instruments if they are offered on pro
rata basis to all existing owners of the same alassderivative equity instruments.

IFRIC 14 “Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requieat under 1AS 19 (in force for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2641&ndorsed by EC as from 1 January
2011). The amendment provides clarifications on definihg existing economic benefit of
prepayments of minimum funding requirements, abéelaas a reduction in future
contributions in the two cases of existence or existence of a minimum funding
requirement for contributions relating to futurevéee and the possibility such prepayments to
be recognised as an asset.

IFRIC 19 “Extinguishing Financial Liabilities witlequity Instruments” (in force for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010 — enddrgy EC as from 1 July 2010This
interpretation sets out clarifications on the actdimg treatment of transactions related to
settlement, in full or in part, of financial liallies to creditors through the issue of equity
instruments by debtor — measurement of the eqogfruments as a consideration paid and
treatment of the resulting differences betweenntieasurement of the equity instruments and
that of the financial liability, as well as certdimitations of application.

At the date when these consolidated financial stat#s have been approved for issue, there are

several new standards, amended/revised standaddsitenpretations issued but not yet in force for

annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 20hich have not been adopted by the Group for

early application. The management of the parentpamy has judged that out of them the following

are likely to have a potential impact in the futuesulting in changes in the accounting policied an

the financial statements of the Group for subseperods.

IAS 1 (amended) “Presentation of Financial Statetsier(in force for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2012 — not endorsedB§y). The amendment introduces a
requirement for entities to present the componenftsther comprehensive income in the
statement of comprehensive income in two separaiegories depending on whether they
could be subsequently reclassified or not to carpzofit or loss in the income statement,
including their tax effect.

IAS 12 (amended) “Income Taxes” (in force for annpariods beginning on or after 1
January 2012 — not endorsed by EThe amendment clarifies explicitly that the assesdm

of deferred tax (asset or liability) on the undenyasset should be based on the manner in
which the respective entity intends to recover itheestment in the carrying amount of the
asset — though sale or through continuing usetst ut specific rules for cases of non-current
assets measured by applying the revaluation modéA$ 16 but mostly for investment

14
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SOPHARMA GROUP
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

properties measured by applying the fair value rhivdkAS 40, including those acquired in a
business combination, i.e. a rebuttable presumpsiontroduced that deferred tax should be
determined on the basis that the carrying amoutitnermally be recovered through sale.
SIC-21 is incorporated in IAS 12 and thereforés ito be withdrawn as of the date on which
the amendment in IAS 12 becomes effective.

« IAS 19 (amended) “Employee Benefits” (in force donual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013 — not endorsed by EChe amendment changes the accounting for defined
benefit plans and termination benefits. The fundatalechange is the elimination of the
‘corridor' approach and the introduction of theerghat all subsequent remeasurements
(referred to so far as actuarial gains or losséshefined benefit obligations and plan assets
shall be recognised when occurred in a compon€ntlugr comprehensive income’, as well as
the accelerated recognition of past service costs.

« IAS 27 (as revised in 2011) “Separate Financialt&taents” (in force for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013 — not endorisgdEC).The standard was reissued with
a changed title as the part of it referring to obidated financial statement was entirely
separated in a new standard — IFRS 10 "Consolidktedncial Statements". Thus the
standard now includes only the rules on accourfingnvestments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures at the level of separate fir@rstatements.

« |IAS 28 (as revised in 2011) “Investments in Asdesiaand Joint Ventures” (in force for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 264180t endorsed by ECJhe title of the
standard has been changed and the standard setdesutor application of the equity method
when accounting for investments in associates db agein joint ventures, which were
previously included in the scope of IAS 31 "Inteéseism Joint Ventures” in line with the new
IFRS 11 and IFRS 12. IAS 31 becomes inapplicalaldisg from 1 January 2013.

« IFRS 7 (amended) “Financial Instruments: Disclosire- regarding transfer of financial
assets (in force for annual periods beginning orafter 1 July 2011 — endorsed by EC as
from 1 July 2011)These amendments are related to expanding theeetpiits for disclosure
of data regarding transfer transactions of findneissets, including depending on the
circumstances whether the reporting entity consnhuat the reporting date, to have
involvement in and responsibility to the respectivencial asset by assuming certain risks,
rights and benefits and regardless of whetherrtiresterred assets are derecognised from the
statement of financial position or not.

+ IFRS 9 (issued in November 2009 and October 20EB)ahcial Instruments: Classification
and Measurement" (in force for annual periods bagig on or after 1 January 2013 and
revised effective date — for annual periods begignon or after 1 January 2015 — not
endorsed by EC)This standard replaces parts of IAS 39 by estahljsprinciples, rules and
criteria for the classification, measurement anedeggnition of financial assets and liabilities,
including hybrid contracts. It introduces a reqoisat that financial assets are to be classified
based on entity’'s business model for their managenamd the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the respective assets. It astad two primary measurement categories for
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financial assets: amortised cost and fair valuee w rules will lead to possible changes
mainly in the accounting for financial assets abtdestruments and financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through current poofibss (for credit risk).

« IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements” (inderfor annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013 — not endorsed by Elis standard replaces a significant part of IAS
27 ("Consolidated and Separate Financial Statefesmisl SIC-12 ("Consolidation - Special
Purpose Entities")Its main objective is to establish the principlesd anethods for the
preparation and presentation of financial statemetien an entity controls one or more other
entities. It gives a new definition of control thedntains three elements and establishes
control as the sole basis for consolidation. Thadd#rd also sets out the main mandatory rules
for the preparation of consolidated financial stats.

- IFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements” (in force for annuaénods beginning on or after 1 January
2013 — not endorsed by EChhis standard replaces IAS 31 "Interests in Joiahtdres",
including SIC-13 "Jointly Controlled Entities — N@monetary Contributions by Venturers". It
introduces only two types of joint arrangementsointj operations and joint ventures —
whereas the classification criterion used is na kbgal form but rather the rights and
obligations of each party to an arrangement, ilether they represent rights to the assets and
liabilities and respectively, to the expenses aeswekbmue from the joint arrangement (joint
operation) or rights to the net assets of the jamangement (joint venture). The standard
removes the option for proportionate consolidataord requires application of the equity
method for consolidation of jointly controlled digs.

- IFRS 12 “Disclosing of Interest in Other Entitiegih force for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2013 — not endorsed by ETQ)is standard introduces obligations for
disclosure in the financial statements and requér@mto the information included therein
with regard to all forms of interests of the repagtentity in other companies and entities,
including both the effects and the risks of thageriests.

« IFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement” (in force for araluperiods beginning on or after 1
January 2013 — not endorsed by EQ)his standard establishes a single source of
methodological guidance by providing a preciserdigdin of 'fair value', rules and methods
for its measurement as well as more extensive alisot requirements for fair value and its
measurement for the purposes of all IFRSs. Itiappb both financial instruments and non-
financial assets and liabilities when fair valuegquired or permitted by IFRS.

Additionally, in regard of the stated below newnstards, amended/revised standards and new
interpretations that have been issued but notryébrice for annual periods beginning on 1 January
2011, the management of the parent company haegutigt the following are rather unlikely to have
potential impact resulting in changes in the actiognpolicies and the financial statements of the
Group as far as its operations are not in the atdit business segments and the Group neither has
such practice nor performs similar deals and tretitszs.
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« IAS 32 (amended) “Financial Instruments: Presemati (in force for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2014 — not endorbgdeC)— regarding the offsetting of
financial assets and financial liabilities. Theseeadments relate to a clarification as to the
application of the rules on offsetting financiadtruments.

« IFRS 1 (amended) “First-time Adoption of Internai@ Financial Reporting Standards” (in
force for annual periods beginning on or after 1lyJ2011 — not endorsed by EClhe
amendment provides relief for first-time adoptezgarding transactions occurred before the
date of transition to IFRS as well as guidancerttities after a period of hyperinflation —
whether to resume their presentation of finandatlesnents under IFRS or to present financial
statements as first-time adopters of IFRS. The gmant of the Group performed research
and concluded that these amendments may affecahdbeunting policy and the values of
assets, liabilities, transactions and performarfcth@ companies operating currently in the
conditions of hyperinflation after the period ofguired presentation of restated financial
statements for the effect of hyperinflation.

« IFRS 1 (amended) “First-time Adoption of Internaiid Financial Reporting Standards” (in
force for annual periods beginning on or after Indary 2013 — not endorsed by ECQhe
amendment relates to unification of the approachpfospective application of I1AS 20 for
government loans received on or after the dateaokttion to IFRS.

- IFRS 7 (amended) “Financial Instruments: Disclosire- regarding the offsetting of
financial assets and financial liabilities (in fa&dor annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013 — not endorsed by ECJhese amendments are related to the enhanced
disclosures for all financial instruments, whicHlie netted (offset) in accordance with 1AS
32 (par. 42) as well as additional arrangementsfisetting outside the scope of IAS 32.

« IFRS 7 (amended) “Financial Instruments: Disclossire- regarding the relief from the
requirement to restate comparatives and the rel#tedeto disclosures when applying IFRS 9
(in force for annual periods beginning on or affedanuary 2015 — not endorsed by EC);

« IFRIC 20 "Stripping Costs in the Production PhageadSurface Mine" (in force for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 — antorsed by EC)This interpretation
provides clarifications regarding the differentiatiof the accounting treatment of the costs of
mine waste materials removal (stripping) for thepases of production and the costs of
improved access to further quantities of matehat will be mined in future periods.

The consolidated financial statements have beepaped on a historical cost basis except for: a/
property, plant and equipment, which are measuteéwalued amount; and b/ investment property
and available-for-sale financial instruments, whéck measured at their fair value at the date @f th
consolidated statement of financial position. Thgures of the companies, consolidated in these
financial statements, which operate in the enviremimof hyperinflationary economy, have been
restated for the effects of hyperinflation with tiespective inflation index (Notes 2.9, 2.12, 2.14)
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The Bulgarian companies of the Group maintain tlaeicounting books in Bulgarian lev (BGN),
which is accepted as being their functional andsgmtation currency. The subsidiaries and the joint
ventures abroad organise their accounting and tiegain accordance with the requirements of the
local legislation (Rostbalkanpharm ZAO — Russia,CPXitamini — Ukraine, lvanchich and Sons
OOD - Serbia, Extab Pharma Limited — United Kingddniz OOD — Latvia, Brititrade SOOO,
Tabina OOO, ZAO Interpharm — Belarus, Sopharma W84 Extab Corporation — USA legislation
and Sopharma Poland OOD - in liquidation, Sophak@saw EOOD and the joint venture
Sopharma Zdrovit AD — in liquidation — the Poligygislation) and keep their accounting ledgers in
the respective local currency — Rouble (RUB), GrifidAH), Serbian Dinar (RSD), Euro (EUR),
British Pound (GBP), Latvian Lat (LVL), Belarus Ral{BRUB), US Dollars (USD) and Polish Zloty
(PLN).

The data in the consolidated financial statements the notes thereto are presented in thousand
Bulgarian Levs (BGN'000), unless explicitly statetherwise, and the Bulgarian Lev is accepted as
reporting and presentation currency of the Grougtofding to the policies of the Group, the finahcia
statements of the Group companies abroad areggdtatn the local currency to Bulgarian Levs fag th
purposes of the consolidated financial statemedtde( 2.5). The financial statements of the Group
companies whose functional currency is a currendyyperinflationary economy are restated with an
inflationary index so that they are expressed imsneement units valid at the end of the reporting
period and after that they are restated from thallourrency to Bulgarian lev for the purposeshaf t
Group consolidation.

The presentation of the consolidated financialest@ints in accordance with IFRS requires the
management to make best estimates, accruals asdnedde assumptions that affect the reported
values of assets and liabilities and the disclosfientingent receivables and payables as atdtes d

of the financial statements, and respectively,lanreported amounts of income and expenses for the
reporting year. These estimates, accruals and g@suns are based on the information, which is
available at the date of the consolidated finansiatements, and therefore, the future actual teesul
might be different from them (whereas in the cdndg of financial crisis the uncertainties are more
significant). The items presuming a higher levekobjective assessment or complexity or where the
assumptions and accounting estimates are mateniathe consolidated financial statements, are
disclosed in Note 2.31.
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2.2. Definitions

Parent company- this is the company that has control over th@nemic and financial policies and
the operation of the subsidiaries by holding mbent50% of their capital shares and/or voting sght
or by virtue of a written control agreement conelddbetween the shareholders.

The parent company is SOPHARMA AD, Bulgaria (Not&)1

Subsidiary companies companies, including non-legal entities, in viahihe parent holds directly or
indirectly more than 50% of the voting rights iretGeneral Meeting (in the joint-stock capital) @md/
has the right to appoint more than 50% of the Badr®irectors of the respective company or by
virtue of a written control agreement concludedweein the shareholders and can exercise control
over their financial and operating policy (includifby virtue of a concluded control agreement
between shareholders). The subsidiary companiesa@rsolidated as from the date on which the
effective control over them has been acquired leyGhoup and are de-consolidated as from the date
when the control over them ceases and is trangfeutside the Group. The full consolidation method
is used for their consolidation.

The subsidiary companies are presented in Note 1.2.

Joint venture— a joint venture is established by virtue of atcactual agreement based on which two
or more parties (companies) start a common businmedsrtaking, which is subject to joint control.

The joint control represents a contractual shaohgontrol (50:50) on a particular business. It is
determined by the requirement that strategic firdrand operating decisions relating to the busines
activities and the development of the joint ventsinall be taken with mandatory unanimous consent
of the controlling shareholders.

A controlling shareholder in a joint venture is tbarty (company), which participates in the joint
venture and shares the joint control on the latter.

The proportionate consolidation method is applimttiie consolidation of the joint venture. The foin
venture is being consolidated as from the date bictwthe joint control has been acquired by the
controlling shareholder (the parent company) asadnsolidation under this method is ceased when
the joint venture is transformed into a subsidiarywhen joint control is transferred from the
controlling shareholder to third parties.

The joint venture is Sopharma Zdrovit AD, Polarid lquidation (Note 1.2).
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Associate

An associate is a company in which the investa fthrent company) exercises significant influence
but is neither a subsidiary nor a joint venturehfte investor.

Significant influence is the right of participatidn decision-taking with regard to financial and
operation policies of the entity, subject to inwesnt, but not control or joint control over these
policies. Usually it exists in case of: (a) posamsdy the investor, directly or indirectly, of 2084
50% of the shares in the capital of the investespamy (including by virtue of an agreement between
shareholders), and (b) in addition, the investarefgesented in the managing body of the investee
and/or participates in the decision-taking proceisis regard to the policy and strategy of the inges
and/or significant transactions exist between tivestor and the investee.

The associate is included in the consolidated firrstatements of the Group by applying the equity
method — from the date on which the investor (theept company) acquires significant influence and
its consolidation under this method is ceased vdssociate is transformed into a subsidiary or when
it is accepted that the significant influence @nsferred from the investor to third parties.

2.3. Consolidation principles

The consolidated financial statements include thantial statements of the parent company and the
subsidiaries, the joint venture and the associgtepared as at 31 December, which is the dateeof t
Group'’s financial year. The ‘economic entity’ asgfion has been applied in the consolidation except
for the measurement of non-controlling interest bnsiness combinations and other forms of
acquisition of subsidiaries for which the ‘proportate share of net assets’ method has been chosen.

For the purposes of consolidation, the financialeshents of the subsidiaries, the joint venturethad
associates have been prepared for the same reppenind as the parent company using uniform
accounting policies.

2.3.1. Consolidation of subsidiaries

In the consolidated financial statements, the firgEnstatements of the included subsidiaries are
consolidated under the ‘full consolidation’ methdide-by-line, by applying accounting policies that
are uniform with regard to the significant repagtitems. The investments of the parent company are
eliminated against its share in the equity of tbhbs&liaries at the date of acquisition. Intra-group
transactions and balances, including unrealised-gmoup gains and losses, are eliminated in Tl
effect of deferred taxes has been taken into adéouhese eliminating consolidation entries.

The shares of shareholders — third parties inubsidiaries other than these of the shareholdettseof
parent company are presented separately in theoldeted statement of financial position, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive incomethadstatement of changes in equity as 'non-
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controlling interest'. Non-controlling interest Indes: (a) the combined share of the shareholders —
third parties at the date of initial consolidatiorthe fair value (deemed cost) of all identifiablesets
acquired, liabilities and contingent (crystallisd@bilities of the respective subsidiaries assumed
determined through the proportionate method, ahdhi@ change in the share of these third parties in
the equity of each respective subsidiary from tliial consolidation to the end of the reporting
period.

2.3.2. Acquisition of subsidiaries

The acquisition (purchase) method of accountingsed on the acquisition of a subsidiary (entity) by
the Group in business combinations. The consideratansferred includes the fair value at the déte
exchange of the assets transferred, the incurradsumed liabilities and the equity instrumentsdds
by the acquirer in exchange of the control overabguiree. It also includes the fair value of agyed

or liability resulting from a contingent consideaat arrangement. Acquisition-related direct coses a
recognised as current expenses when incurred efaefbte issue costs of debt or equity instruments,
which are recognised as equity components.

All identifiable assets acquired and liabilitiesdanontingent liabilities assumed in the business
combination are measured initially at their faitues at the date of exchange. Any excess over the
sum of the consideration transferred (measurediavdlue), the amount of non-controlling interigst
the acquiree and the fair value at the acquisitiate of any previous interest in the acquiree éisec

of stepwise acquisition) over the acquired ideallie assets and assumed liabilities of the acqusrer
treated and recognised as goodwill. If acquirehars in the fair value of acquired net identifiable
assets exceeds the cost of acquisition of the éssircombination, this excess is recognised
immediately in the consolidated statement of coimgneive income of the Group in the item
‘Gains/(losses) on acquisition and disposal of wlidises, net’. Any non-controlling interest in a
business combination is measured based on the dhetltbe ‘proportionate share of the net assets’ of
the acquiree.

When a business combination for the acquisitiom @ubsidiary is achieved in stages, all previous
investments held by the acquirer at the acquisilieie are revalued to fair value and the effecthisf
revaluation are recognised in the current profitogs of the Group, respectively in ‘finance income
and ‘finance costs’ or ‘gains/(losses) from an aige’, including all previously recorded effects i
other comprehensive income are recycled.
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2.3.3. Disposal of subsidiaries
On sale or other form of loss (transfer) of conteér a subsidiary:

Assets and liabilities (including any goodwill) @ie subsidiary are derecognised at their
carrying amounts at the date when control is lost;

The non-controlling interest in the subsidiary isretognised at carrying amount in the
consolidated statement of financial position at tbes of control date, including all
components of other comprehensive income relatetiy;

The fair value of the consideration received frdme transaction, event or operation that
resulted in the lost of control is recognised;

All components of equity, representing unrealiseihg or losses in accordance with the
respective IFRS under the provisions of which tramaponents fall, are reclassified to profit
or loss for the year or are transferred directlyetained earnings;

Any resulting difference as a ‘gain or loss fromlisposal (sale) of a subsidiary’ attributable to
the parent is recognised in the consolidated s&tenf comprehensive income.

The remaining shares held that form investmentsagsociates or available-for-sale
investments are initially measured at fair valuettsd date of sale and subsequently —
following the accounting policy adopted by the Grddlotes 2.13 and 2.14).

The acquisition (purchase) method is applied aidpansactions for mergers and/or transformation of
companies under common control if they represeqtiations from the perspective of the parent
company.

2.3.4. Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controliimgrests as transactions with equity owners of the
Group. The effects from sales of parent company&ses, without loss of control, to holders of non-
controlling interests are not treated as componehtke current profit or loss of the Group but as
movements directly in its equity components, usutdl the ‘accumulated profit' reserve. And vice
versa, when the parent company purchases additstiaaés from holders of non-controlling interest,
without acquisition of control, the difference beem the consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying amount of net assets ef dtibsidiary is also directly recognised in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity, ustmthe ‘accumulated profits’ reserve.

When the Group ceases to have control and signtficluence, any retained minority investment as
interest in the capital of the respective entityresneasured to its fair value, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. Resigely, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entityaamunted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of all components related to the initial investm@nta subsidiary or associate).
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2.3.5. Consolidation of a joint venture

The proportionate consolidation method is usedirioluding the joint venture in the consolidated
financial statements as far as the parent comp&@WHARMA AD has the status of a controlling
shareholder of Sopharma Zdrovit AD — in liquidatid®Poland. In the proportionate consolidation
method, the share of the controlling shareholdex flarent company) in each of the assets, liadsliti
income and expenses in the jointly controlled camps combined (added) line-by-line with the
analogous items in the financial statements ofctir@rolling shareholder. The Group recognises only
the attributable portion of the recorded gains lasdes on transactions for sale of assets by thepGr
to the joint venture, which refers to other investand controlling shareholders. At the same tille,
intra-group transactions and accounts with thet jgenture are eliminated, including the unrealised
intra-group gains or losses on purchases of ae$éke joint venture by the Group to their resale t
third independent parties by also making checksnipairment in case of loss. The effect of deferred
taxes on these consolidation procedures has atsothken into account.

2.3.6. Consolidation of associates

Associates are included in the consolidated firenstatements by applying the equity method
whereby the investment of the parent company isallyi stated at cost and is subsequently
recalculated to reflect the changes in investdhie parent company) share in the post-acquisitein n
assets of the associate. Group’s investment insaac@te includes also the goodwill identified on
their acquisition net of any recognised impairment.

The post-acquisition profits or losses for the @rdthrough the parent company) from the associate
for the respective reporting period represent litares in the net financial results (after taxesjtef
operating activities for the period, which sharedsognised and presented on a separate line in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive incomelagoasly, the Group’s share in post-acquisition
changes in other components of comprehensive incoinde associate is also recognised and
presented as movement in the other components mprehensive income in the statement of
comprehensive income, and respectively the coregelitireserves of the Group - in the statement of
changes in equity. The Group recognises its shiatesees in an associate up to the amount of its
investment, including the internal loans granted.

The internal accounts between the Group and theci@ss are not eliminated. The unrealised gains or
losses from transactions between them are elindnitethe percentage of Group’s interest in the

associate by also making checks for impairmentaseaf loss. The effect of deferred taxes on these
consolidation procedures has also been taken autauat.
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2.4. Comparatives

In these consolidated financial statements, thai@presents comparative information for one prior
year.

Where necessary, comparative data is reclassified (estated) in order to achieve compatibility in
view of the current year presentation changes.

2.5. Functional currency and recognition of exchaeglifferences

The functional currency of the Group companies irigBria being also presentation currency for the
Group is the Bulgarian Lev. The Bulgarian lev iefl by the BNB Act to the Euro at the ratio BGN
1.95583:EUR 1.

Upon its initial recognition, a foreign currencyamisaction is recorded in the functional currency
whereas the exchange rate to BGN at the date dfdaheaction or operation is applied to the foreign

currency amount. Cash and cash equivalents, rddes/and payables, as monetary reporting items,
denominated in foreign currency, are recorded enftinctional currency by applying the exchange

rate as quoted by the Bulgarian National Bank (BfB}he last working day of the respective month.

At 31 December, these amounts are presented in @@ closing exchange rate of BNB.

The non-monetary items in the consolidated staténeérfinancial position, which are initially

denominated in a foreign currency, are accountedirfathe functional currency by applying the
historical exchange rate at the date of the trdimsaand are not subsequently re-valued at thengjos
exchange rate.

Foreign exchange gains or losses arising on thderment or recording of foreign currency
commercial transactions at rates different fromséh@t which they were converted on initial
recognition, are recognised in the consolidatetestant of comprehensive income in the period in
which they arise and are presented net under ‘aherating income/(losses)’.

The functional currency of the companies in Polé@apharma Poland AD - in liquidation, Sopharma
Warsaw EOOD and Sopharma Zdrovit AD — in liquida}iés the Polish Zloty, of the subsidiary in
Russia (Rostbalkanpharma ZAQO) — the Russian Roblie subsidiary in Ukraine (PAO Vitamini) —
the Ukrainian Grivna, of the subsidiary in Serlia(chich and Sons OOD) — the Serbian Dinar, of
the subsidiary in Latvia (Briz OOD) — Lat, of thebsidiaries in Belarus (Brititrade SOOO, Tabina
OOD and ZAO Interpharm) - Belarussian Ruble, of shdsidiary Extab Pharma Limited (United
Kingdom) — the British Pound, and of the compaimedSA (Sopharma USA and Extab Corporation)
—the US Dollar.

For the purposes of the consolidated financiakgtants, the financial statements of the subsidiarie
abroad are restated from the functional currencythef respective subsidiary to the presentation
currency (BGN) accepted for the consolidated fingratatements, whereas:

(a) all assets and liabilities are restated to theetwy of the Group by applying the closing
exchange rate of the local currency thereto at 8deinber;
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(b) all items of income and expenses are restatedet@uirency of the Group by applying an
average rate of the local currency thereto forrdporting period or by applying the closing
exchange rate of the local currency to the curreocyhe Group for companies whose
financial statements are being restated for theceffof hyperinflation (Note 2.6);

(c) all exchange differences resulting from the restetgs are recognised and presented as a
separate component of equity in the consolidatatestent of financial position, net of
deferred tax effects, and

(d) the exchange differences resulting from the restate of the net investment in the companies
abroad together with the loans and other currenstyriments, accepted as hedge of these
investments, are presented directly in equity.

On disposal (sale) of a foreign operation (compathg cumulative amount of exchange differences
that have been directly stated as a separate canpohequity, are recognised as part of the paorfit
loss in the consolidated statement of compreherisoame on the line ‘gains/(losses) on acquisition
and disposal of subsidiaries, net’, obtained opahal (sale).

Goodwill and adjustments to fair value arising agusition of a company abroad are treated
analogously to the assets and liabilities of thimpany and are restated at closing exchange rate.

2.6. Restatement of figures in the financial statents of Group companies operating in the
environment of hyperinflation (restatements for hgpnflationary economies)

The figures in the financial statements of subsigéaoperating in hyperinflationary economies are
firstly restated on the basis of the general pndex to the measuring unit at the end of the rappr
period with the aim to reflect the changes in thecpasing power of the money for the period and
secondly they are translated to the reporting cgyref the Group.

Monetary items in the statement of financial positiwhich include money and cash as well as items
that will be settled in money or cash, are notatest for the effects of hyperinflation. All othessats
and liabilities, such as: property, plant and emépt; intangible assets; investments, inventories,
goodwill as well as equity components, are non-rtamyatems in the statement of financial position
for the purposes of restatements for the effecteypkrinflation. Non-monetary items, presented at
amounts current at the end of the reporting perdod,not restated with an inflation indeMl other
non-monetary items, measured at cost or at costdesumulated depreciation, are restated for the
effects of hyperinflation by using the general primdex — from the date of the transaction
(acquisition) to the end of the current reportingripd. Non-monetary items, carried at amounts
current at dates other than that of acquisitiomalteed amounts) or the end of the reporting pedoe,
restated from the date of the revaluation to thé ehthe reporting period. The restated inflated
amount of a non-monetary item is reduced, in acowrd with the appropriate IFRS, when this
amount exceeds the recoverable amount of the novetawy item.
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All equity components, except for accumulated psadind all revaluation reserves, are restatechtor t
effects of hyperinflation by applying a generalcprindex — from the dates of contribution or agsin
of the respective components to the end of thesatireporting period.

All items in the statement of comprehensive incare restated for the effects of hyperinflation by
applying a general price index — from the datehaf initial recognition of the respective business
transactions to the end of the current reportingppe

The gain or loss on the net monetary positiorlecghg the effects of restatements for hyperirdiat

of non-monetary items and items in the statementoshprehensive income, are presented in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive incomdnifwjirofit or loss) in the item 'gain or loss ont ne
monetary position from restatements for hyperiidlery economies'.

2.7. Revenue

Revenue in the Group is recognised on accrual laasisto the extent and in the way the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and respectivellietbusiness risks are born thereby, and as far as
revenue can be reliably measured.

The types of Group’s revenue are presented in Njtésand 11.

Upon sale of finished products, goods and matenialgenue is recognised when all significant risks
and rewards of ownership have passed to the buyer.

Upon rendering of services, revenue is recognisedeberence to the stage of completion of the
transaction at the end of the reporting periodthié stage as well as the costs incurred for the
transaction and the costs to complete the tramsaatan be measured reliably.

Revenue is measured on the basis of the fair vafluke products, goods and services sold, net of
indirect taxes (excise duties and VAT) and anyalists and rebates granted.

Foreign exchange gains or losses related to ceste treceivables and payables, denominated in
foreign currency, are recognised in the consoliiatatement of comprehensive income (within profit
or loss for the year) in the period, in which treyse and are presented net under ‘other operating
income/(losses), net'.

The gains from revaluation of investment propedyfdir value are presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income (within profilass for the year) on the line ‘other operating
income/(losses), net’. Revenue from investment gmydeased-out under the terms of operating lease
is also accounted for under this item of the cadat#d financial statements.

Upon sale on an instalment plan, revenue is resednon the date of sale, excluding the incorporated
interest.

Finance income is included in the consolidatecestant of comprehensive income when earned and
comprises: interest income on granted loans amd t@posits, interest income on receivables under
special contracts, interest income on past duavaaes, income/gains from deals with investments

in available-for-sale securities including dividendiet gains on exchange differences under loans in
foreign currency, income from debt settlement taatiens, gain on measurement of shares at fair
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value when a subsidiary is being acquired in stafjesy are presented separately from of finance
costs on the face of the consolidated statemetraprehensive income.

2.8. Expenses

Expenses are recognised in the Group when theynatgred based on the accrual and matching
concepts (to the extent that this would not leatetmgnition of an asset or liability not satisfyithe
definitions for assets and liabilities in the Frawek and IFRS themselves).

Deferred expenses are put off and recognised aentuexpenses in the period when the contracts,
whereto they refer, are performed.

Losses from revaluation of investment property &ir fvalue are presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income (within profilass for the year) on the line ‘other operating
income/(losses)’.

Finance costs are included in the consolidatectrsiait of comprehensive income when incurred
separately from finance costs and comprise: intezgpense under loans received, bank fees and
charges on loans and guarantees, net losses oangeclifferences under loans in foreign currency,
expenses/losses on deals with investments in alaifar-sale securities.

2.9. Statutory dividend for distribution

The subsidiary company Sopharma Buildings REIT thasstatus of a joint-stock special-purpose
investment-company within the meaning of the BublyaSpecial Purpose Investment Companies Act
(SPICA). For this reason, the company has spegdficy for distribution of dividends to shareholder
in line with the requirements of the law, namely:

* the company is obliged by law to distribute as dkvid not less t6han 90% of the
generated profit for the respective financial yadjusted in accordance with SPICA; and

« the distribution of the remaining 10% is determifgda decision of the General Meeting
of Shareholders as per the common procedure ofBilgarian Commercial Act,
including for dividend payment.

The statutory dividend at an amount of not less 9@% of the generated profit is recognised as a
liability in the current year and in decrease (n&ody distribution) of the current profit for thear.

2.10. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (fixed tangible &3jsate presented in the consolidated financial
statements at revalued amount reduced by the at¢atedudepreciation and impairment losses in
value.
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Initial acquisition

Upon their initial acquisition, property, plant aeduipment are valued at cost, which comprises the
purchase price, including customs duties and argctly attributable costs of bringing the asset to

working condition for its intended use. The dirgcdttributable costs include the cost of site

preparation, initial delivery and handling coststallation costs, professional fees for peoplelved

in the project, non-refundable taxes etc.

Property, plant and equipment of acquired subsasiaare measured at fair value at the transaction
(business combination) date which is accepted @gisition price for consolidation purposes.

Upon acquisition of property, plant and equipmamder deferred settlement terms, the purchase price
is equivalent to the present value of the liabitiigcounted on the basis of the interest levehef t
attracted by the Group credit resources with ammalsegnaturity and purpose.

The carrying amounts of all items of property, pland equipment of Group companies, operating in
the environment of hyperinflationary economies,tidtly measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation, are restated for the effects of hipflation by applying a general price index — freime
date of the transaction (acquisition) to the endhefcurrent reporting period or from the datehaf t
last revaluation of the assets.

The Group has set a value threshold of BGN 500@vbebhich the acquired assets, regardless of
having the features of fixed assets, are treatetii@snt expense at the moment of their acquisition

Subsequent measurement

The chosen by the Group approach for subsequerduregaent of property, plant and equipment, is
the revaluation model under IAS 16, i.e. measurénanrevalued amount less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumutapadrment losses.

It is adopted that the revaluation of property,npland equipment shall be performed by certified
appraisers normally in a period of five years. Whdre fair value changes materially in shorter
periods, revaluation may be performed more freduent

Subsequent costs

Repair and maintenance costs are recognised amntuxpenses as incurred. Subsequent expenses
incurred in relation to property, plant and equipmbaving the nature of replacement of certain
components, significant parts and aggregates omowanents and restructuring, are capitalised in the
carrying amount of the respective asset whereaetidual useful life is reviewed at the capitdlma

date. At the same time, the non-depreciated patteofeplaced components is derecognised from the
carrying amount of the assets and is recognis#tkeigurrent expenses for the period of restructure.
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Depreciation methods

The Group applies the straight-line depreciationthmg for property, plant and equipment.
Depreciation of an asset begins when it is availédl use. Land is not depreciated. The usefuldife
the groups of assets is dependent on their physieal and tear, the characteristic features of the
equipment, the future intentions for use and thpeeted obsolescence.

The useful life per group of assets is as follows:

* buildings — 20-70 years;

road facilities — 20 years;

« machinery and equipment — 7-15 years;
installations — 7 - 10 years;

» computers — 2 - 5 years;

* motor vehicles — 7 - 17 years;

furniture and fixtures — 6-7 yeatrs.

The useful life, set for any tangible fixed assetreviewed by the management of each company
within the Group and respectively, by the paremhgany, at the end of each reporting period and in
case of any material deviation from the future exgons of their period of use, the latter is asthd
prospectively.

Impairment of assets

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipinage reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrgimpunt might significantly differ from their
recoverable amount. If any indications exist that éstimated recoverable amount of an asset ig lowe
than its carrying amount, the latter is adjustethtorecoverable amount of the asset. The recoleerab
amount of property, plant and equipment is the énigif fair value less costs to sell or the valuasa.

In assessing value in use, the estimated fututte fl@ass are discounted to their present value uaing
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current madatditions and assessments of the time value of
money and the risks, specific to the particulareastmpairment losses are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive incomehifwiprofit or loss for the year) unless a
revaluation reserve has been set aside for theectgp asset. Then the impairment is treated as a
decrease in this reserve (through other comprelemstome) unless it does not exceed its amount
and the excess is included as expense in the éedaisml statement of comprehensive income (within
profit or loss for the year).
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Gains and losses on disposal (sale)

Property, plant and equipment are derecognised fhentonsolidated statement of financial position
when they are permanently disposed of and no fudcomomic benefits are expected therefrom or on
sale. The gains or losses arising from the salamitem of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the considere¢ceived and the carrying amount of the asset
at the date of sale. They are stated net undeeratperating income/(losses), net’ in the constdida
statement of comprehensive income (within profitlass for the year). The part of ‘revaluation
reserve’ attributable to the sold asset is direttiysferred to ‘retained earnings’ in the consukbd
statement of changes in equity.

2.11. Biological assets
Biological assets (perennial plants) are measuréadravalue less the estimated costs to sell.

The fair value of biological assets is determinedtlte basis of their present location and condition
based on a price quoted in an active market orr @tlhernative sources of current prices. Gain eslo
on initial recognition of a biological asset atrfaalue less estimated costs to sell and changtsrin
value less estimated costs to sell is recogniséldeirronsolidated statement of comprehensive income
(within profit or loss for the year) in the periadwhich it arises and is presented in ‘other opega
income/(losses), net’. When the fair value of aldgical asset cannot be reliably measured, it is
measured at cost less accumulated depreciatiommaiiment losses. Subsequently, when the fair
value of this biological asset becomes reliably sneable, the Group changes its approach and
switches to measuring the asset at fair valuettesestimated costs to sell.

2.12. Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of @uiaition (the consideration given) over the fair
value of the Group’s share of the net identifiabksets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of
acquisition. Goodwill is initially measured in thmnsolidated financial statements at cost and
subsequently — at cost less accumulated impairtoss¢s. Goodwill is not amortised.

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of a subsidiasypresented in the consolidated statement of
financial position in the group of ‘intangible assavhile goodwill arising on the acquisition of an
associate (entity) is incorporated in the total amf the investment and is stated in the group of
‘investments in associates’.

The goodwill on the acquisition of associates (&H) is tested as part of the total balance (amain
the investment. The individually recognised gootlwil the acquisition of subsidiaries (entities) is
mandatory tested for impairment at least once year. Impairment losses on goodwill are not
subsequently reversed. Gains or losses on thgdiaf@sal) of a particular subsidiary (entity) bét
Group include the carrying amount of the goodvélating to the entity sold (disposed of).
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On the realisation of a particular business contlmnaeach recognised goodwill is allocated to a
particular cash generating unit and this unit isdufor impairment testing. The allocation is maale t
those cash generating units that are expectedrefibédrom the business combination in which the
goodwill arose.

Impairment losses on goodwill are presented incthesolidated statement of comprehensive income
(within profit or loss for the year) in the itemepreciation and amortisation expense'.

Other intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated in the consolidateghial statements at acquisition cost (cost) less
accumulated amortisation and any impairment lossgalue except where they belong to companies
operating in hyperinflationary economy whose inthley assets are restated for the effects of
hyperinflation from the date of their acquisitiop &pplying the changes in the general price index t
the date of the financial statements. Intangibsetsinclude mainly rights on intellectual propextd
software.

The Group applies the straight-line amortisatiorthmé for the intangible assets with determined
useful life from 5 to 10 years.

The carrying amount of the intangible assets igestilio review for impairment when events or
changes in the circumstances indicate that thgingramount might exceed their recoverable amount.
Then impairment is recognised as an amortisatiopeese in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income (within profit or loss for tfear).

Intangible assets are derecognised from the calaet statement of financial position when they are
permanently disposed of and no future economicfiisrege expected therefrom or on sale. The gains
or losses arising from the sale of an item of igtble assets are determined as the difference katwe
the consideration received and the carrying amotitite asset at the date of sale. They are staed n
under ‘other operating income/(losses), net’ in ¢basolidated statement of comprehensive income
(within profit or loss for the year).

2.13. Investment property

Investment property is property lastingly held by tGroup to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation. They are presented in the consolidstegement of financial position at fair valueirza

or losses arising from a change in the fair valfieineestment property are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive incomdifwiirofit or loss for the year) as ‘other opergtin
income/(losses), net’ for the period in which tlaise. The income gained on investment property is
presented in the same item of the consolidatedmatit of comprehensive income.

Investment property is derecognised from the catst@d statement of financial position when they
are permanently disposed of and no future econbemefits are expected therefrom or on sale. The
gains or losses arising from the sale of an itemmedstment property are determined as the diffe¥en
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between the disposal proceeds and the carrying minaiuthe asset at the date of sale. They are
presented under ‘other operating income/(loss&s) imthe consolidated statement of comprehensive
income (within profit or loss for the year).

Transfers to, or from, the group of ‘investmentgany’ is made only when there is a change in the
functional designation and the use of a particpiaperty. In case of a transfer from ‘investment
property’ to ‘owner-occupied property’, the assetrécognised in the new group at deemed cost,
which is its fair value at the date of transfer. fhe opposite, in case of a transfer from ‘owner-
occupied property’ to ‘investment property’ the etsis measured at fair value at the date of transfe
while the difference to its carrying amount is reed as a component of the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income (within other comprehensnemme) and within ‘revaluation reserve —
property, plant and equipment’ in the statemerghainges in equity.

2.14. Investments in associates

The long-term investments representing shares bsidiaries are presented in the consolidated
financial statements under the equity method —evéhat includes the acquisition price being the fai
value of the consideration paid, including the direosts on investment acquisition adjusted by
investor's share of profits or losses and respelgtihe other reserves of the associate after dte af

its acquisition.

The share of profits and losses after the dategfisition of an associate is presented on a stpara
line in the consolidated statement of comprehenisiveme (within profit or loss for the year) while
the share of other components of comprehensivariace on the respective line of the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income (within otherm@mensive income) and as a separate movement
of the individual components of reserves in thesctidated statement of changes in equity.

The investments in associates held by the Grouethieg with the included goodwill are subject to

review for impairment at the date of the finangttements. Where conditions for impairment are
identified and its amount is determined, the impaint is included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income (within profit or loss for gear) in the item ‘gains/(losses) from associates’
(Note 2.32).

In purchases and sales of investments in assodimedate of trading (conclusion of the deal) is
applied.

Investments in associates are derecognised whenigiis related thereto are transferred to third
parties as a result of occurrence of legal rightgHat and thus the control over the economic fitsne
from the investments are being lost. The incomenftbeir sale is presented in ‘gains/(losses) from
associates’ of the consolidated statement of cangmsve income (within profit or loss for the year)
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2.15. Available-for-sale investments

Initial measurement

Available-for-sale investments (financial assets)iaitially recognised at cost, being the fairuabf
the consideration paid including acquisition c@stsociated with the investment (Note 2.27).

Subsequent measurement

Group’s investments (financial assets) represensingres in public companies traded in a stock
exchange are subsequently measured at fair valnenoaly determined based on the average prices
of realised transactions for the last month of year unless the Company trades in an insignificant
package of these companies’ capital and/or hasgiyrdimited volume of transactions with them —
then the stock exchange prices are adjusted wéhvétiues obtained by applying other valuation
methods and prices of similar instruments, inclgdmother capital markets. (Note 2.27).

The effects of subsequent revaluation of securitidair value are presented in a separate componen
of the consolidated statement of comprehensivenigc@within other comprehensive income) and
recognised in the consolidated statement of congmsitie income (within profit or loss for the year)
on disposal of the respective investment by beiated as ‘finance income’ or ‘finance costs’.

Group’s investments (financial assets) represenshgres in other companies (non-controlling
interest), which are not traded in an active madg no market price quotations are available for
them while the assumptions for the application leéraative valuation methods are related to high
uncertainty in respect of achieving a reliable faitue determination, are measured and presented at
cost (Note 2.27).

The available-for-sale investments (financial agsate reviewed for impairment at the end of each
reporting period and if conditions for permanenpamnment are identified, the latter is recognised i
the consolidated statement of comprehensive ind@aritkin profit or loss for the year) under ‘finance
costs’.

Where conditions for impairment are identified, thter is determined as the difference between the
carrying amount and the recoverable value of tivestment and is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income (within profitosss for the year) unless a positive reserveHisr t
investment was formed in prior periods — then thpdirment is at first covered at the account of thi
reserve and is presented net in the consolidastdnsént of comprehensive income (within other
comprehensive income).

When shares are written-off due to sale, the Compeses the method of weigheted average price
determined at the end of the month in which writesomade.

Any purchase or sale of available-for-sale invesiisiés recognised on the trade date, i.e. the date
when the Group undertakes the engagement to bssildhe asset.
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2.16. Assets held for sale

Assets (and disposal groups) are classified asfbelshle if the intents and the expectations hat t
their carrying amounts will be recovered principahrough a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use in the operations of the Group.

Assets (and disposal groups) classified in thisigrare available for immediate sale in their presen
condition. The Group management is committed téopera sale transaction within one year from the
date of assets classification in this group andh sade is highly probable.

In case of engagement with a plan for sale thdtidies loss of control over a subsidiary, the Group
classifies all consolidated assets and liabiliiethe subsidiary as held for sale regardless adtiadr
it will keep non-controlling interest in its formsubsidiary after the sale.

Assets (and disposal groups) classified as helddtw are presented in the consolidated statenfient o
financial position separately and are measuredhatlower of their carrying amount (initially,
acquisition cost) and their fair value less theteas sell (net selling price). Any impairment Idss
allocated on a pro rata basis between those assatslisposal group, which are within the scope of
IFRS 5.

Assets belonging to the groups 'property, plant equipment’ and ‘intangible assets' when classified
as 'non-current assets held for sale' cease tefredated until they are within this group.

2.17. Inventories

Inventories are measured in the consolidated finhrstatements at the lower of acquisition cost
(cost), including restated for the subsidiariesrafieg in the environment of hyperinflationary
economy for the changes in the general price irfdem the transaction date to the date of the
statement of financial position, and the net realis value.

Expenses, incurred at bringing certain productdaurrent condition and location, are includethi
acquisition cost (cost) as follows:

e raw materials, materials in finished form and goedsl delivery costs, including the purchase
price, import customs duties and charges, tranapont expenses, non-refundable taxes and
other expenses, incurred for rendering the maseaiatl goods ready for usage/sale;

- finished products and work in progress — cost okali materials and labour and the
attributable proportion of the manufacturing ovextie based on normal operating capacity of
production facilities, but excluding administratiegpenses, exchange rate gains and losses
and borrowing costs.

The inclusion of fixed production overheads in tlst of finished and semi-finished products is base
on normal production capacity.

They are allocated to finished products on theofaithg bases chosen by the Group:
» for production of medicinal products — direct labwalued on the basis of labour norms;

- for production of infusion solutions — quantityrafinufactured finished products.
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On use (sale) of materials and finished produasabighted average cost method is applied while on
sale of goods — the first-in first-out (FIFO) metho

The net realisable value represents the estima&iidgsprice of an asset in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated cost of completiortrendstimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2.18. Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are recognised in the consotidfiteincial statements and carried at fair value
based on the original invoice amount (cost) lesg @lowance for uncollectable debts. In case of
payments deferred over a period exceeding the conmenedit terms, where no additional interest
payment has been envisaged or the interest coabiglediffers from the common market interest
rates, the receivables are initially valued atrtfer value and subsequently — at amortised @ity
deducting the interest incorporated in their nomwelue and determined following the effective
interest rate method (Note 2.27).

An estimate of allowances for doubtful and bad si&bmade when significant uncertainty exists as to
the collection of the full amount or a part ofBad debts are written-off when the legal grounds fo
this are available. Writing-off is against the faunallowance and/or as expense in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive incomer (within prafitbss for the year).

2.19. Interest-bearing loans and other financialseurces granted

All loans and other financial resources granted iai@ally recognised at cost (nominal amount),
which is accepted to be the fair value of the adarsition received on the transaction, net of thecti
costs related to these loans and granted resoukétes.the initial recognition, the interest-beayin
loans and other granted resources are subsequeethgured and presented in the consolidated
financial statements at amortised cost by appltegeffective interest rate method. Amortised ¢®st
calculated by taking into account all types of gesr commissions, and other costs, associated with
these loans. Gains and losses are recognised icottsslidated statement of comprehensive income
(within profit or loss for the year) as finance amee (interest) or costs throughout the amortisation
period, or when the receivables are settled, dgrésed or reduced.

Interest-bearing loans and other financial resaugranted are classified as current ones unless (an
for the relevant portion thereof) the Group hasomalitionally the right to settle its obligation Wih a
term of more than 12 months after the end of thenmég period (Note 2.27).

2.20. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash includes cash in hand and with current acesouthile cash equivalents include short-term
deposits with banks, with original maturity of lékan three months (Note 2.27).

For the purposes of the consolidated statemeragf flows:
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» cash proceeds from customers and cash paid toistgpplre presented at gross amount,
including value added tax (20%);

* interest on investment purpose loans receivedperted as payments for financial activities
while the interest on loans related to currentvies (working capital) is included in the
operating activities;

e short-term blocked funds (for up to 3 months) agated as cash and cash equivalents. Long-
term blocked funds (for more than 3 months) areinoiuded as cash in the consolidated
statement of cash flows but are stated as ‘othmrgads/(payments), net’;

« provided that bank deposits with original matuofyup to three months exist, they are treated
as cash and cash equivalents and the interesweectiiereon is included in the cash from
investing activities;

e VAT paid on fixed assets purchased from foreignptieps is presented on the line ‘Taxes
paid’ while that paid on assets purchased fromlleagpliers is presented as ‘Cash paid to
suppliers’ in the cash flows from operating acigstas far as it represents a part of the
operating flows of the Group companies and is repey therewith in the respective period
(month).

2.21. Trade and other payables

Trade and other current amounts payable are catdethe consolidated financial statements at
original invoice amount (acquisition cost), whichtle fair value of the consideration to be paithi
future for goods and services received. In caspagiments deferred over a period exceeding the
common credit terms, where no additional interemynpent has been envisaged or the interest
considerably differs from the common market interases, the payables are initially valued at their
fair value and subsequently — at amortised costr afeducting the interest incorporated in their
nominal value and determined following the effeetinterest rate method (Note 2.27).

2.22. Interest-bearing loans and other borrowings

All loans and other borrowings are initially receged in the consolidated financial statements at co
(nominal amount), which is accepted to be the failue of the consideration received on the
transaction, netted of the direct costs relatedthiese loans and borrowings. After the initial
recognition, the interest-bearing loans and otleerdwings are subsequently measured and presented
in the consolidated financial statements at anewtisost by applying the effective interest rate
method. The amortised cost is calculated by takitggaccount all types of charges, commissions and
other costs, including any discount or premium ettlement associated with these loans. Gains and
losses are recognised in the consolidated stateoh@omprehensive income (within profit or loss for
the year) as finance income or costs (interesutiinout the amortisation period, or when the
liabilities are derecognised or reduced (Note 2.27)
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Interest-bearing loans and other borrowings arssiflad as current ones unless (and for the retevan
portion thereof) the Group has unconditionally tight to settle its obligation within a term of neor
than 12 months after the end of the reporting perio

2.23. Capitalisation of borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable te tacquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset are capitalised as part of the obshat asset. A qualifying assets is an adsat t
necessarily takes a period of at least 12 monthettoeady for its intended use or sale.

The amount of borrowing costs eligible for capgation to the value of a qualifying asset is
determined by applying a capitalisation rate. Thpitalisation rate is the weighted average of the
borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings the¢ autstanding during the period, other than
borrowings made specifically for the purpose ofaatihg a qualifying asset.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part @& tdost of a qualifying asset commences when the
following conditions are met: expenditures for #sset are being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to pesfide asset for its intended use or sale are in
progress.

Borrowing costs are also reduced by any investrimexime earned on the temporary investment of
those borrowed funds.

2.24. Leases
Finance lease
Lessee

Finance leases, which transfer to the Group a antial part of all risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of the leased property, plant and equipjee recognised as assets in the statement of
financial position of the lessee and are preseatettased item of property, plant and equipment at
their immediate sale price or, if lower, at thegamt value of the minimum lease payments. The lease
payments are apportioned between the finance iobstgst) and the attributable portion (reductioh)

the lease liability (principal) so as to achieveoasistent interest rate on the remaining outstendi
principal balance of the lease liability. Interespense is included in the consolidated statement o
comprehensive income (within profit or loss for thear) as finance costs (interest) based on the
effective interest rate (Note 2.27).

Assets acquired under finance lease are deprecistetie basis of their useful economic life and
within the lease term.
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Lessor

Finance lease where a substantial portion of slisriand rewards incidental to the ownership of the
leased asset is transferred outside the Group,ritteemoff from the goods of the lessor and is
presented in the statement of financial positionaaseceivable at an amount equal to the net
investment in the lease. The net investment indhee agreement represents the difference between
the total amount of minimum lease payments under fthance lease agreement and the non-
guaranteed residual value, accrued for the lesmbttze non-earned financial income. The difference
between the carrying amount of the leased assethandmediate (fair selling) value is recognised i
the consolidated statement of comprehensive incOmihin profit or loss for the year) in the
beginning of the lease term (when the asset isefeld) as sales income.

The recognition of the earned finance income aseatiinterest income is based on the application of
the effective interest rate method.

Operating lease
Lessee

Leases where the lessor keeps a substantial pait ngks and economic benefits incidental to the
ownership of the specific asset are classifiedpasating leases. Therefore, the asset is not iadlird
the statement of financial position of the lessee.

Operating lease payments are recognised as expengesconsolidated statement of comprehensive
income (within profit or loss for the year) on eagght-line basis over the lease term.

Lessor

Lessor continues to hold a significant part ofrelks and rewards of ownership over the said asset.
Therefore the asset is still included in the contps of property, plant and equipment while its
depreciation for the period is included in the eatrexpenses of the lessor.

Lease income from operating leases is recognised straight-line basis over the lease term. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arrangingperating lease are added to the carrying amount
of the leased asset and recognised on a straighbdsis over the lease term.

2.25. Pensions and other payables to personnel uride social security and labour legislation

The employment and social security relations withrkers and employees of the Group are based on
the Labour Code and the provisions of the effectiveial security legislation for the companies
operating inBulgaria, the Polish Code — for the companie$land the employment legislation and
the Collective Labour Agreement — for the companmyJkraine the employment legislation, the
General Collective Labour Agreement and the effecEmployment Rules and Regulations — for the
company inSerbig the Labour Act — for the company liiatvia, the employment legislation — for the
company irBelarusand the Labour Code of the Russian Federatiom théocompany iRussia
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For Bulgaria

The major duty of companies-employers in Bulgasatd make the mandatory social security
contributions for the hired employees to the Parsibund, the Supplementary Mandatory Pension
Security (SMPS) Fund, to the General Diseases aatérvity (GDM) Fund, the Unemployment Fund,
the Labour Accident and Professional Diseases (DARINd, the Guaranteed Receivables of Workers
and Employees (GRWE) Fund and for health insurance.

The rates of the social security and health insgatontributions are defined under the Law on the
Budget of State Social Security and the Law onBbhdget of National Health Insurance Fund for the
respective year. The contributions are split betwibe employer and employee in line with rules of
the Social Security Code (SSC).

The social security and pension plans, applied Hgy Group in its capacity of employer for the
companies in Bulgaria, are based on the Bulgaegislation and are defined contributions plans.
Under these plans, the employer pays defined mprdbhtributions to the government funds as
follows: Pensions Fund, GDM Fund, Unemployment FuAPD Fund and GRWE Fund as well as
to universal and professional pension funds — enbtisis of rates fixed by law, and has no legal or
constructive obligation to pay further contributsaihthe funds do not hold sufficient assets to thesy
respective individuals the benefits they have wdriiat over the period of their service. The
obligations referring to health insurance are ayals.

For companies abroad

The rates of the social security contributions olaRd are approved by the Law on the National
Social Security System, in Russia — the Federal bawObligations for Pension Security in the
Russian Federation and the Tax Code, in Ukrainaw @n Pension Provision, in Serbia — the Law
on Labour in the Republic of Serbia, in Latvia € ttaw on Social Security, and in Belarus — the
Law on the Mandatory Contributions to the Fund &wcial Security of the Population of the
Ministry of Labour and Social Security. The socs&curity contributions are being apportioned
between employer and employee at ratios regulatélebrelevant local laws.

There is no established and functioning privateintary social security scheme at the Group.

Short-term benefits

Short-term employee benefits in the form of rematiens, bonuses and social payments and benefits
(payable within 12 months after the end of the gukkivhen the employees have rendered the service
or has met the required terms and requirementsyem@gnised as an expense in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income (within profitass for the year) in the period when the service
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thereon has been rendered or the requirementedorreceipt have been met and as a current hbili
(less any amounts already paid and deductionsatubgir undiscounted amount. The payables of the
Group for social security and health insurancerecegnised as a current expense and liabilityeat th
undiscounted amount together with the respectivefits they relate to and within the period of thei
accrual.

At each date of consolidated balance sheet, thepaoias of the Group measure the estimated costs
on the accumulating compensated absences, whichrarexpected to be paid as a result of the
unused entitlement. The measurement includes thenaded expenses on the employee’s
remuneration and the statutory social security laalth insurance contributions due by the employer
thereon.

Long-term retirement benefits

In accordance with the requirements of the LabandeC the employer of the companieBimgaria is
obliged to pay to its personnel upon retiremenindemnity, which depending on the length of service
at the entity varies between two and six gross hiprgalaries as at the termination date of the
employment. In accordance with the Law on Labousénbig the employer of the Serbian company
is obliged to pay to its personnel on coming of &geretirement an indemnity at the amount of at
least three average salaries calculated at the dinpayment. In accordance with the employment
legislation inUkraine and the Collective labour Agreement of the Uki@incompany, the employer is
obliged to pay to its personnel on coming of agerétirement an indemnity, which depending on the
length of service with the entity may vary betwédsH 100 and UAH 200 (between BGN 25 and
BGN 50). Also, the company in Ukraine accrues dao@emnities, which are paid after retirement of
employees due to specific labour conditions. Actaydo the employment legislation in Poland, the
employer is obliged to pay upon retirement one gmosnthly salary. According to the employment
legislation, there are no obligations to the pengbion retirement in Latvia and Belarus.

In their nature these are defined benefit schemes.

The calculation of the amount of these liabilittecessitates the participation of qualified actsaim
order to determine their present value at the aftiee financial statements, at which they areudet

in the consolidated statement of financial positiadjusted with the amount of the unrecognised
actuarial gains and losses, and respectively, tle@ge in their value including the recognised
actuarial gains and losses is included in the dateed statement of comprehensive income (within
profit or loss for the year).

Past service costs are recognised immediatelyeicdinsolidated statement of comprehensive income
(within profit or loss for the year).

At the date of issue of the consolidated finansi@tements, the companies of the Group assign
certified actuaries who provide their report withlaulations regarding the long-term retirement
benefit obligations. For this purpose, they apply Projected Unit Credit Method. The present value
of the defined benefit obligation is determineddigcounting the estimated future cash flows, which
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are expected to be paid within the maturity of thtiigation, and using the interest rates of lozgrt
government bonds in the respective countries irthwthe companies of the Group operate.

Actuarial gains and losses arise from changesdaratiuarial assumptions and experience adjustments.
Those exceeding the 10% corridor of the presentevaf the defined benefit obligations as at the end
of the year are recognised immediately in the cltested statement of comprehensive income (within
profit or loss for the year) for the period in whithey arise.

The changes in the amount of Group’s liabilities personnel for indemnities upon retirement,
including the interest from unwinding of the presesiue and the recognised actuarial gains or fpsse
are recognised as employee benefits expense icotisolidated statement of comprehensive income
(within profit or loss for the year).

Termination benefits

In accordance with the local provisions of the ewpient and social security regulations of the
Group companies, the employer is obliged, upon iteation of the employment contracts prior to
retirement, to pay certain types of indemnities.

The Group recognises employee benefit obligatiamsemployment termination before the normal
retirement date when it is demonstrably committegised on announced plan, to terminating the
employment contract with the respective individualthout possibility of withdrawal or in case of
formal issuance of documents for voluntary redunglamermination benefits due more than 12
months are discounted and presented in the coasatidtatement of financial position at their pn¢se
value.

2.26. Share capital and reserves

SOPHARMA AD (the parent company) is a joint-stockipany and is obliged to register with the
Commercial Register a specifistiare capital which should serve as a security for the creslifor
execution of their receivables. The shareholderdiable for the obligations of the Company uphe t
amount of the share of the capital held by eadhed and may claim refunding of this share only in
case of liquidation or bankruptcy proceedings. paeent company reports its share capital at the
nominal value of the shares registered in the court

According to the requirements of the Commercial Aot the Articles of Association, the parent
company is obliged to set asid®aserve Fundstatutory reservebpy using the following sources:

» at least one tenth of the profit, which should becated to the Fund until its amount reaches
one tenth of the share capital or any larger amagamhay be decided by the General Meeting
of Shareholders;

e any premium received in excess of the nominal valfieshares upon their issue (share
premium reserve);

41
This is a translation from Bulgarian of the consgatlied financial statements of Sopharma Group far 811.



SOPHARMA GROUP
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

« other sources as provided for by a decision ofahreral Meeting.

The amounts in the Fund can only be used to cavaual loss or losses from previous years. When
the amount of the Fund reaches the minimum valeeifsgd in the Articles of Association, the excess
may be used for increasing share capital.

The treasury sharesare presented in the consolidated statement ahfial position at cost and
Group’s equity is decreased by their gross pricns§or losses on sales of treasury shares aiedarr
directly to Group’s equity in the ‘Retained earrshgomponent.

Revaluation reserve — property, plant and equipmenset aside from:

» the revaluation surplus between the carrying amotiptoperty, plant and equipment and their
fair values at the revaluation date;

* the positive difference between the carrying amaninproperty stated as owner-occupied
property and their fair value at the date when #reytransferred to investment property.

Deferred tax effect on the revaluation reserverisctly carried at the account of this reserve.

Revaluation reserve is transferred to accumulatetitp when the assets are derecognised from the
consolidated statement of financial position of @reup or are fully depreciated.

The revaluation reserve covers the impairment efassets to which it relates. It may be used in the
implementation of Group's dividend and capital gek only after it is transferred to the 'retained
earnings' component.

Available-for-sale financial assets reserigbeing set aside from the difference betweercéngying
amount of the available-for-sale financial assetd their fair values at the revaluation date. This
reserve is transferred to current profit and losthe consolidated statement of comprehensive iacom
(within profit or loss for the year) when the firtgal assets are disposed of (sold) by the Groupoand
on identified permanent impairment of particularaficial assets.

The Translation of foreign operations reseniacludes the effects of restating the financiateshents

of the companies abroad from local currency topifesentation currency of the Group. This reserve is
recognised as a separate component of equity ioasolidated statement of financial position asnd a
part of the profit or loss in the consolidated estaént of comprehensive income on the line
‘gains/(losses) on acquisition and disposal of ilidnses, net’ on disposal (sale) of a foreign @pien
(company) (Note 2.5).

42
This is a translation from Bulgarian of the consgatlied financial statements of Sopharma Group far 811.



SOPHARMA GROUP
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

2.27. Financial instruments
2.27.1. Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in thkofdng categories: loans and receivables and
available-for-sale assets. The classification ddpeon the nature and purpose (designation) of the
financial assets at the date of their acquisitidre management of the parent company together with
the management of the respective subsidiary daterthie classification of the financial assets ler t
purposes of the Group at the date of their infgabgnition in the statement of financial position.

The Group companies usually recognise their firrdrassets in the statement of financial position o
the trade date, being the date on which they cortomiurchase the respective financial assets. All
financial assets are initially measured at thdinfalue plus the directly attributable transactomsts.

Financial assets are derecognised from the Graugisolidated statement of financial position when
the rights to receive cash from these assets hepised or have been transferred, and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewarfdewnership of the asset to another entity (p@&rso
external thereto. If the Group retains substamtialll risks and rewards associated with the ownprsh
of a particular transferred financial asset, it toures to recognise the transferred asset in its
consolidated statement of financial position boatecognises a secured liability (a loan) for the
consideration received.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivablese non-derivative financial assets with fixed etedminable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are measuréke consolidated statement of financial position
at their amortised cost using the effective interesthod less any allowance for impairment. These
assets are included in the group of current asge¢s having maturity within 12 months or within a
common operating cycle of the respective Group @mwpwhile the remaining ones are carried as
non-current assets.

This group of financial assets includes: loans @m@ntrade receivables, other receivables from
counterparts and third parties, cash and cash @euis from the consolidated statement of financial
position (Notes 2.17, 2.18 and 2.20). Interest imecon loans and receivables is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate except forrsherm receivables (less than three months) wtiere
recognition of such interest would be unjustifiabfeimmaterial and within the common credit terms.
It is presented in the consolidated statement afprehensive income (within profit or loss for the
year) under the item ‘finance income’.

At the date of each statement of financial posjtitie Group companies assess whether events and
circumstances have occurred that indicate theenast of objective evidence necessitating loans and
receivables to be impaired (Note 2.33).
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Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are those nerivdtive assets that are either acquired for the

purpose of being sold or are not classified in ather category. For the Group, these are usually

shares, bonds or interest in other (third) comaraequired for investment purposes (available-for-

sale investments), and are included within nonendrassets, except where a Group company intends
to sell them in the following 12 months and is @&ty searching for a buyer (Note 2.15).

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at

- fair value — for companies whose shares are quotadtock exchange. The fair value of these
assets is determined by applying average stockaexeh bid price commonly for the last
month at the date of the consolidated statemenfiinzncial position unless only an
insignificant package of the capital of these conmgg is being traded and/or the volume of
transactions with them is very limited — then stesichange prices are adjusted by applying
other valuation methods, or as an exception,

— at acquisition cost for closed-end companies foiclviit is difficult to find analogous market
transactions data or due to the circumstance bwafuture operation of these companies is
related to certain doubts so that reasonable asiifigible long-term assumptions are not
possible for the calculation of the fair value loéit shares through other alternative valuation
methods.

The effects, gains or losses, of revaluation to VYalue of the available-for-sale investments are
included in the consolidated statement of comprsirenncome (within other comprehensive income)

under the item ‘net change in fair value of avdddir-sale financial assets’ and are accrued to a
separate equity component — ‘available-for-salarfoial assets reserve’.

Where subsequent permanent impairment is identdieon sale of an available-for-sale investment,
the amount of impairment and all previously acclated losses (net) to the reserve are recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive incawitkin profit or loss for the year) as ‘finance
costs’ Analogously, on each sale of investmenth@f type, the unrealised gains accumulated in the
reserve are recognised in the consolidated stateafie@@omprehensive income (within profit or loss
for the year) as ‘finance income’.

The recycling of accumulated effects from changéhin fair value of available-for-sale investments
are presented with other comprehensive incomen@ thange in fair value of available-for-sale
financial assets’), net of those resulting from mewaluations for the period.

Dividends on shares, classified as available-ftg-Baancial assets, are recognised in the corestaied
statement of comprehensive income (within profilass for the year) when the company’s right to
receive the dividends is established.

The available-for-sale investments are revieweehah date of the statement of financial position fo
events or circumstances indicating the existencebgEctive evidence for impairment of a particular
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financial asset or group of assets. Financial assetimpaired if their carrying amount is highweart
the expected recoverable amount. The recognisediiment loss is equal to the difference between
the acquisition cost less the repayments and teeaverable amount, which is accepted to be equal t
the present value of the expected future cash floiggounted at the current interest rate or thnoug
the yield for similar financial assets.

2.27.2. Financial liabilities and equity instrumest

The Group classifies debt and equity instrumentieeias financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractualngements with the respective counterparty
regarding these instruments.

Financial liabilities

The financial liabilities of the Group include l@aand payables to suppliers and other counterparts.
They are initially recognised in the consolidatetesment of financial position at fair value netlo#
directly attributable transaction costs and aresegbently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method (Note 2.21, 2.22 and2.24

2.28. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has amrebligation (legal or constructive) as a resiilt

a past event and it is probable that an outflowesources will be required to settle (repay) the
obligation. The provisions are valued based on llest estimate of the respective company
management and the Group at the date of the cdasedi statement of financial position of the
expenses necessary to settle the respective abligdthe estimate is discounted if the obligatien i
long-term. When part the resources required téesti¢ obligation are expected to be recovered from
a third party, the respective company of the Gnmagognises a receivable if it is virtually certénat
reimbursement will be received, its amount cangialsly measured and income (credit) is recognised
in the same item of the consolidated statemenbofprehensive income (within profit or loss for the
year) where the provision itself is presented (Nb8S).

2.29. Income taxes

Current income taxesf the Bulgarian companies of the Group are detexdhin accordance with the
requirements of the Bulgarian tax legislation — erporate Income Taxation Act (CITA). The
nominal income tax rate in Bulgaria for year 201dsvt0 % (2010: 10%).

The subsidiaries abroad are charged in accordaiibetive requirements of the respective local tax
regulations by applying the following tax rates:
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Subsidiary company Country Tax rate

2011 2010
Rostbalkanpharm ZAO Russia 20% 20%
Sopharma Poland OOD
in liquidation Poland 19% 19%
Sopharma Zdrovit AD —
in liquidation Poland 19% 19%
Sopharma Warsaw OOD Poland 19% 19%
PAO Vitamini Ukraine 23% 25%
Ivanchich and Sons OOD Serbia 10% 10%
Extab Corporation USA 15.35% 15.35%
Extab Pharma Limited United Kingdom 19% 19%
Briz OOD Latvia 15% 15%
Tabina OOD Belarus 24% 24%
Interpharm AD Belarus 24% 24%
Brititrade SOOO Belarus 24% 24%

Deferred income taxesre determined using the liability method on ethporary differences of each
consolidated company existing at the consolidatedntial statements date, between the carrying
amounts of the assets and liabilities and theibtses, including for those arising from consolafat
adjustments.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all dble temporary differences, with the exception of
those originating from recognition of an assetiability, which has not affected the accounting and
the taxable profit/(loss) as at the date of thedaation.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all dedaect#dmporary differences and the carry-forward of
unused tax losses, to the extent that it is prabdidy will reverse and a taxable profit will be

available or taxable temporary differences mightunc against which these deductible temporary
differences can be utilized, with the exceptionhaf differences arising from the initial recognitiof

an asset or liability, which has affected neitlier &ccounting nor taxable profit or loss as atdie

of the transaction.

The carrying amount of all deferred tax asset®vwsewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that thaly reverse and sufficient taxable profit to be
generated or occurring in the same period taxaoigorary differences to allow the deferred taxtasse
to be utilized (deducted or compensated).

Deferred taxes, related to items that are accouoteas other components of comprehensive income
or other item in the consolidated statement ofrfai@ position, are also reported directly in the
respective component or item.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measursddan tax rates, which are expected to be applied
for the period when the assets are expected tedlsed and the liabilities — settled (repaid) ba t
basis of the tax laws that are effective or likielyoe effective, and at tax rates of the countryaunrthe
jurisdiction of which the respective deferred assdiability is expected to be realised.
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As at 31 December 2011, the deferred income talkére dGroup companies in Bulgaria were assessed
at the rate of 10% valid for 2012 in Bulgaria whi@se of the subsidiaries abroad were as follows:

Subsidiary company Country Tax rate — year 2012
Rostbalkanpharm ZAO Russia 20%
Sopharma Poland OOD - in liquidation Poland 19%
Sopharma Zdrovit AD — in liquidation Poland 19%
Sopharma Warsaw OOD Poland 19%
PAO Vitamini Ukraine 21%
Ivanchich and Sons OOD Serbia 10%
Extab Corporation USA 15.35%
Extab Pharma Limited United Kingdom 20%
Briz OOD Latvia 15%
Tabina OOD Belarus 18%
Interpharm AD Belarus 18%
Brititrade SOOO Belarus 18%

Deferred tax assets of a Group company are pres@eteagainst the deferred tax liabilities of this
company when it is the tax payer in the respedtivisdiction, and this is only in cases where the
company is legally entitled to perform or receivw payments of current tax liabilities or income ta

receivables.

2.30. Grant from public institutions

A grant from public institutions is initially recagsed as deferred income (financing) when there is
reasonable assurance that it will be received ley Glnoup and that the latter has complied and
complies with the associated thereto requirements.

A grant from public institutions that compensates Company for expenses incurred is recognised in
current profit or loss on a systematic basis insidu@e period in which the expenses are recognised.

A grant from public institutions that compensategestment expenses incurred to acquire an asset is
recognised in current profit or loss on a systetnbaisis over the useful life of the asset usually
proportionately to the amount of the recognisedegption charge.

2.31. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividieigprofit or loss attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent company by the weighted aeeramber of ordinary shares outstanding during
the period.

The weighted average number of ordinary sharesamdg during the period is the number of

ordinary shares outstanding during at the beginoiripe period, adjusted by the number of ordinary
shares bought back or issued during the periodiphatl by a time-weighting factor. This factor
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represents the number of days that the sharesuéstaeding as a proportion of the total number of
days in the period.

In case of a capitalization, additional issue dit,spe number of the outstanding ordinary shasit
the date of such event, is adjusted as to reftexiptoportional change in the number of outstanding
ordinary shares as if the event has occurred ibégenning of the earliest presented period.

Diluted earnings per share are not calculated Isecaa dilutive potential ordinary shares have been
issued within the Group.

2.32. Segment reporting

The Group identifies its reporting segments andloées segment information in accordance with the
organisational and reporting structure used bynitamagement of the parent company for current
general monitoring and management of the Group itsxddomponents. Operating segments are
business components, which are regularly measuyednémbers of the management who take
operating decisions by using financial and opegaitniormation prepared specifically for the segment
for the purposes of current monitoring and assessroé performance and allocating Group’s

resources.

Group’s operating segments are currently monitosed directed separately as each of them
represents a separate business area that beapsisvémisiness risks and rewards. The operating
segments by which the Group’s management monitoessures and controls the risks and returns
thereof are identified in line with the main busigeactivities performed with pharmaceuticals,
namely: production and trade.

Information by operating segments

The Group uses one measuring unit — gross margifitjpfor measuring the results in the operating
segments and allocation of resources between theémdefined as the difference between segment
revenue and segment expenses directly attributatthe respective segment.

Segment assets, liabilities, respective revenygereses and results include those that are andecan b
directly attributable to the respective segmentvaell as such that can be allocated on a reasonable
basis, including inter-segment ones. Usually, tteeee (a) for revenue — sales of finished prodants
goods; (b) for expenses - raw materials and conblesaused, depreciation and amortisation and
production staff remuneration, carrying amount obds sold; (c) for assets — property, plant and
equipment, inventories, receivables from relatedigs trade receivables; (d) for liabilities — @nt
payables to personnel and for social security, Ipiggato related parties and trade payables.

Capital expenses (investments) by business segmentifferentiated expenses incurred in the period
of acquisition or construction of segment non-cotrr@ssets, which are expected to be used for more
than one period.
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The Group manages its investments in securitiegainetrade accounts and financial resources
granted/received as well as taxes at Group andaepeompany level but they are not allocated at
segment level.

The results of the operations regarded as acciden&s compared to the main types of operations
(activities) of the Group as well as revenue, espenliabilities and assets that are not subject to
allocation are stated separately in the item 'tataGroup level'. In general, these amounts include
other operating income unless originating from dperation of a particular segment, administrative
expenses, interest income and expenses, realisgédurmrealised gains and losses from foreign
currency transactions and investments, investmentsther companies, other receivables, loans
received, tax accounts, general-purpose produatidradministrative equipment.

Intersegmental transfers: segment revenue, segmg@nse and segment results include internal
transfers between business segments. These tmaséestated at competitive market prices charged
to non-related clients for similar goods and anmmielated at consolidated financial statements level

The investments in associates recorded under thityemethod are excluded from the assets by
segment and the revenue by segment. They are prdsempart of unallocated assets and the income
therefrom is presented in ‘gains/(losses) fromssoaiate, net’.

In addition, the Group discloses information regagdmportant clients when the amount of achieved
revenue from a client exceeds 10% of the total arnoticonsolidated revenue earned from Group’s
operations.

The applied accounting policy for segment reportingpased on that used by the Group for the
preparation of its statutory financial statementspublic purposes.

2.33. Critical accounting judgments on applying ti@&oup’s accounting policies. Key estimates and
assumptions of high uncertainty.

2.33.1. Revaluation of property, plant and equipnten

The initial revaluation of property, plant and gmuint of the parent company was made as at 1
January 2002 on the transition of the parent compganlFRS as a statutory financial reporting
framework for year 2003 for the first time.

Initial valuation of property, plant and equipmaeatt fair value for the purposes of the first-time
consolidation of the respective subsidiaries unBBRS was made by certified appraisers by applying
the same methods as described below by groupsetsaat the following dates:

e property, plant and equipment of subsidiaries aegluafter 1 January 2004 (date of the first-
time preparation of consolidated financial stateimesf the Group under IFRS) — at the
respective dates of acquisition;

e property, plant and equipment of subsidiaries aegubefore 1 January 2004 — at that date.
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The Group’s management again analyzed its key sapsete changes occurred as at 31 December
2010 and concluded that no conditions and groundee vavailable for a new revaluation and
impairment of the assets before expiry of adopgdbiterm. In addition, as at 31 December 2010 the
management of the Group performed a review fortiegigndications for impairment of individual
tangible fixed assets, which were not used in tperations. For the purpose, certain assets were
valued also by a certified appraiser. The followimgre used in the course of valuation: (a) faiugal
net of costs to sell determined under the ‘comparimethod’ (analogous prices) with adjustment
factor calculated through the ‘real cost methodp(eciated replacement cost); and (b) value in use,
determined on the basis of rental income less thranmon accompanying expenses on property
operation and adjustments for reflecting the spebiatures of the property itself and the operatio
loading by applying a discount factor adequateHterindustry.

As a result of the valuation and the assessmentiseomanagement in 2010, the Group recognised
impairment loss on tangible fixed assets at thewsrinof BGN 1,288 thousand presented under ‘other
operating expenses’ in the statement of compretemstome (Notes 9 and 10).

As at 31 December 2011, the Company performed arahreview and assessment for price changes
of property, plant and equipment with the assistasfccertified appraisers:

The following approaches and valuation methods weeal in the revaluation of property, plant and
equipment to measure the fair value of the diffetgpes (groups) of tangible fixed assets:

« ‘Market-based approach” through the ‘Market anaésymethod’ — with regard to land and
buildings for which actual market, market analogqueperty and deals and basis for
comparison existed and their market value deterthibg the comparative method was
accepted as fair value;

» 'Assets (expenses)-based approach’ through thédsletf amortised recoverable amount' —
for special-purpose buildings for which no actuarket existed, market/comparative sales of
analogous assets; their amortised recoverable anveam accepted as their fair value and
under the hypothesis of their common use in teduyichlly-related production business
process (including the term) and taking into ac¢ophysical ware, functional and economic
impairment.

Revaluation reserve at the amount of BGN 3,099 g¢hnd was recognised net of impairment as a
result of the revaluation made as at 31 Decembkt PQote 16).

The main information sources, used for fair valadculation, assumptions and assessment, with
regard to fair values cover: internal data and iopiof Group’s management and the management of
the respective company on the functional statuasskts, level of capacity utilization, intentiom fo
sale of specific assets, general repairs perforpepectives for assets utilization, public infation

on the financial, technical and operative statushefrespective company during the last five years,
published prices of realized transactions on reghte markets, information of realized or quoted
transactions for sale and purchase of similar assdfer data by manufacturers, merchants and
importers of new specialized machinery and equignaasnwell as of second-hand machinery and
equipment. (Note 16).
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In addition, the management of the Group has censitland analyzed the existing uncertainties (as a
result of the crisis) affecting the price levelsasbets and especially of real estate in the coateke
applied by the Company fair values, and is of thaion that the used values reflect reliably the
economic environment in the country and are adediateto. (Note 2.10).

2.33.2. Goodwill impairment

The management of the Group performed the necepsacgdures for the mandatory annual test for
impairment of goodwill recognised in the consolethtstatement of financial position on the
acquisition of the subsidiaries Bulgarian Rose §astis AD, PAO Vitamini, lvanchich and Sons
OOD, Sopharma Buildings REIT, Momina Krepost AD,ipharm AD, Briz OOD, Extab Corporation
USA, Tabina OO0 and ZAO Interpharm. For the purpdsavas accepted that each individual
company was in its capacity of a ‘cash generating’.uThe calculations were made by the
management of the Group and the assistance ofdapendent certified appraiser was used. The (pre-
tax) projected cash flows were based on the firridgets developed by the management of the
respective companies and of the Group as a whaledbvered a 5-year period as well as other
medium-term and long-term plans and intents fordeeelopment and restructuring of the activities
within the Group. The cash flows after the 5-yeaniqul were extrapolated at growth of 2-5 % against
the prior year — the frames of the long-term praimof inflation for the country and the limits thie
industry. The recoverable amount of each cash géngrunit was determined on the basis of the
‘value in use’.

The key assumptions used in the calculations ofserable value are as follows:
«  Growth rate — from 2% to 5% (2010: from 2 % to 3 %)

« Discount rate (based on the weighted average dosapital— WACC)- from 9.8% to
20.8% (2010: from 10.3 % to 16.7%).

The discount rate was determined specifically Borthegoodwill bearing company by year and in line
with its specific operations and business enviramme

The methods for establishing the market valuesi®finvestment in the separate company as a bearer
of the respective goodwill were applied as an a#tive approach to determine the recoverable
amount. The sources for determining these markieesawere both the stock exchange quotations
(mainly the Bulgarian Stock Exchange) and contrants offers of analogous items.

The tests and judgments of Group’s managemeninipairment of recognised goodwill were made

through the prism of its projections and intents@she future economic benefits expected by the
Group from its subsidiaries including through theeuof their internally created trademarks,

commercial and industrial experience and the géeeérand expected in the future thereby revenue,
ensuring position in the Bulgarian and internationsarkets (development and retaining), the

expectations for future sales and restructurinipefactivities, etc. (Note 17).
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As a result of the analyses and prognoses, the geament of the Group concluded that as at 31
December 2011 there were conditions for impairnmednthe recognised goodwill at the amount of
BGN 290 thousand (for the subsidiary Momina Krepa&t — BGN 254 thousand and for the

subsidiaries Extab Corporation and Extab PharnBi5N 36 thousand). Goodwill impairment was

recognised and recorded as at 31 December 201thdosubsidiary Momina Krepost AD — at the

amount of BGN 879 thousand.

2.33.3. Subsequent measurement of available-foresalvestments to fair value and treatment of the
results of negative revaluation

As at 31 December 2011, the Group made a detaibedparative analysis of the changes and
movements of stock-exchange prices in the Bulgasiaock market with regard to the shares in public
companies held thereby.

With regard to the investments in companies whbsees are registered for trading in the Bulgarian
Stock Exchange, the management of the Group pegfbm@search and analysis and is of the opinion
that the stock prices are not sufficiently diredtliglicative for the fair value of the respectivesdties
mainly because of the still significantly decreasetbmes. This circumstance lead to its decision to
change the valuation approach applied by 31 Dece&®8 — from direct stock (unadjusted) average
prices of realised deals in the stock market ferléist month of the financial year (Level 1) towested
stock prices (Level 2). The calculations for thadpisted stock prices were made by the management
with the assistance of independent certified apprai using for the purpose share prices of other
entities with similar characteristics, quoted oe Bulgarian Stock Exchange and/or other foreign
analogous stock exchanges (Notes 15 and 19).

For investments in companies whose shares argemgisfor trade in foreign ctock exchanges and
traded in sufficient volume of transaction in thapital market, it was accepted that they can be
subsequently measured at fair value determinedttjiren the basis of average prices of realisedsdea
in the stock exchange in the last month of thenftie year (Level 1). The applied prices were
additionally analysed for trends in the behaviodustock prices of the respective securities attléas
the last three months of the year and respectitelthe date of issue of the financial statemeNtite
19).

The management of the Group also used mandatogynalive valuation methods for additional
confirmation of the applied value as fair value lboth reporting years.

Specific analysis was also made of the behaviognagbh of the stock exchange prices and the fair
values, determined by alternative valuation metHods period of 18 months at 31 December, with
regard to all investments in available-for-saleusities, held by the Group for more than one year
from the acquisition date and trade in a stock argh, in order to determine whether conditionstexis
for permanent and significant impairment. As a ttestithis analysis, the following it was found for

part of the investments as at 31 December 2011 {end of retaining the low level of share prices

(b) continuous decrease against the prior periodpiices of analogous entities and/or existence of
other valuations of the held shares-investmenttereiéned by alternative valuation methods (e.g.
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discounted cash flows method, market analoguesghvdre maintained or decreased compared to the
values at the end of the prior year.

These results of the analysis are the groundshrpbsition of the management to recognise the
impairment amount of these available-for-sale itmesits and all previously accumulated losses (net)
to the reserve in the consolidated statement ofpcehensive income (within profit or loss for the
year) as ‘finance costs’ — at the amount of BGN22,6housand (2010: BGN 4,299 thousand) (Note
12).

With regard to available-for-sale securities, whigk not tradable in a stock exchange, analysis was
performed of the change in the net assets andethdts of the activities of the respective companie
for the latest three years, the specifics and graridhe business environment in which the company
operates. The accepted indicators for impairmestthe significant reduction of volumes, reporting
of losses for a longer period of time (more thane¢hyears), reporting of negative figure for netess
and the specifics of the business environment iichvthe company operates. As a result of the
performed analyses and calculations as at 31 Dezretii1l and 31 December 2010, no necessity in
impairment recognition of available-for-sale invasnts was found (Note 12).

2.33.4. Group companies operating in the environmehhyperinflationary economies

At 31 December 2011 the total inflation in Belafosthe last three years exceeded 100%. Therefore,
the management of the parent company has defirre@tbup companies performing their business
activities in Belarus as companies operating in éhgironment of hyperinflationary economy. In
addition, it undertakes all necessary measurehaothhe subsidiaries in Belarus are maintained to
operate under the going concern principle (Note 41)

Because of these circumstances, for the purposeshede consolidated financial statements
restatements for the effects of hyperinflation waiae for the first time of the figures in the ficéal
statements of the companies operating in BelaruBrititrade SOOO, Tabina OO0 and ZAO
Interpharm for 2011. The prior year comparativesewsot restated. The general index of consumer
prices officially determined and published by thatiNnal Statistics Committee of Belarus was
applied in these restatements.

The consumer price index in Belarus for the pefioch 2008 to 2011 is as follows:

Year 2008 2009 201( 2011
Consumer price index
compared to prior period (%) 13.4 9.8 10.1 108.7
2011
Q1 % Q2 % Q3 % Q4 %
January 1.4 April 4.5 July 3.5 October 8.2
February 2.7 May 13.1 August 8.9 November 8.1
March 1.9 June 8.6 September 13.6 December 2.3
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Inflation indices in the range from 1.708 to 2.08&re used for the restatement of the figures in the
financial statements of the subsidiaries in Belarus

The gain on the net monetary position from restatémfor hyperinflationary economy consists of:

2011

BGN ‘000

Brititrade 2,701
including: of goodwill 93
Tabina 1,425
including: of goodwill 713
4,126

2.33.5. Recognition of tax assets

On recognition of deferred tax assets, the manageofethe Group has assessed the probability the
individual deductible temporary differences to mseein the future and each of the Group companies’
capability to generate sufficient taxable profit their offset. The management of the Group has
assessed at the date of issue of the consolidaaacfal statements the subsidiaries that contioue
report losses in the last years with regard totiexjsignificant uncertainties as to whether and/bat
extent within the final term, determined with thespective local tax regulations for tax loss carry
forward, these companies would be able to genevafiécient taxable profit. As a result of this
analysis, it has taken a decision to not recogdeferred tax assets in the consolidated financial
statements at the amount of BGN 3,671 thousand{Z&N 3,755 thousand).

2.33.6. Inventories
Normal capacity

The normal production capacity of the parent corggardetermined on the grounds of the monthly
weighted average man-hours worked-out in three emutive reporting periods (years) individually
for each type of production and each workshop.

Allowance for impairment

At the end of each financial year, the Group comgmreview the state, useful life and usabilityhof
existing inventories. Where inventories are idésdifthat are potentially likely to not be realisad
their current carrying amount in the following refirmg periods, the Group companies impair the
inventories to net realisable value.

As a result of the performed reviews and analysest 81 December 2011, impairment of inventories
at the amount of BGN 1,111 thousand has been statbé consolidated statement of comprehensive
income (within profit or loss for the year) (20BGN 628 thousand) (Note 10).
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2.33.7. Impairment of receivables

The losses from doubtful and bad debts are estinatethe date of the consolidated financial
statements on individual basis for each receivableere difficulties in collecting certain receivabl
are observed, they are subject to analysis in otdedetermine the actually collectable portion
therefrom while the remaining portion to the nonhwvelue is recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income (within profit or loss foe year) as impairment (Note 10).

After 180 days of delay it is already consideredt tindicators for impairment may exist. In the
judgment of collectability of receivables, the mgaaent of the Group companies perform analysis of
the total exposure of each counterparty in ordestablish the actual possibility for their colleat

and not only at the level of past due individuateigables from the total amount due by the
counterparty. When the collectability of a receieafa group of receivables) is highly uncertain, an
assessment is made what part thereof is securedlliageral (pledge, mortgage, guarantees) and thus
with ensured collection (through future realisatairthe collateral or guarantee payment). Where the
management has judged that a very high uncertamigts as to the collectability of certain
receivables or part of them and they are not sdchyecollateral, the receivables are impaired to
100% (Notes 23 and 24).

The amount of recognised impairment losses for 20%t of the reversed ones) is BGN 1,572
thousand (2010: BGN 1,778 thousand) (Note 10).

2.33.8. Actuarial calculations

Calculations of certified actuaries have been wsenly year when determining present value of long-
term payables to personnel upon retirement on #ssbof assumptions for mortality rate, staff
turnover rate, future salaries level and discoaaotdr (Note 30).

2.33.9. Litigation provisions

With regard to the initiated litigations againse tkroup, the management together with Group’s
lawyers performed analysis and provisions at thewarhof BGN 102 thousand were included for the
cases where the probability and risks of a negatiteome at the present moment exceeded 50% (31
December 2010: BGN 99 thousand) (Notes 33) whitetie remaining cases no liability provision
was recognised in the statement of financial pmsiéis at 31 December 2011 (Note 39).

2.33.10. Operating lease

The Group classified a building, part of which Heekn leased to related parties under operating leas
terms, in the group of ‘property, plant and equiptheSince a significant part of the building was
used by the Group as well, the management decidaidthe building should not be treated as
investment property.
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3. REVENUE

Group revenuencludes:

Goods
Finished products

Sales of goods by type

Tablet dosage forms

Ampoule dosage forms

Consumables, dressing materials and apparatuses
Drops

Syrup dosage forms

Ointments

Food supplements and herbs

Other

Sales of finished products by type
Tablet dosage forms
Ampoule dosage forms
Syrup dosage forms
Lyophilic products
Ointments

Syringes

Infusion solutions
Blow-moulded articles
Veterinary vaccines
Other

2011 2010
BGN ‘000  BGN ‘000
397,196 366,463
247,535 233,871
644,731 600,334
2011 2010
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000
209,367 208,351
100,634 70,781
23,665 33,910
22,151 19,674
9,482 4,980
9,418 8,754
4,703 4,620
17,776 15,393
397,196 366,463
2011 2010
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000
176,134 159,241
28,477 28,832
17,001 18,982
5,943 10,486
4,941 6,186
2,191 1,987
1,986 1,654
1,015 973
806 896
9,041 4,634
247,535 233,871
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4. OTHER OPERATING INCOME AND LOSSES, NET

Other operating income and losses, nietlude:

Services rendered

Written-off liabilities

Income from penalties

Social activities and events

Grants from public institutions

Rentals

Gain/(loss) on sale of non-current assets
Insurance indemnities received

Surplus of assets

Net loss from exchange differences under tradevaikes and
payables and current accounts

Loss from changes in the fair value of investmeopprty
(Loss)/gains from sales of materials
Other

5. RAW MATERIALS AND CONSUMABLES USED

Expenses on materialsclude

Basic materials

Spare parts, laboratory and technical materials
Heat power

Electric energy

Fuels and lubricating materials

Water

Impairment of materials

Labour safety measures

Scrapped materials

Other

2011 2010
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000
1,854 1,270
764 570

782 -

559 367

433 561

405 971

173 (241)

103 35

37 240
(3,789) (1,304)
(109) (217)

3) 93

566 303
1,775 2,648
2011 2010
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000
64,194 54,240
5,858 4,058
4,501 3,062
4,262 3,428
3,246 3,107
909 855

446 106

729 578

101 142
2,278 1,410
86,524 70,986
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Expenses obasic materialanclude:

Substances

Packaging materials

Liquid and solid chemicals

Aluminium foil

Ampoules

Polypropylene, polyethylene, polystyrene
Herbs

Bags

Other

6. HIRED SERVICES EXPENSE

Hired services expensacludes:

Advertising

Manufacture

Buildings and equipment maintenance
Forwarding and transportation services
Commission fees

Consulting services

Bank and regulatory charges

Services under civil contracts with physical pesson
Rentals

Insurance

Subscription fees

Logistic services

Services on drug registration

Local taxes and charges

Security

Announcements and communications
Motor vehicles repair

Taxes on expenses

Documentation translation

Medical service

Service fees

Drug destruction services

Analysis

Other

2011 2010
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000
31,827 26,483
11,858 9,819
5,995 5,146
5,832 5,675
2,495 2,328
1,511 1,003
1,430 1,666
1,137 742
2,109 1,378
64,194 54,240
2011 2010
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000
14,696 12,993
13,830 20,774
3,735 2,500
3,181 3,384
3,081 3,413
2,643 2,273
2,003 1,940
1,732 1,035
1,625 1,380
1,397 1,333
1,213 977
1,137 1,028
958 571
912 1,051
883 950
824 1,147
784 429
554 504
511 629
510 431
487 968
344 141
226 158
2,070 1,138
59,336 61,147
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7. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Personnel costsclude:

Current wages and salaries

Social security/health insurance contributions
Social benefits and payments

Accruals for unused paid leaves

Social security/health insurance contributionseaves

Accruals for long-term benefits to personnel upetirement
(Note 29)

8. CARRYING AMOUNT OF GOODS SOLD

Thecarrying amount of goods sold by tyeas follows:

Tablet dosage forms

Ampoule dosage forms

Drops

Consumables, dressing materials and apparatuses
Syrup dosage forms

Ointments

Food supplements and herbs

Other

2011 2010
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000
50,470 41,206
9,981 8,349
3,196 2,207
552 456
164 110
219 1,072
64,582 53,400
2011 2010
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000
198,925 195,508
92,930 67,103
20,280 18,027
21,264 31,148
10,210 4,904
8,914 8,507
4,415 4,196
14,053 7,701
370,991 337,094
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9. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Other operating expensesaclude:

Charged/(reversed) impairment of current assetqNute 10)
Entertainment allowances

Business trips

Scrap and shortages of goods

Taxes and interest on taxes payable to the budget
Donations

Training

Scrap and shortages of finished products and wopkagress
Scrapping of non-current assets

Receivables written-off

Unrecognised input tax

Other

10. IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

2011 2010
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000
2,683 2,406
2,541 2,324
1,446 793
557 713
567 151
470 619
356 274
231 508
226 193
178 20
109 143
366 622
9,730 8,766

Impairment losse®n receivables, work in progress, finished proslactd goods, net include:

Impairment of receivables

Reversed impairment of receivables

Net change in the impairment of receivables (Not239 24
and 25)

Impairment of finished products (Note 9)

Impairment of goods (Note 9)
Impairment of work-in-progress
(Note 9)

2011 2010
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000
1,792 2,126
(220) (348)
1,572 1,778
900 368
209 114
2 146
2,683 2,406
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Impairment losses on nc-current assetsnclude:

2011 2010

BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000

Impairment of property, plant and equipment (Nddg 1 1,68: 1,28¢
Impairment of goodwill (Note 17) 29C 87¢
1,97 2,167

The impairment of tangible fixed assets, intangddeets and goodwill is recorded in the statemient o

comprehensive income (within profit or loss for jfear) to ‘depreciation and amortisation expense’.

11. FINANCE INCOME

Finance incomeincludes: 2011 2010
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000
Interest income on loans granted 4,638 2,646
Interest income on past due payments 1,467 1,926
Interest income from deposits 440 392
Net gain from exchange differences on loans inioreurrency 388 S77
Income from equity investments 80 106

Gain on valuation of previously held shares to vailue on
acquisition of a subsidiary in stages - 490
Interest on receivables under specific contracts - 109
7,013 6,246

12. FINANCE COSTS
Finance costsnclude: 2011 2010
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000
Interest expense on loans received 8,298 8,417
Impairment of available-for-sale investments 2,624 4,299
Bank fees and charges on loans and guarantees 529 551
Interest expense on finance lease 256 226
Expenses on investments in securities 6 399
Interest on discounted liabilities - 291
11,713 14,183
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13. LOSSES FROM ASSOCIATES

Losses from associatésclude:

Goodwill impairment

Share in the loss for the year

Impairment to fair value on a merger in a subsidiar

Recycling of Group's share in the negative avagldbi-sale financial

assets reserve on the merger of
an associate into a subsidiary

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income (gdrbor
loss for the year)

Taxable profit of the Group companies for the year
Revaluation reserve included as an increase iarthaal tax
return

Tax profit for the year

Current income tax expense for the year -

10 %, 15%, 15.35%, 19%, 20%, 23 %, 24%
(2010: 10%, 15%, 19%, 20%, 25%)

Tax relief

Prior periods tax expense

Deferred income taxes

Occurrence and reversal of temporary differences
Tax rate change (in Ukraine)

Total income tax expense carried to the consolidade
statement of comprehensive income (within profit otoss
for the year)

2011 2010
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000
273 -
133 -
- 680
- 285
406 965
2011 2010
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000
64,230 57,983
(196) (88)
64,034 57,895
(6,655) (5,917)
- 97
(35) -
2,128 320
(58) -
(4,620) (5,500)
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Reconciliation of income tax expense applicable the 2011 2010
consolidated accounting profit or loss
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000
Accounting profit for the year 45,045 47,962
Income tax — 10 %, 15%, 15.35%, 19%, 20%, 23 %, 24%
(2010: 10%, 15%, 19%, 20%, 24%, 25%) (3,959) (5,266)
Unrecognised amounts under the tax return
Related to increases (959) (1,076)
Related to decreases 517 845
Tax loss from the current year on which no defeteadassets
are recognised (126) (100)
Tax relief - 97
Prior periods tax expense (35) -
Tax rate change (in Ukraine) (58) -
Total income tax expense carried to the consolidade
statement of comprehensive income (within profit otoss for (4,620) (5,500)
the year)
The tax effects regarding other components of celmsive income are as follows:
2011 2010
BGN'000 BGN'000

Pre-tax Tax benefitt  Amount Pre-tax Tax benefitt  Amount net

amount (expense) net of tax amount (expense) of tax
Plet chan_ge in_the fair value of available- 283 ) 283 4.267 ) 4.267
or-sale financial assets
Gain/(loss) on revaluation of property, 3.099 305 2774 67 5 62
plant and equipment ' (325) ' ®)
Exchange differences from restating
foreign operations (826) } (826) (487) - (487)
Total other comprehensive income for 2 556 395 2931 3847 5 3842
the year ' (325) ' ' ) '
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15. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Other components of

comprehensive income comprehensive income

attributable to the

Total other
components of
comprehensive income

Other components of

attributable to non-

Group controlling interest
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'0O00 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000
Change in the fair value of available-for-sale 289 3,982 (6) - 283 3,982
financial assets
Change in the fair value of available-for-sale - 285 - - - 285
financial assets of an associate
Gain/(loss) on revaluation of property, plant 2787 61 312 6 3.099 67
and equipment ' '
Exchange differences from restating foreign (1,028) (232) 202 (255) (826) (487)
operations '
Income tax relating to components of other (286) (5) (39) i} (325) (5)
comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income for the yeal 1762 4091 469 (249) 2931 3842

net of tax

The revaluation to fair value of the available-fade financial assets existing as at 31 DecembEt 20

was based on adjusted stock exchange prices datsimiith the assistance of independent certified

appraisers except for securities traded on stockange abroad (Latvia). For the latter it was ateszkp

to be valued directly based on 'average price®alfsed deals on the stock exchange in the lasthmo

of the financial year (Notes 2.27.1 and 2.33.3).

As at 31 December 2011, an overall review and ass&st was performed for price changes of

tangible fixed assets with the assistance of indepet certified appraisers. As a result of the

revaluation made at 31 December 2011 a revalua¢iserve was recognised at the amount of BGN

3,099 thousand, net of impairment losses (Note 16).
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Land and Plant and Other Assets in Total

buildings equipment progress

2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000
Book value
Balance at 1 January 133,274 119,155 105,731 98,032 27,389 23,671 17,986 4,344 284,380 245,202
Additions 909 439 2,542 2,620 3,755 1,632 35,029 14,304 42,235 18,995
gy aosets In & newly acquired 8 10,717 90 3311 41 3105 - 1,794 139 18927
Acquired assets from a merger of a
company in a subsidiary - 3,636 - 1,428 - - - - - 5,064
Effect of revaluation to fair value 446 - (109) 11 - - - 1 337 12
Effects of foreign currency and 118 107 (25) (80) 5 (46) 47 70 145 51
hyperinflationary restatements
Disposals (57) (212) (1,045) (654) (712) (1,121) (10) (552) (1,824) (2,539)
Allowance for impairment (2,510) (28) 19 - (6) (23) - - (2,497) (51)
Transfer to property, plant and 5,171 739 8,948 1,063 2,466 171 (16,585) (1,975) - )
equipment
Transfer (to)/from investment
property - (1,279) - - - - - - - (1,279)
Balance at 31 December 137,359 133,274 116,151 105,731 32,938 27,389 36,467 17,986 322,915 284,380
Accumulated depreciatic
and impairment
Balance at 1 January 8,275 4,180 54,474 47,689 13,081 10,563 - - 75,830 62,432
D o 3,258 2,966 8,766 7,291 3,704 3,064 - - 15,728 13,321
epreciation charge for the year

Allowance for impairment (839) 1,237 25 - - - - - (814) 1,237
Effect of revaluation to fair value az7) 3 (2,635) 23 ° ®) ° - (2762) 21
Effects of foreign currency and 16 - 1 (23) 1) 46 - - 16 23
hyperinflationary restatements
Depreciation written-off (8) (111) (946) (506) (467) (587) - - (1,421) (1,204)
Balance at 31 December 10,575 8,275 59,685 54,474 16,317 13,081 - - 86,577 75,830
Carrying amount at 31 December 126,784 124,999 56,466 51,257 16,621 14,308 36,467 17,986 236,338 208,550
Carrying amount at 1 January 124,999 114,975 51,257 50,343 14,308 13,108 17,986 4,344 208,550 182,770

As at 31 December 2011, the tangible fixed assetieoGroup include: land amounting to BGN
40,754 thousand (31 December 2010: BGN 39,657 #ml)sand buildings of carrying amount
BGN 86,030 thousand (31 December 2010: BGN 85,8d@sand).

Tangible fixed assets in progress as at 31 Deceimblede:

* expenses on new buildings construction — BGN 27t8ddsand (31December 2010: BGN

8,922 thousand);

e buildings reconstruction - BGN 2,834 thousand (&t@&mber 2010: BGN 5,821 thousand);
* supply of equipment — BGN 1,376 thousand (31 Deezrb10: BGN 3,097 thousand);

e advances granted — BGN 4,171 thousand (31 Decex®id€x BGN 142 thousand);
» other - BGN 242 thousand (31 December 2010: BGhb8gand)

This is a translation from Bulgarian of the consglatlied financial statements of Sopharma Group far 811.
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The following encumbrances were established oniltéandixed assets of the Group as at 31
December 2011 in relation to received loans (N2#and 32) as follows:

* Land and buildings with carrying amount of BGN 1E5thousand and BGN 55,032
thousand, respectively (31 December 2010: resmdgtiBGN 15,015 thousand and BGN
33,885 thousand);

* Pledges on facilities with carrying amount of BGB4thousand (31 December 2010: BGN
815 thousand);

* Pledges on equipment — BGN 27,286 thousand (31 rDleee 2010: BGN 10,284
thousand);

e Motor vehicles of carrying amount BGN 1,076 thoubsé8il December 2010: none);

* Furniture and fixtures with carrying amount of BAN5 thousand (31 December 2010:
none);

* Non-current assets in progress — BGN 159 thousdh@®écember 2010: none).

The carrying amount of the tangible fixed assetstémvehicles) of the Group obtained under finance
lease as at 31 December 2011 was BGN 2,578 tho@3aridecember 2010: BGN 883 thousand).

Operating lease

The Group has leased fixed tangible assets wittyiogramount of BGN 2,167 thousand as at 31
December 2011 to related parties (31 December 2BEN 5,226 thousand). In addition, tangible
fixed assets at carrying amount of BGN 435 thousaerk leased to third parties as at 31 December
2011 (31 December 2010: BGN 2,054 thousand).

The carrying amount of Group’s tangible fixed asggbvided under operating lease by type of assets
is as follows:
31.12.201 31.12.201
1 0
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000

Buildings 2,536 7,071
Machinery and equipment 66 208
Motor vehicles - 1
2,602 7,280
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17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill Intellectual property Software Other Assets in progress Total
rights
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'O00 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'OO0O BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000
Book value
Balance at 1 January 19,42t 13,95¢ 7,912 2,35¢ 4,49¢ 1,86% 1,681 1,722 51€ 2,33¢ 34,033 22,23¢
Additions 2,58¢ 5,25¢ 41 105 687 697 - 3 1,87¢ 164 5,19C 6,222
Acquired assets in a
subsidiary - - 1,031 5,521 - 7 46C - - - 1,491 5,52¢
Effects of foreign currency
and hyperinflationary (411) 21€ (35) (99) - () (175) (44) - - (621) 74
restatements
Transfer - - 314 55 - 1,932 - - (314)  (1,987)
Disposals - @) - (28) () @) - - (14) - (19) (30)
Balance at 31 December 21,60z 19,42¢ 9,262 7,912 5,181 4,49¢ 1,966 1,681 2,062 51€ 40,074 34,033
Accumulated amortisation and impairme
Balance at 1 January 6,531 5,652 1,31¢ 820 1,452 99€ 37¢ 24& - - 9,676 7,71:
Amortisation charge for .
the year 1,195 556 76€ 457 17C 15¢ - - 2,131 1,17z
Allowance for impairment 290 87¢ - - - - - - - - 29C 87¢
Effects of foreign currency
and hyperinflationary - 1 1 (33) - - 2 (26) - - 3 (58)
restatements
Amortisation written-off - @) - (28) (5) 1) - - - - (5) (30)
Balance at 31 December 6,821 6,531 2,511 1,31¢ 2,21z 1,452 55C 37¢ - - 12,095  9,67¢
Carrying amount at 31
December 14,781  12,89¢ 6,752 6,597 2,96¢ 3,047 1,416 1,308 2,06z 51€ 27,97¢ 24,351
Carrying amount at 1
January 12,89¢ 8,302 6,591 1,53¢ 3,047 869 1,30¢ 1,471 51€ 2,33¢ 24,357 14,52¢

The rights on intellectual property include mairgyoducts of development activities related to
medicinal substances and dosage forms and acqatedts and trademarks.

Within the total intellectual property, owned byetksroup, the largest share belongs to internally
created trademarks, which have not been capitalisethe consolidated statement of financial
position. These trademarks grant exceptional rightthe names of pharmaceuticals while those with
biggest relative share in the sales of the Groep @arsil, Tempalgin, Broncholitin, Tabex, Analgin,
Tribestan, Vicetin, Sydnopharm, Antistenocardina8palgon, Softensif, Chlofadon, Chlofasolin,
Sofafailin, Sopral, Vasopren, Buscolisin, NivalMaraslavin, Dimex, Allergosan, Aminalon.

Capitalised trademarks as a result of performednbas combinations are as follows: Probiotic,
Laxomucil, Alfalipoin, Influrex, etc. The patent Ideis for production of dosage forms containing
Ranitidin.

The other intangible assets include mainly excligigntracts with counterparts acquired in business
combinations.

As a result of the analysis, valuations and praest performed, the management of the Group
recognised in 2011 impairment of part of the godidefi the subsidiary Momina Krepost AD at the
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amount of BGN 254 and Extab companies at the anmfuBGN 36 thousand (2010: Momina Krepost
AD — BGN 879 thousand) (Note 10).

For the remaining goodwill recognised in the comsted statement of financial position it was
assessed that no conditions for impairment exidtede 2.33.2).

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

2011 2010
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000
Balance at 1 January 6,821 5,572
Additions 37 130
Disposals (210) -
Effect of restatement 16 -
Fair value m_eas_ured as at_31_ Dece_mber, carridtbtsthitement of (109) (217)
comprehensive income (within profit or loss for tfear) (Note 4)
Transfer from property, plant and equipment - 1,279
Fair value measured at transfer, carried to thaelvetion reserve - 57
Balance at 31 December 6,555 6,821

The investment property represent buildings andiafg separated parts from buildings of Group
companies for individual exploitation, intended fong-term rent-out to third parties for income
generating purposes.
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19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

The carrying amount of the investments by comparasifollows:

31.12.2011 Interest 31.12.2010 Interest

BGN'000 % BGN'000 %
Doverie United Holding AD Bulgaria 12,87( 14.87 14,63( 13.87
Medica AD Bulgaria 2,42( 10.13 2,49z 9.45
Krimgas OAO Ukraine 2,09¢ 9.07 2,04¢ 9.07
including: book value 2,79¢ - 2,721 -
allowance for impairment (700) - (681) -
Lavena AD Bulgaria 732 8.58 - -
Olainfarm AD Latvia 703 0.77 617 0.77
Elpharma AD Bulgaria 66E 19 66E 19
including: book value 1,52( 1,52(
allowance for impairment (855) (855)
Maritzatex AD Bulgaria 14¢€ 3.68 247 8.01
Sopharma Properties REIT Bulgaria 11F 0.36 1 -
Balkanpharma Razgrad AD Bulgaria 70 - 70 -
Hydroizomat AD Bulgaria 51 3.74 44 2.93
Todorov AD Bulgaria 47 4.97 -
United Health Insurance Fund
Doverie AD Bulgaria 15 0.5 15 0.5
CF Status New Shares Bulgaria 12 0.25 12 0.3
Ecobulpack AD Bulgaria 7 1.48 7 1.48
Aik Banka AD Serbia 4 0.002 9 0.007
Bulgarian Stock Exchange Bulgaria 4 0.03 - -
Privredna Banka AD Serbia 3 0.019 5 0.019
UniCredit Bulbank AD Bulgaria 3 0.001 3 0.001
Agrobank AD Serbia 2 0.007 6 0.01
Balkanpharma Dupnitsa AD Bulgaria 2 - 2 -
Metals Banka AD Serbia 1 0.008 2 0.008
Dunav Insurance AD Serbia 1 0.012 1 0.012
Aroma Bulgaria 1 0.03 - -
CF Elana Money Market Fund Bulgaria - - 53 0.42
19,97 20,927

As at 31 December, the investments with sharestexgd for trading in a stock exchange listed é th
table below, are measured at fair value based justad stock exchange prices for shares traded on
the Bulgarian Stock Exchange (Level 2), exceptd@infarm AD - measured based on average stock
exchange prices for the month of December for shiaaeled on a foreign stock exchange (Level 1).
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31.12.2011 31.12.2010
Number of Fair value per Fair value as Number of  Fair value per Fair value as
shares held share per the shares held share per the
statement of statement of
financial financial
position position
BGN BGN'000 BGN BGN'000
Doverie United
Holding AD 2,081,067 6.18 12,870 1,930,665 7.58 14,630
Medica AD 1,019,550 2.37 2,420 951,929 2.62 2,492
Olainfarm AD* 108,500 6.48 703 108,500 5.68 617
Lavena AD 17,174 42.63 732 - - -
Maritzatex AD 16,270 8.96 146 37,561 6.59 247
Hydroizomat AD 48,572 1.04 51 38,075 1.15 44
Sopharma Properties
REIT 46,866 2.46 115 100 2.50 -
Todorov AD 0.27 0.27 46 - - -
Bulgarian Stock
Exchange — Sofia
AD 2.6 2.6 4 - - -
Aroma AD 0.37 0.37 1 - - -
17,088 18,030

* measured based on average stock exchange poicgsefmonth of December for shares traded onedgorstock exchange
(Level 1)

20. LOANS GRANTED TO RELATED PARTIES

31.12.2011  31.12.2010
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000

Companies under a common indirect control
, 729 121
through key managing personnel
Main shareholding companies - 3,074
729 3,195

As at 31 December 2011, the Group granted a loan dompany under a common indirect control
through key managing personnel under the follow&rms and conditions:

Contracted amount: EUR 1,100 thousand

Interest rate: 8.08%

Maturity: 31 December 2014

Collateral: None

Purpose of the loan: For working capital

Balance at 31 December 2011 BGN 729 thousand (31 December 2010: none)
including interest BGN 1 thousand (31 December 2010: none)
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As at 31 December 2010, the Group granted a loathter company under a common indirect control
under the following terms and conditions:

Contracted amount: BGN 120 thousand
Interest rate: 8.08%

Maturity: 10 February 2012
Collateral: None

Purpose of the loan: For working capital
Balance at 31 December 2010 BGN 121 thousand
including interest BGN 1 thousand

As at 31 December 2010, the Group granted a loaa tnain shareholding company under the
following terms and conditions:

Contracted amount: EUR 1,500 thousand

Interest rate: 5.50%

Maturity: 10 February 2012

Collateral: None

Purpose of the loan: For working capital

Balance at 31 December 2011 none (31 December 2010: BGN 3,074 thousand)
including interest none (31 December 2010: BGN 140 thousand)

21. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Theother current assetsf the Group as at 31 December include:

31.12.2011 31.12.2010
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000

Loans granted 52C 44%
Guarantee deposits 32C 123
Other 8 33

84¢ 601

The two largest loans granted to the Group as &@&¥mber 2011 were at the amount of BGN 394
thousand (31 December 2010: BGN 389 thousand)DoAimentari, Italy, at interest rate of 8% (31
December 2010: 8%) and term for repayment - ye@&1231 December 2010: 2021), and at the
amount of BGN 112 thousand (31 December 2010:. )num&rizpharm, Belarus, at interest rate of
6% (31 December 2010: none) and term for repaymegetrr 2017 (31 December 2010: none).

71
This is a translation from Bulgarian of the consgatlied financial statements of Sopharma Group far 811.



SOPHARMA GROUP

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

The guarantee deposits include mainly receivalilédsesamount of BGN 272 thousand (31 December

2010: none) under guarantees granted in relatitmaviong-term rental contract with ultimate term i

2016.

22. INVENTORIES
Inventoriesinclude:

Goods

Finished products
Materials
Semi-finished products
Work-in-progress

Goodsby type are as follows:

Tablet dosage forms

Ampoule dosage forms
Syrups

Drops

Ointments

Goods in a process of delivery
Isotopes

Other

Finished productsexisting at 31 December include:

Tablet dosage forms
Ampoule dosage forms
Syrups

Other

Materials by type are as follows:

Basic materials

Materials in a process of delivery

Technical materials
Auxiliary materials
Spare parts

Other

31.12.2011  31.12.2010
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000
53,256 51,267
38,409 26,039
26,142 24,285
3,813 4,950
4,402 5,144
126,022 111,685
31.12.2011  31.12.2010
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000
28,719 27,219
10,717 7,402
2,176 1,450
1,830 2,147
1,385 968

521 2,726

3 1,514

7,905 7,841
53,256 51,267
31.12.2011  31.12.2010
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000
23,659 16,574
6,091 4,438
3,490 1,625
5,169 3,402
38,409 26,039
31.12.2011  31.12.2010
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000
22,006 20,707
2,333 1,729

466 381

451 549

285 392

601 527
26,142 24,285
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Basic materialdy type are as follows: 31.12.2011 31.12.2010
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000
Substances 13,188 11,758
Vials, tubes and ampoules 3,805 3,297
Chemicals 1,561 1,308
Packaging materials 1,387 1,297
PVC and aluminium foil 934 1,439
Herbs 540 896
Other 591 712
22,006 20,707

As at 31 December 2011, there were establishedadpéedges on inventories at the amount of BGN
85,001 thousand (31 December 2010: BGN 59,133 #mul)sas collateral under received by the
Group bank loans and issued bank guarantees (R6t&32 and 38).

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES

31.12.201
Trade receivablemclude: 31.12.2011 0

BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000

Receivables from clients 134,789 143,729
Impairment of uncollectible receivables (3,296) (2,732)
Receivables from clients, net 131,493 140,997
Advances to suppliers 5,315 4,591
Impairment of advances (52) (65)
Advances granted, net 5,263 4,526

136,756 145,523

Thereceivables from clientare interest-free and are mainly denominated iNBGd EUR.

Usually the Group companies negotiate with theienté payment term from 30 to 180 days for
receivables under sales unless there are deternsipecific conditions for maturity for particular
clients.

The Group has set a common credit period of 188 faywhich no interest is charged to clients. Any
delay after this period is regarded by the Grouprasndicator for impairment. The management of
the Group companies assess collectability by aimaythe exposure of the particular client, the
opportunities for settlement (of the client andotigh the collateral) and take decision on the
recognition and charging of the respective impairme
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Theage structureof non-matured (regular) trade receivables iHews:

31.12.2011 31.12.2010
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000
up to 30 days 37,022 56,921
from 31 to 90 days 46,713 33,755
from 91 to 180 days 19,986 8,643
from 180 to 360 days 4,573 4,814
from 1 to 2 years 205 2,528
over 2 years 652 142
109,151 106,803
Theage structureof past due but not impaired trade receivables ifollows:
31.12.2011 31.12.2010
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000
from 31 to 90 days 5,459 11,881
from 91 to 180 days 1,513 2,032
from 180 to 365 days 4,148 1,321
from 1 to 2 years 2,830 3,792
over 2 years 1,333 1,835
15,283 20,861

With regard to the past due but not impaired readdis, there are agreements already achieved or

under preparation for interest rescheduling of payis for each individual client (including penalty
interest for delay).

Theage structureof past due impaired trade receivables is asvi@io

31.12.2011 31.12.2010

BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000

from 31 to 90 days 216 283
from 91 to 180 days 1,013 1,463
from 180 to 365 days 1,711 5,838
over 1 year 7,415 8,481
allowance for impairment (3,296) (2,732)
7,059 13,333

The larger part of the past due impaired receigalsidrom state hospitals and interest is charged a
invoiced thereon. For this reason, the managemititeoGroup took a decision only for a partial
impairment of the above receivables.
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As at 31 December 2011, there were establishedadedges on trade receivables at the amount of
BGN 54,872 thousand (31 December 2010: BGN 54 4é@sand) as collateral under received by the
Group bank loans and issued bank guarantees (R6t&32 and 38).

Movement of the allowance for impairment

2011 2010

BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000

Balance at the beginning of the year 2,732 2,131
Impairment amount 865 1,590
Amounts written-off as uncollectable (113) (708)
Reversal of impairment (180) (281)
Transferred impairment of litigations (8) -
Balance at the end of the year 3,296 2,732

The advances grantedb suppliers are regular and are mainly denomethatdBGN and EUR and are
for the purchase of:

31.12.2011 31.12.2010

BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000

Raw and other materials 2,501 1,253
Goods 1,618 2,786
Services 1,123 547
Other 73 5
Allowance for impairment (52) (65)
5,263 4,526
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24. RECEIVABLES FROM RELATED PARTIES

Receivables from related partiésclude

Receivables from companies under a common indoediol
through key managing personnel

Receivables from main shareholding companies
Receivables from companies under a common indbetol

Thereceivables from related partidsy type are as follows:

Trade loans granted
Receivables on sales of finished products and iaiger
Receivables on transactions with investments

Trade loans granted to related partiby type of related party are as follows:

Companies under a common indirect control through
key managing personnel

Main shareholding companies
Companies under a common indirect control

31.12.201

1 31.12.2010

BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000
36,088 18,886
14,898 13,003
12,127 13,933
63,113 45,822
31.12.2011 31.12.2010
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000
62,040 44,160
1,073 1,559

- 103

63,113 45,822
31.12.2011 31.12.2010
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000
36,088 18,783
14,861 13,378
11,091 11,999
62,040 44,160

76

This is a translation from Bulgarian of the consgatlied financial statements of Sopharma Group far 811.



SOPHARMA GROUP
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

Thegranted loansare as follows:

Contracted
Currency amount Maturity Interest 31.12.2011 31.12.2010
‘000 % BGN'00C  BGN '00C BGN'00C  BGN '00C
in_cluding in(_:luding
interest interes’
to companies under a common indirect control thrduggey managing personnel
BGN 14,287 31122012 g 309 14,492 662 13,493 563
EUR 7,200 25.10.2012 4,50% 14,164 82 ) )
EUR 1,581 31.12.2012 5.50% 3,387 205 i i
BGN 2411 31122012 8.08% 2,669 288 2,477 96
BGN 945 31122012 g ogy 1,011 211 945 14¢
BGN 190 31.12.2012 8.08% 211 21 196 6
BGN 120 10.07.2012 8.08% 101 i i i
BGN 500 31.12.2012 8.08% 53 3 ) )
BGN 1,100 31.12.2011 8.08% i i 1115 15
BGN 540 31.12.2011 8.08% i i 557 17
to main shareholding companies
EUR 4,035 30.09.2012 4.80% 7.091 99 ) )
BGN 18,495 31082012 g gy 6,467 - 6,214 ;
BGN 300 31.12.2012 8.08% 403 103 379 79
EUR 1,686 30.09.2012 5 50% i i 3.344 47
EUR 1,500 26.01.2012 5.50% . - 3,081 147
EUR 179 30.06.2012 5 50% i i 360 10
to companies under a common indirect control
EUR 7,000 28.12.2012 4.50% 10,604 i i i
BGN 570 15.03.2012 8.08% 350 ) ) )
BGN 120 10.02.2012 g gggs 137 17 128 8
BGN 4,374 31.12.2011 5.08% i i 3.945 i
EUR 1,581 01.04.2011 5 504 - - 3,217 125
EUR 12,286 31.12.2011 5.50% ) ) 2783 )
BGN 5,701 31.12.2011 8.08% i i 1.875 13
BGN 350 30.06.2012 8.08% ) ) 51 )
62,040 1,781 44,160 1,272

The loans were granted for working capital of thspective counterparts. As at 31 December 2011,
the loans were not additionally secured with spqii&dge or guarantee, except for promissory notes
received at the amount of BGN 17,551 thousand @dehber 2010: none).

The receivables on sales of finished products and mitisrare interest-free and denominated in
BGN and in EUR.

The Group companies usually negotiate payment tbehseen 90 and 180 days for receivables on
sales of finished products and up to 30 days foeivables on sales of materials (incl. substances).

The Group has set a maximum credit period of uge® days for which no interest is charged to sales
counterparts — related parties. Any delay aftes piariod is regarded by the Group as an indicator f
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impairment. The management of the Group compargsssa collectability by analysing the specific
receivables and the position of the debtor com@enwell as the circumstances for the delay and the
opportunities for repayment and after that, theketa decision on whether impairment shall be
recognised and charged on individual basis anchat amount.

Theage structureof non-matured (regular) trade receivables frolateel parties is as follows:

31.12.2011 31.12.2010
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000

up to 30 days 564 451
from 31 to 90 days 103 37¢
from 91 to 180 days 1 31

66¢ 86C

Theage structureof past due but not impaired trade receivables frelated parties is as follows:

31.12.2011 31.12.2010
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000

from 31 to 90 days 11 241
from 181 to 365 days - 8
from 1 to 2 years 394 45C

405 69¢

Theage structureof past due impaired receivables from relatedgmis as follows:

31.12.2011 31.12.2010
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000

over 1 year 399 343
Allowance for impairment (399) (343)

Movement of the allowance for impairment

2011 2010

BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000

Balance at 1 January 343 287
Impairment amount 56 56
Balance at 31 December 399 343
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25. OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

Other receivables and prepaymenmkthe Group include:

31.12.2011 31.12.2010

BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000

Court and awarded receivables 14,998 6,626
Impairment of court receivables (496) (1,332)
Court and awarded receivables, net 14,502 5,294
Taxes refundable 5,657 4,125
Prepayments 1,930 1,254
Loans granted to third parties 1,239 1,254
Receivables on deposits placed as guarantees 508 296
Amounts granted to an investment intermediary 197 83
Other 299 334
24,332 12,640

The court and awarded receivables originate mamhglation to sales to state hospitals. For mést o
them there are agreed or under negotiations repaysobedules and therefore, the management of the
Group has taken a decision for only a partial impant of the above receivables.

Taxes refundablenclude: 31.12.2011 31.12.2010
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000
Excise duties 2,856 2,125
VAT 2,346 1,752
Income tax 350 139
Withholding taxes 105 109
5,657 4,125
Prepaymentsnclude: 31.12.2011 31.12.2010
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000
Insurance 620 676
Subscriptions 354 208
Vouchers 203 -
Licence and patent fees 190 58
Advertising 189 154
Rentals 141 27
Other 233 131
1,930 1,254
79

This is a translation from Bulgarian of the consgatlied financial statements of Sopharma Group far 811.



SOPHARMA GROUP
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

The loans granted to third parties amounted to B89 thousand (31 December 2010: BGN 1,254
thousand) and were granted to seven entities —teqanrts, for working capital. The annual agreed
interest for these loans for 2010 was between &&4d@% (2010: 8.08% and 10.8%).

26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

31.12.2011 31.12.2010
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000

Cash at current bank accounts 18,754 37,584
Short-term deposits 13,114 6,316
Cash in hand 292 1,031
Blocked funds 75 138

32,235 45,069

The cash and cash equivalents of the Group arelyndanominated in BGN and in EUR (31
December 2010: BGN and EUR).

The average level of annual interest on currenb@as in BGN and foreign currency is within the
range from 0.1% to 0.2% (2010: from 0.1% to 0.2%).

The blocked funds as at 31 December 2011 refear@éiformance guarantees at the amount of BGN
75 thousand ( 31 December 2010: the blocked fundee Wor guarantee deposits on sales of
pharmaceuticals at the amount of BGN 138 thousand).

27. EQUITY

Share capital

As at 31 December 2011, the registered share tapiBOPHARMA AD amounted to BGN 132,000
thousand distributed in 132,000,000 shares of nalwidue BGN 1 each.

The treasury sharesvere 2,934,163 at the amount of BGN 11,463 thoug8tdDecember 2010:
1,180,615 at the amount of BGN 4,643 thousand)edas a decision of the General Meeting of
Shareholders of 23 June 2010.

The statutory reservesamounting to BGN 21,855 thousand (31 December 2@®BN 17,788
thousand) were set aside from allocation of puffithe parent company and included all amounts for
the Reserve Fund.

Therevaluation reserve — for property, plant and eqgoipntamounting to BGN 26,662 thousand (31
December 2010: BGN 24,267 thousand) was set asae the positive difference between the
carrying amount of property, plant and equipmenthef Group companies and their fair values at the
dates of the respective regular revaluation (Ndi&s 16). The effect of deferred taxes on the
revaluation reserve is stated directly through otoenponents of comprehensive income for the year.
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Available-for-sale financial assets resenamounting to BGN 65 thousand — a negative fig@e (
December 2010: BGN 354 thousand — a negative figuas set aside from the effects of subsequent
measurement of available-for-sale investments itovielue (including the consolidated share of the
change in this reserve in associates on their traluander the equity method). (Note 15).

Thetranslation of foreign operations reservemounting to BGN 3,455 thousand — a negative éigur
(31 December 2010: BGN 2,427 thousand — a negdiguee) was set aside from exchange
differences arising as a result of translation le# turrency in the financial statements of foreign
companies to the presentation currency of the GriNgte 15).

The accumulated profit reservéncludes also the component “other reserves”, witichtains the
amounts distributed from the realized profits frprior years of the companies from the Group.

Basic earnings per share

2011 2010
Weighted average number of shares 129,935,685 131,661,124
Net profit for the year (BGN'000) 38,404 41,958
Basic earnings per share (BGN) 0.30 0.32
28. LONG-TERM BANK LOANS
Contractec Maturity 31.12.2011 31.12.2010
loan amount Noncurr_enl Current portion Total Noncurrgm Current portion Total
portion portion
‘000 BGN'000 BGN'000  BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000
Credit lines and working capital loans
EUR 12,00( 31.01.2012 - 22,58: 22,58: 23,202 57 23,25¢
EUR 5,000 31.08.2012 - 9,774 9,774 - 9,77¢ 9,77¢
EUR 3,000 25.08.2012 - 5,86: 5,86: - 5,86 5,86
EUR 2,500 31.08.2012 - 2,192 2,192 - - -
EUR 1,613 30.01.2015 998 47¢ 1,473 96& 1,67¢ 2,644
BGN 18,000 30.06.2012 - 28€ 28€ - 17,98 17,98:
EUR 53C 28.02.2012 - 86 86 58 34k 403
EUR 1,67¢ 30.06.2013 22 42 64 64 42 10€
usD 4,00( 30.09.2012 - - - 3,92¢ 1,964 5,89:
EUR 1,00C 20.09.2011 - - - - 502 503
EUR 2,50( 31.03.2011 - - - - 3,211 3211
EUR 2,00( 15.06.2011 - - - - 3,321 3,321
EUR 1,70C 25.10.2010 - - - - 5,861 5,861
Investment-purpose loans
EUR 32,000 15.04.2021 18,737 37 18,774 - - -
EUR 2,00( 29.07.2015 2,480 960 3,440 - - -
EUR 1,565 09.12.2015 1,043 348 1,391 1,391 174 1,565
EUR 2,000 29.07.2015 - - - 1,573 - 1,573
23,280 42,650 65,930 31,182 50,795 81,977
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The bank loans received in Euro were mainly agegexterest rate based on EURIBOR plus a surplus
of 5.5 points (2010: EURIBOR plus a surplus of abt5 points, the loans in USD — LIBOR plus a
surplus of up to 6 points and loans in RSD — EURRB@us 3.3%).
Investment-purpose loans are intended for purclaséangible fixed assets and expanding of
activities.
The following collateral have been establishedavolir of the creditor banks:
* Real estate mortgages (Note 16);
e Special pledges on:
- machinery and equipment (Note 16);
- raw materials, consumables and finished produabse(¥2);
- trade receivables (Note 23).
» Pledge on the entire enterprise Momina Krepost ADApril 2011 the pledge was deleted.

29. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The deferred tax assets and liabilitiesf the Group at 31 December are related with thieviing
items of the consolidated statement of financialitpan:

31.12.2011 31.12.2011 31.12.2010 31.12.2010

Deferred tax assets BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'OO0O  BGN'000
temporan tax  temporan tax
difference difference

Property, plant and equipment 1,219 (256) - -

Intangible assets 43 (9) - -

Total deferred tax liabilities 1,262 (265) - -

Payables to personnel (329) 69 - -

Inventories (9,024) 1,895 - -

Available-for-sale investments (48) 10 - -

Total deferred tax assets (9,401) 1,974 - -

Net balance of deferred income taxes —
assets (8,139) 1,709 - -
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31.12.2011 31.12.2011 31.12.2010 31.12.2010

Deferred tax liabilities BGN'000 BGN'OO0O  BGN'000 BGN'000
temporan tax tenporary tax
difference difference

Property, plant and equipment 76,521 (7,873) 79,901 (8,381)

including: revaluation reserve 36,635 (3,701) 34,085 (3,428)

Intangible assets acquired in business

combinations 7,036 (929) 7,001 (789)

Total deferred tax liabilities 83,5657 (8,802) 86,902 (9,170)

Trade receivables (7,258) 725 (6,012) 607

Payables to personnel (3,945) 396 (3,457) 423

Intangible assets (1,296) 117 (2,300) 230

Inventories (9,791) 876 (9,768) 1,322

Liabilities with expired prescription

period (486) 49 (440) 44

Available-for-sale investments (879) 88 (927) 100

Litigation provisions (191) 20 (100) 11

Total deferred tax assets (23,846) 2,271 (23,004) 2,737

Net balance of deferred income taxes

— liabilities 59,711 (6,531) 63,898 (6,433)

On recognising deferred tax assets, the probalafity reversal of the individual differences and th
abilities of the Group companies to generate seffictaxable profit in the future, have been taken
into account (Note 2.33.5).

Deferred tax assets for the following temporaryedénces have not been recognised:

31.12.2011 31.12.2011 31.12.2010 31.12.2010
BGN'OO0O BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000

temporan tax temporan tax
difference difference
Tax loss carried forward 12,874 2,262 12,239 2,504
Impairment of investments in subsidiaries 13,041 1,381 12,265 1,227
Accruals for payables to personnel 280 28 243 24
Total 26,195 3,671 24,747 3,755

On the recognition of deferred tax assets the fmbtyeof future reversal of individual differencésr
the separate Group companies is taken into ac¢bhlone 2.33.5).
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The change in the balance of deferred tax asse®0id is as follows:

Deferred tax (liabilities)/ assets Balance @ 1 Acquired or Recognise Recognised i Recognised i Reserv.  Balance at 3:
January 2011 purchase of i in profitor  other component  the statement ¢ from Decembe
subsidiary  loss for the  of comprehensiv changes ir transformat 2011
year income equity and th ion in
current tax equity
returns
BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000
Property, plant and
equipment - - 33 - - (289) (256)
Intangible assets on
acquisitions - - 1 - - (20) 9)
Available-for-sale
investments - - 2) - - 12 10
Inventories - - 1,494 - - 401 1,895
Trade receivables - - (10) - - 10 -
Retirement benefit
obligation - - (37) - - 106 69
- - 1,479 - - 230 1,709
The change in the balance of deferred tax liagdifor 2011 is as follows:
Deferred tax (liabilities)/ assets Balance at : Acquired or  Recognised i Recognised i Recognisedn Reservi  Balance at 3
January 2011 purchase of i profit or loss for other the statemer from December 2011
subsidiary the year ~ components ¢ of changes it transformat
comprehensiv equity and the ionin
income current tax equity
returns
BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000
Property, plant and
equipment (8,380) (54) 494 (356) 31 392 (7,873)
Intangible assets 230 - (99) - - (14) 117
Intangible assets acquired in
business combinations (790) (304) 21 - - 144 (929)
Available-for-sale
investments 100 - - - - (12) 88
Inventories 1,322 - (85) - - (361) 876
Trade receivables 607 - 128 - - (10) 725
Retirement benefit
obligations 423 - 99 - - (126) 396
Other current payables 55 - 14 - - - 69
(6,433) (358) 572 (356) 31 13 (6,531)
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The change in the balance of deferred tax liabgifor 2010 is as follows:

Deferred tax (liabilities)/ assets Balance a Acquired or Recognisedi Recognised i Recognised i Reserve fror Balance a
1 January purchase of i  profit or loss other the statemer transformation 31 Decembe
2010 subsidiary  for the year components ¢ of changes it in equity 2010

comprehensiv equity and th
income  current tax
returns

BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000
Property, plant and
equipment (7,733) (929) 249 5) 11 27 (8,380)
Intangible assets 269 - (39) - - - 230
Intangible assets acquired in
business combinations (198) (518) (90) - - 16 (790)
Available-for-sale
investments 11 88 1 - - - 100
Inventories 1,373 - (38) - - (23) 1,322
Trade receivables 512 - 95 - - - 607
Retirement benefit
obligations 239 50 153 - - (29) 423
Other current payables 66 - (11) - - - 55
(5,461) (1,309) 320 (5) 11 11 (6,433)

30. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

The long-term payables to personnel include thesgme value of the obligation of the Group
companies, operating mainly iBulgaria, Ukraine and Serbjato pay indemnities to the hired
personnel at the date of the statement of finapcisition on coming of age for retirement.

In accordance with the Labour CoiteBulgaria each employee is entitled to indemnity on retinetme
at the amount of two gross monthly salaries, afakibr she has worked over the last 10 years éor th
same employer — six gross monthly salaries atitte of retirement (Note 2.33.8).

The obligations of the employer to the personnelretirement for the companies abroad are as
follows:

» Serbia— the employer is obliged to pay 3 average saarie

e Ukraine — the employer is obliged to pay between BGN 28 BGN 50 depending on the
length of service as well as social pensions, wiligh company accrues after employees’
retirement due to specific work conditions;

* Russia, Latvia and Belarus the employer has no legal obligation to persbrupon
retirement;

e Poland, USA and United Kingdom the Group has no hired personnel and therefwe,
obligation.
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For the purpose of establishing the amount of tleddigations to personnel, the Group companies
have assigned an actuarial valuation by usingehéces of a certified actuary.

31.12.2011 31.12.2010
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000

Present value of the obligations at 1 January 2,801 1,770
Unrecognised actuarial loss at 1 January (191) (107)
Llapl!lty recognised in the consolidated statementf financial 2610 1,663
position at 1 January

Expense recognised in the statement of comprelemsiome 219 1.072
for the period (Note 7) '
Payments for the period (440) (357)
Effect of restatement of the financial statemeffitsubsidiaries i 6)
abroad

Acquired liabilities on acquisition of a subsidigijote 42) - 238
Llapl!lty recognised in the consolidated statemenof financial 2 389 2 610
position at 31 December

Present value of the obligations at 31 December 2,42¢ 2,801
Unrecognised actuarial loss at 31 December (37) (191)

The change in the present value of retirement liteoleligations to personnel and the calculation of
actuarial (gain)/loss is as follows:
31.12.2011 31.12.2010
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000

Present value of the obligations at 1 January 2,801 1,770
Interest expense for the year 132 127
Current service costs for the year 154 826
Payments for the year (440) (357)
Effect of restatement of the financial statemefitsubsidiaries

abroad ) (6)
Acquired liabilities on acquisition of a subsidiary - 238
Actuarial (gain)/loss for the year (221) 203
Present value of the obligation at 31 December 2 426 2.801
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Accruals for long-term benefits to personnel upetirement include:

2011 2010

BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000

Current service costs 154 826
Interest expense 130 127
Net actuarial (gain)/loss recognised for the year (65) 119
219 1,072

The following actuarial assumptions were used ioutating the present value of the liabilities for
the companies in Bulgaria as at 31 December 2011:

The discount factor is calculated by using 5.7 %uah interest rate as basis (2010: 6.5%).
The assumption is based on yield data for long-tgowernment securities with 10-year
maturity;

The assumption for the future level of the salaigdsased on the information provided by the
Company’s management and amounts to 5 % annuatlyrmmympared to the prior reporting

period (2010: 5 %);

Mortality rate — in accordance with the table isbbg the National Statistics Institute for the

total mortality rate of the population in Bulgafar the period 2008 - 2010 (2010: 2007 —
2009);

Staff turnover rate — from 0 % to 16 % for the fage groups formed (2010: from 0% to 20
%).

31. FINANCE LEASE LIABILITIES

As at 31 December, the finance lease liabilities @ander revocable contracts for motor vehicles
acquisition. They are presented net of the intatestin the future and are as follows:

Term 31.12.2011 31.12.2010
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000

Up to one year (Note 38) 610 265
Over one year 1,534 415
Total 2,144 680
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The minimum lease payments under finance leaséug@s follows:

Term 31.12.2011 31.12.2010
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000

Up to one year 796 405
From one to three years 1,836 498
From three to five years - 83
2,632 986
Future finance costs under finance leases (488) (306)
2,144 680

The lease payments due within the next 12 montaspegsented in the consolidated statement of
financial position as ‘other current liabilitieN¢te 38).

32. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2011, the amount of BGN 1,33@idhod represents government grants under
concluded contracts for gratuitous financial aitl (B2cember 2010: BGN 772 thousand).

The amount of other non-current liabilities as AtCBcember 2011 includes also the amount of BGN
38 thousand - a payable for purchase of availaiiedle investments with maturity 30 March 2017
(31 December 2010: BGN 26 thousand).
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33. SHORT-TERM BANK LOANS

The short-term bank loansf the Groupas at 31 December are as follows:

Currency Contracted Maturity 31.12.2010
amount 31.12.2011 BGN'000
BGN'000
Bank loans 000
EUR 20,000 31.05.2012 39,095 -
EUR 12,000 27.01.2012 23,595 -
EUR 10,000 31.12.2012 * 19,558 19,011
EUR 8,434 31.12.2012 * 15,983 15,983
EUR 12,500 14.01.2012 * 15,127 22,879
BGN 10,000 31.12.2012 10,003 -
EUR 5,000 30.11.2012 * 8,789 9,789
USD 4,000 31.01.2012 6,027 -
EUR 3,000 28.09.2012 * 5,864 2,931
EUR 5,000 31.01.2012 * 3,508 9,777
EUR 2,947 31.01.2012 2,405 -
UAH 7,000 07.06.2012 1,329 -
RUB 3,000 15.07.2012 * 145 145
EUR 66 31.12.2012 * 129 129
EUR 2,000 30.06.2012 108 -
BGN 500 20.12.2012 * 100 328
EUR 12,000 31.01.2011 - 23,717
EUR 5,000 30.09.2011 - 9,776
151,765 114,465

* - renegotiated in 2011

The obtained bank loans in Euro are mainly corgéétt interest rate determined on the basis of
EURIBOR plus a surplus of 4.5 points, loans in B&onthly SOFIBOR plus a surplus of 2 points
and in RUB — fixed interest rate of 16% (2010: EBRR plus a surplus of up to 4.5 points and fixed
interest rate of up to 16% while for those in BGMnenthly SOFIBOR plus a surplus of up to 2.92
points). The loans are intended for working capital

The following special pledges have been establisisecollateral for the above loans in favour of the
creditor banks:

- machinery and equipment (Note 16);
- raw materials, consumables and finished produobsée(R2);
- trade receivables (Note 23).
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34. TRADE PAYABLES

Trade payablegnclude: 31.12.2011 31.12.2010
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000

Payables to suppliers 62,605 58,435
Advances from clients 3,427 792
Provisions for payables to suppliers 102 99
66,134 59,326

Thepayables to suppliersefer to: 31.12.2011 31.12.2010
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000

Suppliers outside Bulgaria 33,061 31,124
Suppliers from Bulgaria 29,544 27,311
62,605 58,435

The payables to suppliers are regular, interest-trad refer to supplies of materials, goods and
services. The common credit period for which nernest is charged for trade payables is 180 days.

The payables to suppliers are denominated as fsilow

-in EUR: BGN 27,302 thousand (31 December 2010NEX6,187 thousand);

-in BGN: BGN 27,184 thousand (31 December 2010NEX8,368 thousand);

-in USD: BGN 4,076 thousand (31 December 2010: BE¥81 thousand);

- in other foreign currency: BGN 4,043 thousand [&tember 2010: BGN 1,899 thousand).

35. PAYABLES TO RELATED PARTIES

Thepayables to related partiggfer to:
31.12.2011 31.12.2010
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000

Payables to companies under common control 1,650 1,529
Payables to main shareholding companies 1,540 934
Payables to other related parties 170 142
3,360 2,605
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Thepayables to related partidsy type are as follows:

Payables for supplies of services
Payables for supplies of goods and materials
Other

31.12.2011 31.12.2010
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000
2,377 2,492

930 15

53 98

3,360 2,605

The payables to related parties are regular, devaigd in BGN, interest-free and are not additignall

secured by the Group with special pledge or guaeant

36. PAYABLES TO PERSONNEL AND FOR SOCIAL SECURITY

Payables to personnel and for social secutitglude:

31.12.2011 31.12.2010
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000
Payables to personnel, including: 4,339 2,965
current wages and salaries 2,477 2,030
accruals on unused compensated leaves 1,051 935
tantieme 811 -
Payables for social security/health insuranceputiolg: 1,148 985
current payables for social security/health insuran
contributions 984 842
accruals on unused compensated leaves 164 143
5,487 3,950
37. TAX PAYABLES
Tax payablesnclude:
31.12.2011 31.12.2010
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000
VAT 2,183 2,327
Individual income taxes payable 419 334
Income tax 322 492
Withholding taxes 100 43
Other 22 4
3,046 3,200
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By the date of issue of these consolidated findrstetements the following inspections and audits
have been performed in the Group companies:

Company Full-scope tax VAT inspection Inspection under the

audit social security

legislation
Sopharma AD 31.12.2007 31.10.2008 31.10.2008
Sopharma Trading AD 31.12.2008 30.06.2009 31.12.2004
Bulgarian Rose Sevtopolis AD 31.12.2009 31.01.2010 31.12.2008
Biopharm Engineering AD 31.12.2009 31.10.2010 30.04.2009
Momina Krepost AD 31.12.2005 31.10.2006 31.10.2006

Pharmalogistica AD up to 31.12.2005 up to 31.03.2007 none
Sopharma Buildings REIT none  upto 31.01.2011 none
Electroncommerce EOOD up to 31.12.2005 up to 30.04.2006 none
Unipharm AD 31.12.2005 30.04.2006 31.03.2007
Ivanchich and Sons OOD 31.08.2011 31.08.2011 31.08.2011
Vitamina AD 30.06.2010 31.07.2010 31.12.2010
Rostbalkanpharm AD 31.12.2005 31.12.2005 30.09.2009
Sopharma Zdrovit AD — in liguidation 30.09.2011 30.09.2011 30.09.2011
Briz OOD 20.07.2007 19.08.2010 30.12.2011
Briti SOOO 30.06.2011 30.06.2011 30.06.2011
Tabina OO0 30.09.2010 30.09.2010 30.09.2006
ZAO Interpharm 31.10.2007 31.10.2007 30.06.2006

The companies Sopharma Poland OOD - in liquidattaband, Sopharma Warsaw EOOD — Poland,
Extab Corporation USA, Extab Pharma Limited, Unit€shgdom, have not been subject to tax
inspections or audits related to the social seclegislation.

Tax audit of the companies in Bulgaria is performeéthin a 5-year period after the end of the year
when the tax return for the respective liabilitysHaeen submitted. The tax audit confirms finallg th
tax liability of the respective company-tax lialplerson except in the cases explicitly stated by law

For the companies outside Bulgaria the tax audieisormed as follows: in Ukraine, Russia, Latvia
and Belarus — within a term of three years, in Rola within a term of five years, and in Serbia —

within a term of ten years.

38. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Other current liabilitiesinclude: 31.12.2011 31.12.2010
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000

Dividends payable 952 122
Liabilities under sold rights from shares issue 884 887
Finance lease liabilities (Note 30) 610 265
Grants under European projects 346 376
Deductions from work salaries 245 129
Other 195 353
3,232 2,132
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39. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

Litigations
Sopharma AD

On 28 July 2011, Sopharma started arbitrary prangedbefore the International Chamber of
Commerce in Paris against a client in relation witipaid supplies of goods at the amount of EUR
1,034 thousand (BGN 2,022 thousand). On 15 Aprl2@he Company supplemented its initial claim
with a claim for lost benefits for the amount of EW,770 thousand (BGN 3,462 thousand). On his
part, the client filed a counter-claim for damagagssed by unjustifiable termination of a distribuati
contract by Sopharma at the amount of EUR 2,426d4wd (BGN 4,745 thousand). According to
Company's lawyers, the claim of Sopharma is welligded and it is supposed to be confirmed in
favour of the Company while the counter-claim ol rejected and therefore, no provision has been
included under this case.

At the date of the consolidated annual financiateshents, Sopharma AD was a defendant under a
case initiated by a supplier for unpaid supplieeireed by its subsidiary at the amount of BGN 597
thousand (USD 352 thousand principal and USD 43igand — interest for delay). The Company
lodged higher claims against the claimant relatedntellectual property protection, for violations
under Art.76 of the Trademarks and Geographical &&aact in particular, i.e. unlawful use of
trademarks belonging to the Company. In accordanitethe information from Company’s lawyers,
the prospects are that the case will be closed aifmal rejection of the claim and therefore, no
provisions were recognised.

Bulgarian Rose Sevtopolis AD

As at 31 December 2011, Bulgarian Rose Sevtopoliswas a party under the following trade
litigation — claim from year 2006 for the ownersloip254 kg rose oil or alternatively, its cost oD
355 thousand, jointly to DL Bulgarian Rose EOOD dahd company on the part of BL Finance
Company AG, Switzerland. By a court decision ofM&ch 2011, the claims against Bulgarian Rose
Sevtopolis AD were rejected in full. The decisiomdar this case became legally effective in April
2011 due to the lack of appeal by the claimant.

Biopharm Engineering AD

In 2010, the company was a subject of full-scopeatadit, including under the application of VATA
for periods from 1 February 2007 to 31 October 20i@he issued tax assessment bill, dated 23 June
2011, the tax authorities assessed tax liabilitabe state budget at the amount of BGN 282 thulisa
(principal and interest) under the VATA for previoreporting periods.

The company appealed entirely the results of theatalit before the Administrative Court in Burgas
through the Appeal and Enforcement Management irgie - Burgas at the Central Administration of
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the National Revenue Agency (NRA). In this relatiba company provided collateral — restraint over a
tangible fixed asset. At the first session held 6r-ebruary 2012 the case was put off for 16 M&220

The management of the Group believes that the at®@wa not due including due to a contradiction
with the rules and the concept of the Europeanddire regarding VAT. Therefore, no provisions
have been included in these consolidated finastééments with regard to this court dispute.

Unipharm AD

As at 31 December 2011, there was a claim againgthdrma AD under a tax assessment bill at the
amount of BGN 96 thousand. The management of tbe@believes that the amounts are not due and
therefore, no provisions have been included indleemsolidated financial statements with regard to

this court dispute.

Issued and granted quarantees

Sopharma AD
The parent company is a co-debtor under received b@ans and a guarantor of the following
companies outside the Group before banks:

Maturity Currency Amount Status of the
debt
Original 31.12.2011

currency BGN'000 BGN'000

Sopharma Properties REIT 29.12.2020 EUR 30,000 58,675 58,675
SCS Franchise AD 30.06.2012 EUR 2,500 4,889 4,889
Energoinvestment AD 28.08.2012 BGN 2,000 2,000 500
Mineralcommerce AD 20.03.2017 EUR 100 196 196
Mineralcommerce AD 19.01.2014 EUR 25 49 49

65,809 64,309

Bank guarantees

Sopharma Trading AD

The bank guarantees issued for the Company amouBGN 7,277 thousand (31 December 2010:
BGN 6,745 thousand) and are to guarantee paymerssppliers of goods, for good performance —
ensuring future deliveries of pharmaceutical anddioa products to hospitals under concluded
contracts, customs office guarantees and tendécipation.
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The bank guarantees have been issued by:

31.12.2011  31.12.2010
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000

SG Expressbank AD 3,637 3,750
BNP Paribas — Bulgaria Branch 2,442 2,512
Alpha Bank — Bulgaria Branch 1,043 483
UniCredit Bulbank 155 -

7,277 6,745

The collateral for issued bank guarantees is &sisl

» Special pledge on receivables from clients at theumt of BGN 3,912 thousand (2010: BGN
1,956 thousand);

e Special pledge on goods in circulation at the arha@frBGN 8,801 thousand (2010: BGN
2,934 thousand);

e Special pledge on TFA (motor vehicles) with a ciaxgyamount of BGN 1,001 thousand
(2010: none);

* Ordinary dematerialised securities within the megrof the Public Offering of Securities Act
(number of shares issued by Sopharma AD — 144,B88arian Rose Sevtopolis AD —
411,802, Unipharm AD — 151,828, Momina Krepost AR6;050).

Unipharm AD
The company has the following bank guarantees dssue

« from UBB AD in favour of the Ministry of Economy dihe amount of BGN 530 thousand
with a term — 9 April 2012, collateral — inventariat the amount of BGN 1,060 thousand,
future receivables at the amount of BGN 530 thodsamd a future item — a machine for
primary and secondary packaging;

« from Eurobank EFG in favour of third parties foetissue of a good performance guarantee at
the amount of BGN 19 thousand with a term — 22 badyr 2013, collateral — combination of
goods on stock at the amount of EUR 50 thousand;

« from DSK Bank EAD in favour of four Multi-profile bispitals for Active Treatment (Lovech,
Veliko Tarnovo, Botevgrad and Varna) at the totaloant of BGN 12 thousand with terms
February-March 2012, collateral — cash at the amoUBGN 7 thousand.
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Assets held under safe custody

Sopharma Trading AD

According to concluded pre-distribution contradtse Company received goods for safe custody
amounting to BGN 965 thousand as at 31 Decembet @l December 2010: BGN 2,983 thousand).

Significant irrevocable agreements and commitments

Sopharma AD

Sopharma AD concluded a contract with a supplier the purchase and implementation of an
integrated information system Microsoft Dynamics AX the amount of BGN 3,700 thousand (EUR
1,892 thousand)he final term for implementation of the informatieystem is 2012.

In 2011, the Company assumed a self-participatboonnoitment at the amount of BGN 3,997 thousand
under a contract for financing under Operating Rrogne "Development of the Competitiveness of
the Bulgarian Economy" 2007 - 2013. The executibithe contract is envisaged to last 24 months and
is related with financing the purchase of machirargt equipment.

Bulgarian Rose Sevtopolis AD

The company undertook an engagement under a combragranting gratuitous financial aid for a
period of 5 years after the completion of the prbfer technological renovation and modernisatibn o
tablets production. The term commenced on 9 Fep2@t1 and according to the contract the product
should not suffer significant changes referringitto nature, the conditions of its performance or
leading to unjustifiable benefits for the compasyweell as changes resultant from modification im th
nature of ownership of infrastructural componentliiscontinuance of production activities. On non-
compliance with these requirements, the financhegl e returned. At the date of preparation of the
financial statements, all contractual requiremergse being fulfilled.

Biopharm Engineering AD

In 2011, the company assumed a self-participationnsitment at the amount of BGN 2,708 thousand
under a contract for financing under Operating Rrogne "Development of the Competitiveness of
the Bulgarian Economy" 2007 - 2013. The executibtie contract is envisaged to last 20 months and
is related with financing the purchase of propeptgnt and equipment.

Other

The Group has met its obligations under the Wasa@dgement Act (WMA) and therefore, has not
included a product charge liability in the stateimeh financial position as at 31 December 2011
regardless of the fact that the official documarntiencing that Ecobulpack (the organization in wahic
it is a member) has fulfilled its commitments un®&MA, has not been issued yet at the date of
preparation of these financial statements.
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40. SEGMENT REPORTING

The segment reporting in the Group is organisedthen basis of two main business segments
‘production of pharmaceuticals' and 'distributioh pthharmaceuticals (goods)'. The group 'other’
includes mainly production and distribution of npimarmaceutical products.

Theitems of income, expenses and result of busineggrentsdetermined in the Group include:

Production of Distribution of Other Elimination Consolidated
pharmaceutical pharmaceutical
products products (goods)

2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'0O0O0 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000
External sales 130,758 157,411 502,696 430,339 11,277 12,584 - - 644,731 600,334
Intersegmental sales 109,014 92,714 - - 314 175 (109,328) (92,889) - -
Total revenue 239,772 250,125 502,696 430,339 11,591 12,759 (109,328) (92,889) 644,731 600,334
Segment result (margin) 118,603 115,582 40,408 32,705 3,418 3,503 (9,646) (1,049) 152,783 150,741
Non-allocated operating income 1,775 2,648
Non-allocated operating expenses (108,533) (97,706)
Profit from operations 46,025 55,683
Finance (costs)/income, net (4,700) (7,937)
Gains/(losses) on acquisition and disposal of slidrsés, net - 1,181
Losses from associates, net (406) (965)
Gain on net monetary position from restatemenhygerinflation 4,126 -
Profit before income tax 45,045 47,962
Income tax expense (4,620) (5,500)
Net profit for the year before statutory dividend for distribution 40,425 42,462
Statutory dividend for distribution (89) -
Net profit for the year 40,336 42,462
Attributable to equity holders of the parent 38,404 41,958
Non-controlling interest 1,932 504
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Theassets and liabilitie®f the business segments include:

Assets by business segn Production of Distribution of Other Total
pharmaceutical products pharmaceutical product
(goods)
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
BGN'000 BGN'O0O0 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'O00 BGN'000
Property, plant and equipment 83,298 84,422 38,855 38,029 7,844 2,175 129,997 124,626
Inventories 70,072 50,683 54,571 57,405 1,383 525 126,026 108,613
Receivables from related parties 62,065 44,468 382 1,061 - - 62,447 45,529
Trade receivables 36,956 43,925 93,714 100,732 6,194 819 136,864 145,476
Segment assets 252,391 223,498 187,522 197,227 15,421 3,519 455,334 424,244
Non-allocated assets 221,254 200,946
Total assets 676,588 625,190
Liabilities by business segment Production of Distribution of Other Total
pharmaceutical products pharmaceutical product
(goods)
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
BGN'000 BGN'OO0 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'O00 BGN'000
Payables to personnel and for social
security 1,059 1,136 1,259 1,042 233 191 2,551 2,369
Trade payables 21,725 16,505 43,375 41,666 970 78 66,070 58,249
Payables to related parties 2,192 1,725 1,353 824 - 41 3,545 2,590
Segment liabilities 24,976 19,366 45,987 43,532 1,203 310 72,166 63,208
Non-allocated liabilities 238,610 214,703
Total liabilities 310,776 277,911

The capital

depreciation/amortisation by business segnicitide:

expenditures, depreciation/amortisati@amd non-monetary expenses other than

Production of Distribution of Other Total
pharmaceutical products pharmaceutical product
(goods)
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000  BGN'000  BGN'000
Capital expenditures 31,431 14,860 2,548 1,298 629 25 34,608 16,183
Depreciation and amortisation 8,084 5,789 2,221 2,160 198 171 10,503 8,120
Non-monetary expenses, other
than depreciation and amortisation 1,348 687 1,464 1,403 - - 2,812 2,090
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The distribution of Group revenuwy type and by geographic areaas follows:
Bulgaria Europe Other countries Total

2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

BGN'00
BGN'000 BGN'000 0 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000
Sales of finished products 88,960 74,315 141,167 144,103 17,408 15,453 247,535 233,871
Sales of goods 371,765 335,458 25,431 31,005 - - 397,196 366,463

460,725 409,773 166,598 175,108 17,408 15,453 644,731 600,334

The carrying amount as at 31 December 2011 of Gsompn-current assets other than financial
instrumentsdistributed by geographic are# as follows:

Bulgaria Europe Other countries Total

2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
BGN'0O00 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000

Property, plant and equipment 217,561 196,188 18,489 12,075 288 287 236,338 208,550
Intangible assets 17,251 16,622 10,642 7,650 86 85 27,979 24,357
Investment property 5,355 5,699 1,200 1,122 - - 6,555 6,821

240,167 218,509 30,331 20,847 374 372 270,872 239,728

The total revenue from transaction with the largdignts of the Group and the respective business
segment is as follows:

2011 % 2010 % business segment
BGN
BGN ‘000 ‘000
Client 1 77,968 12% 81,972 14% Production of pharmaceutical products
Distribution of pharmaceutical products
Client 2 68,072 11% 68,426 11% (goods)

Client 2 is an association of a group of entergrigith similar business characteristics, which are
under common control by the Bulgarian state.
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

In the ordinary course of business, the Group @exposed to a variety of financial risks the most
important of which are market risk (including curecg risk, risk of a change in the fair value anidgr
risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and risk of intest-bearing cash flows. The general risk manageisen
focused on the difficulty to forecast the financiahrkets and to achieve minimizing the potential
negative effects that might affect the financiaules and position of the Group. The financial siske
currently identified, measured and monitored thiougrious control mechanisms in order to establish
adequate prices for the finished products and cesvof the Group companies and the borrowed
thereby capital, as well as to assess adequatelyntirket circumstance of its investments and the
forms for maintenance of free liquid funds throyghventing undue risk concentrations.

Risk management is currently performed by the mameagt of the parent company and respectively,
the management of the subsidiaries, in line with gblicy defined by the Board of Directors of the
parent. The Board of Directors has approved thi lpasmciples of general financial risk management,
on the basis of which specific procedures have lestablished for management of the separate
specific types of risk such as currency, pricegnest, credit and liquidity risk and the risk o usf
non-derivative instruments.

The structure of financial assets and liabilitesas$ follows:

Financial assets 31.12.2011 31.12.2010
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000
264,673 263,872
Loans and receivables, including: 244,701 242,945
Receivables and loans (Notes 20, 21, 23, 24 and 25) 212,466 197,876
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 26) 32,235 45,069
Available-for-sale financial assets 19,972 20,927
Available-for-sale investmentdlote 19) 19,972 20,927
Financial liabilities 31.12.2011 31.12.2010
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 287,909 259,527
Short-term and long-term bank loans
(Notes 28 and 33) 217,695 196,442
Other loans and liabilities
(Notes 31, 32, 34, 35 and 38) 70,214 63,085
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Currency risk

The Group companies perform their operations witiva exchange with foreign suppliers and clients
and therefore, they are exposed to currency risk.

Significant volume of Group’s revenue is gained mhathrough the parent company from export of
finished products contracted as payable in USDthAtsame time, the Group again through the parent
company supplies part of its basic raw materialssamables also in USD. The currency risk is
related with the adverse floating of the exchange rof USD against BGN in future business
transactions as to the recognised assets andtlebilenominated in foreign currency and as to the
net investments in foreign companies.

The companies abroad perform sales mainly to tb& lmarkets, which leads to currency risk to their
currencies as well — Ukrainian Grivna (UAH), Serbl@inar (RSD), Russian Ruble (RUB), Latvian
Lat (LVL), Belarus Ruble (BYR).

As at 31 December 2011, the total inflation in Be¢afor the last three years exceeded 100% and
Belarus was regarded a hyperinflationary econontyiclivto a large degree resulted in increased
volatility of the functional currency exchange rafethe companies operating in such environment to
Group's presentation currency. As far as all ose¢hmacroeconomic effects were beyond the control
of the Group companies operating in Belarus theagement of the Group undertook actions to
control this currency risk by regulating currentiye working capital of these companies and making
efforts to maintain a reasonable balance of thairenit assets and liabilities whereby to regulate o
timely basis the significant adverse effects far @roup as a whole.

The remaining part of Group companies’ operatiopsugually denominated in BGN or EUR.

To control foreign currency risk, there is an impented system in the whole Group for planning
import supplies, sales in foreign currency as vesliprocedures for daily monitoring of US dollar
exchange rates and control on pending paymentgaBah Rose Sevtopolis AD maintains assets and
liabilities in foreign currencies (cash, payablesstippliers) originated in prior periods, which are
denominated in USD and as at 31 December 2011pareded its net exposure to currency risk
towards USD compared to prior period. The exposofethe other subsidiaries in Bulgaria to the
currency risk are insignificant because almossalies are performed to the local market in Bulgaria
Levs (BGN). The import of goods is performed emjirem Euro (EUR). The loans denominated in
foreign currency have been granted mainly in EUR.

The assets and liabilities of the Group denominateBGN and foreign currency are presented as
follows:
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31 December 2011 in BGN in EUR in USD in other Total
currency

BGN '00C BGN '00C BGN'00C BGN'00C BGN '00C
Available-for-sale financial assets 17,16( - - 2,81z 19,97z
Loans and receivables, including: 149,38 82,11 2,011 11,18¢ 244,70
Receivables and loans 131,19: 70,78: 993 9,497 212,46¢
Cash and cash equivalents 18,191 11,33¢ 1,01¢ 1,692 32,23¢
Total financial assets 166,54« 82,115 2,011 14,001 264,67
Short-term and long-term bank loans 10,38¢ 199,80¢ 6,027 1,47¢ 217,69:
Other loans and liabilities 31,75 29,311 4,35¢ 4,79¢ 70,21¢
Total financial liabilities 42,141 229,11¢ 10,38( 6,272 287,90¢
31 December 2010 in BGN in EUR in USD in other Total

currency

BGN '00C BGN'00C BGN'00C BGN'00C BGN '00C
Available-for-sale financial assets 18,243 - - 2,684 20,927
Loans and receivables, including: 163,265 68,100 5,452 6,128 242,945
Receivables and loans 131,129 60,351 2,530 3,86¢ 197,876
Cash and cash equivalents 32,13¢ 7,749 2,922 2,262 45,069
Total financial assets 181,508 68,100 5,452 8,812 263,872
Short-term and long-term bank loans 328 190,076 5,893 145 196,442
Other loans and liabilities 30,694 25,827 3,992 2,572 63,085
Total financial liabilities 31,022 215,903 9,885 2,717 259,527

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The foreign currency sensitivity of the group exyres is mainly related to USD. The effect of foreig
currency sensitivity to 10 % increase/decreaseumeat exchange rates of BGN to USD and to the
other foreign currency exposures, based on thetstaiof foreign currency assets and liabilitie8ht
December and on the assumption that the influericalloother variables is ignored, has been
measured and presented as impact on the postitarlatated financial result and on the equity @f th
Group.
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Foreign currency sensitivity analysis USD
2011 2010

BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000

Financial result + (753) (399)
Accumulated profits + (753) (399)
Financial result - 753 399
Accumulated profits - 753 399

On 10% increase in the exchange rate of USD to BtB&l,ultimate impact on Group’s (post-tax)
profit for 2011 would be a decrease by BGN 753 damdl (-2.0%) and for 2010 — a decrease by BGN
399 thousand (-0.94%). The effect in terms of vadmeGroup’s equity — through the component
‘retained earnings’ — would be the same.

On 10% decrease in the exchange rate of USD to Bi@N\ultimate impact on the (post-tax) profit of
the Group would be equal and reciprocal of theedtabove.

The impact of the remaining currencies (other tb&D) on 10% increase in their exchange rates to
BGN on Group’s (post-tax) profit is in increase BN 696 thousand (for 2010: increase by BGN
549 thousand). The effect on equity is of the sameunt and in a direction of a decrease and reflect

in the component ‘retained earnings’.

Group’s management is of the opinion that the prteskabove currency sensitivity analysis based on
the balance sheet structure of foreign currencyémated assets and liabilities is representative f

the usual currency sensitivity of the Group for tbporting year.

Price risk
The Group companies are exposed to price riskvehitories based on three main factors:

() (a) a possible increase of purchase prices of ratenmls and consumables, since a significant
portion of the raw materials used are imported #rel represent a significant share of
production costs;

(b) a possible increase in supplier prices of goodsuding as a result of hyperinflation for the
subsidiaries in Belarus; and

(c) the growing competition on the Bulgarian pharmacalimarket is also reflected in drug prices.
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For the purpose of mitigating this influence, theanagement of the Group applies a strategy aimed at
optimisation of production costs, validation ofeaftative suppliers that offer beneficial commercial
conditions, expanding product range by means of gemeric products development and last but not
least, adoption of a flexible marketing and pric#iqy. Price policy is a function of three main tiars —

structure of expenses, prices of competitors anthpsing capacity of customers.

The Group is exposed to a significant price risloalith regard to the shares held thereby, cladgs#ds
available-for-sale investments, mostly through pheent company. For this purpose, the management
monitors and analyses all changes in security nsuded also uses consulting services of one of the
most authoritative in the country investments imediaries. In addition, at this stage, becauséef t
economic and financial crisis, the management &kent a decision for a significant reduction in its
operations on stock markets, retaining of the paseld shares for longer periods with current
monitoring of the reported by the respective isdusncial and business indicators as well as the

development of the operations in the environmenmrisfs.

The sensitivity analysis of the Group of the staichange prices of the shares in which it has

invested is based on the state and structure aithiéable-for-sale investments as at 31 December.

The effect of 25% increase in prices would resultricrease directly in other components of the
statement of comprehensive income and respectiuelgquity (available-for-sale financial assets
reserve) of the Group, by BGN 4,993 thousand (2&IBN 4,709 thousand). On 25% decrease, the
ultimate effect on other components in the statenoéncomprehensive income and respectively,

Group’s equity, would be equal and reciprocal sstated above.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that any of the Group’sedlis will fail to discharge in full and within the
normally envisaged terms the amounts due undee tradeivables. The latter are presented in the
statement of financial position at net value afteducting the impairment related to doubtful and ba
debts. Such impairment is made where and when &veave existed identifying loss due to

uncollectability as per previous experience.

In the years of its trade experience, the Groupimmgéemented different schemes of distribution to
reach its efficient approach of today, in confogmitith the market conditions, using various ways of
payment as well as relevant trade discounts. Tloeigsworks on its main markets with counterparts
with history of their relations on main markets,igthinclude a big number of licensed Bulgarian and

foreign traders of pharmaceuticals.

The cooperation with the National Health InsuraRoad (until June 2011) and the state hospitals also

require the implementation of deferred paymentscpollhere is a concentration of significant credit
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risk in this type of counterparts that form 40%3vbup’s trade receivables (31 December 2010: 21t%50).

is mitigated through implemented procedures foectein and current monitoring of the liquidity and
financial stability of these trade partneGn delay in payments of the receivables from these
counterparts, the Group has set a period of 30 dégs which it starts activities for collection of
receivables. With regard to hospitals, in case®O8ys of delay after the date on which the credit
period expires, interest for delay is being charged if delays persist after further 30 days, atmge
with the management is arranged for the purposigoing rescheduling agreement. If the agreement
is not complied with, legal proceedings are inithtWith regard to clients — pharmacies, on a 5-day
delay after the expiry of the credit period, théesainder deferred payment terms are suspended. If
delinquencies continue, on the™4day all sales are ceased and negotiations arefdretdncluding an

agreement. If the agreement is not complied withal proceedings are initiated.

Deferred payments (credit sales) to other counttxf@aie offered only to clients having long account

of business relations with the Group, good finalnissition and no history of credit terms violatson

The credit policy of the Group envisages that everw client shall be investigated with regard $o it
creditworthiness prior to being offered the staddegerms of supply and payment. The analysis,
performed by the Group, includes but is not limitedisit to clients premises, collection of infation

on monthly turnovers and in some cased a promigsatey is required in favour of the Group company
for 130% - 135% of the credit granted. These liraits reviewed on a monthly basis. The clients that

cannot cover the creditworthiness criteria mayqgrenfpurchases in cash.

Collectability of receivables is controlled dirgcthy the Executive Director, the Finance and Trade
Director of the parent company and, respectively,tlie management of the subsidiaries. Their
responsibility is to provide operating control ardulate receivables in conformity with the actualket

situation and the needs of the Group.

The Group has developed policy and proceduressesaghe creditworthiness of its counterparts and t

assign credit rating and credit limits by groupsl@hnts.

The financial resources of the Group as well asétigement operations are concentrated in diffeimst
class banks. To distribute cash flows among théwm, mhanagement of the parent company and the
subsidiaries take into consideration a great defalctors, as the amount of capital, reliabilitguidity, the

credit potential and rating of the bank etc.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the adverse situation when thee@®v encounters difficulty in meeting unconditiogall

its obligations within their maturity, including t&use of the existence of hyperinflation and the

indexation of the trade accounts of the comparpesating in such environment.
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The Group generates and maintains a significantrwelof liquid funds. An internal source of liquid
funds for the Group is its main economic activifyits companies generating sufficient operational
flows. Banks and other permanent counterparts septeexternal sources of funding. Group’s
liquidity could be significantly affected by USD @ange rate fluctuations with regard to our US
dollar positions on the Russian market and margetuhics, if this rate deviates from our forecasts.
Existing net items in Belarusian Roubles (BYR) ahe hyperinflation in this market in 2011
represented another significant source of risk. iSaate any possible liquidity risk, the Group
implements a system of alternative mechanismstsfatd prognoses, the final aim being to maintain
good liquidity and, respectively, ability to finandts economic activities. This is supplemented by
current monitoring of the maturities of assets haldilities, control over cash outflows and ensgrin
their current balancing with inflows, including esgotiation of maturities and optimisation of debt

structure, increase and internal restructuringetifgenerated funds and their investment.

Maturity analysis

The table below presents the financial non-denrgatissets and liabilities of the Group, classifigd

remaining term to maturity, determined againstabetractual maturity at the consolidated financial
statements date. The table is prepared on the diasraliscounted cash flows and the earliest date o
which the receivable and respectively, the pay&leleome due for payment. The amounts include

principal and interest.

31 December 2011 no maturity uptol fromltc from3tc from6tc fromltc from2to over £ Total
month 3 months 6 months 12 months 2 years 5 years years
BGN '00C BGN '00C BGN '00C BGN '00C BGN '00C BGN '00C BGN '00C BGN '00C BGN '00C

Available-for-sale
financial assets
Loans and
receivables

- - - - - 17,102 2,870 - 19,972

- 92,900 48,346 29,008 71,862 3,977 2,464 671 249,228

including:
Receivables and
loans

Cash and cash
equivalents

- 62,264 46,740 29,008 71,862 3,977 2,464 671 216,986

- 30,63¢ 1,606 - - - - - 32,242

Total assets - 92900 48346 29,008 71,862 21,079 5334 671 269,200

Short-term and

long-term bank - 74,365 1,226 48,506 74,805 2,772 5199 21,394 228,267
loans
ggﬁi{ifg&“s and - 28959 22672 14,188 2,895 583 1,275 108 70,680

Total liabilities - 103,324 23,898 62,694 77,700 3,355 6,474 21,502 298,947
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31 December 2010 no maturity uptol fromltc from3to€ from6tc fromltc from2to over £ Total
month 3 months months 12 months 2 years 5 years years
BGN'000 BGN'00C BGN'000 BGN'00C BGN'00C BGN'00C BGN'000 BGN'00C BGN '000

Available-for-sale

financial assets 2,067 - - - - 18,771 89 - 20,927
Loans and receivables - 122,996 56,498 9,100 54,422 4,791 115 - 247,922
including:

EZE?Vab'es and . 79173 55252 9,100 54422 4,791 115 - 202,853
Cash and cash

equivalents - 43.823 1,246 - - - - - 45,069
Total assets 2,067 122,996 56,498 9,100 54,422 23,562 204 - 268,849
Short-term and ong- - 47673 8069 15260 88,133 40,382 3,306 - 202,832
tern bank loans

Other loans and

liabilities - 23,178 28,986 8,860 1,732 460 83 108 63,407
Total liabilities - 70,851 37,055 24,129 89,865 40,842 3,389 108 266,239

Risk of interest-bearing cash flows

Interest-bearing assets are presented in thewstuot Group’s assets by cash, bank deposits ams lo
granted, which are with fixed interest rate. Ondtieer hand, Group’s borrowings in the form of ldagnm
and short-term loans are usually with a floatirigriest rate. This circumstance makes the cash Bbtie
Group partially dependent on interest risk. Tk i$ covered in two ways:

(a) optimisation of resources and structure of cresiburces for achieving relatively lower price of
attracted funds; and

(b) combined structure of interest rates on loans cisimgrtwo components — a permanent one and a
variable one, the correlation between them, as agetheir absolute value, can be achieved and
maintained in a proportion favourable for the Groompanies. The permanent component has a
relatively low absolute value and sufficiently highlative share in the total interest rate. This
circumstance eliminates the probability of a sigaift change in interest rate levels in case of
variable component updating. Thus the probabibtyan unfavourable change of cash flows is
reduced to a minimum.

The management of the Group companies togetherthdthof the parent company currently monitor and
analyse the exposure of the respective companget@hianges in interest levels. Various scenaries ar
simulated taking into consideration refinancingiengal of existing positions, and alternative finagc
Based on these scenarios, the impact of a defirteckst rate shift, expressed in points or pergentan
the financial result and equity is calculated. €ach simulation, the same assumption for inteagstshift

is used for all major currencies. The calculat@argsmade for major interest-bearing positions.
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Interest analysis interest-free  with floating with fixed Total
31 December 2011 interest % interest %

BGN '00C BGN '00C BGN '00C BGN '00C
Available-for-sale financial assets 19,97: - - 19,97:
Loans and receivables, including: 148,53¢ 12,98: 83,18( 244.70:
Receivables and loans 142,30¢ - 70,155 212,46t
Cash and cash equivalents 6,23( 12,98 13,02 32,23t
Total financial assets 168,51: 12,98 83,18( 264,67:
Short-term and long-term bank loans 41¢ 217,27¢ - 217,69!
Other loans and liabilities 68,05¢ 2,121 38 70,21¢
Total financial liabilities 68,47¢ 219,39° 38 287,90¢
Interest analysis interest-free  with floating with fixed Total
31 December 2010 interest % interest %

BGN '00C BGN '00C BGN '00C BGN '00C
Available-for-sale financial assets 20,927 - - 20,927
Loans and receivables, including: 148,991 40,495 53,459 242,945
Receivables and loans 147,961 - 49,915 197,876
Cash and cash equivalents 1,030 40,495 3,544 45,069
Total financial assets 169,918 40,495 53,459 263,872
Short-term and long-term bank loans 499 195,798 145 196,442
Other loans and liabilities 62,434 651 - 63,085
Total financial liabilities 62,933 196,449 145 259,527

The table below demonstrates the Group’s sengitigitpossible changes in interest rates by 50 point
based on the structure of assets and liabilitieg 8% December and with the assumption that thesirtce

of all other variables is ignored. The effect isasswred and presented as impact on the financidt edter
taxes and respectively, on equity.
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Impact on post-tax

Increase / decrease in financial result — Impact on equity -

2011 interest rate profit/(loss) increase/(decrease)
EUR Increase (949) (949)

uUsD Increase (26) (26)

BGN Increase 46 46

EUR decrease 949 949

uUsD decrease 26 26

BGN decrease (46) (46)

Impact on post-tax

Increase / decrease in financial result — Impact on equity -
2010 interest rate profit/(loss) increase/(decrease)
EUR Increase (772) (772)
UsD Increase 27) (27)
BGN Increase (85) (85)
EUR decrease 772 772
UsD decrease 27 27
BGN decrease 85 85

Capital risk management

The capital management objectives of the Groupt@teuild and maintain capabilities to continue its
operation as a going concern and to provide rebamrrihe investments of shareholders and economic
benefits to other stakeholders and participantésitousiness as well as to maintain an optimaltaapi
structure to reduce the cost of capital. AnalogmuEoach is applied also at the level of a sep&aiap
company with regard to its capital structure andrting.

The Group currently monitors capital availabilitydastructure on the basis of the gearing ratios Téio

is calculated as net debt divided by total capitabunt. Net debt is calculated as total borrow{ngsrent

and non-current ones) as presented in the baldest ss cash and cash equivalents. Total employed
capital is calculated as the sum of equity andiebt.

It is a characteristic feature for both presentedods that the Group finances its operations tiotiugh

its own generated profit and by maintaining a detievel of trade and other current payables aaddo
(bank, commercial ones). In 2011, the strategyhefdarent company management was to maintain the
ratio within 35 - 40 % at Group level (2010: 30%%. The table below shows the gearing ratios based
capital structure as at 31 December:
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2011 2010

BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000

Total borrowings, including: 219,840 197,122
Bank loans 217,695 196,442
Loans and finance lease liabilities 2,145 680
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (32,235) (45,069)
Net debt 187,605 152,053
Total equity of the Group 319,999 298,232
Total capital of the Group 507,604 450,285
Gearing ratio 0.37 0.34

The liabilities shown in the table are disclosedlaies 28, 31, 33 and 38.

Fair values

Fair value is generally the amount for which aretssuld be exchanged, or a liability settled iraem's
length transaction between independent, wiling &ndwledgeable parties. The Group’s policy is to
disclose in its financial statements mostly the Yailue of these assets and liabilities for whichrkat
quotations are available.

The fair value of financial instruments, which a@ traded on active markets, is determined through
other valuation methods based on various valuaéohniques and management assumptions made in
accordance with the market circumstances as artief the reporting period.

The fair value concept presumes realisation ofitf@cial instruments through sales. However, irstmo
cases especially in regard of trade receivablegpapdbles as well as loans and deposits with baémiks,
Group expects to realise these financial assetstlateugh their total refund or respectively, settbnt
over time. Therefore, they are presented at thaartised cost.

In addition, a large part of the financial assetd Babilities are either short-term in their natutrade
receivables and payables, short-term loans) qorasented in the statement of financial positiomatket
value (deposits placed with banks, investmenteaurities) and therefore, their fair value is altrexgual
to their carrying amount. Part of the investmentether companies as non-controlling interestsessmt
an exception to this rule, since neither marketofipective conditions exist so that their fair vatould be
reliably determined. Therefore, they are preseatedquisition cost (cost).

As far as no sufficient market experience, stgbditd liquidity exist in regards of purchases aaldssof
certain financial assets and liabilities, still adequate and reliable quotes of market prices\aitable
thereof.

The management of the parent company is of thdompihat the estimates of the financial assets and
liabilities presented in the statement of finangiakition are as reliable, adequate and trustwaathy
possible for financial reporting purposes undesetkisting circumstances.
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42. ACQUISITIONS AND INCREASES OF INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES

42.1. Acquisition of subsidiaries

In 2011, the Group acquired the following subsiéisir

date of % interest acquired net

acquisition assets at fair

value

BGN ‘000

Tabina, Belarus 08.04.2011 50.49% 697
Interpharm, Belarus 17.12.2011 49.27% 1,233

The principal activities of the acquired subsidiarare disclosed in Note 1.

Tabina OOO, Belarus, and ZAO Interpharm, Belariergvacquired through the purchase of respectively
99% and 96.61% interest by the subsidiary Briz Oxdyia.

The acquisition of these subsidiaries in Belarustended for a future expansion of Group's maskete
in Belarus and the region.

In 2011, the Group acquired through its subsidgry OOD, Latvia, also the company Superlats, legtvi
with the purpose to sell it within 12 months (N2t#9).

In 2010, the Group acquired the following subsid&r

date of % interest acquired net
acquisition assets at fair
value
BGN ‘000

Unipharm AD, Bulgaria 27.10.2010 49.87% 14,543
Sopharma Warsaw EOOD, Poland 23.11.2010 100% -
Sopharma Logistica AD 04.09.2010 83.76% 5,010

Unipharm AD was acquired by purchase of capitalreshahrough the Bulgarian Stock Exchange.
Sopharma Warsaw was established by the parent oympa

The purpose of the acquisition of Unipharm AD ifure merger of the company into Sopharma AD
while that of Sopharma Warsaw — optimisation of ghfes of goods to the Polish market through 100%
owned company.

Additionally, SOPHARMA AD acquired also Sopharmagistica AD through the merger of the latter into
its subsidiary. On 13 January 2010, by virtue ofemger contract (and Annex thereto dated 3 Mard@R0

concluded between Sopharma Logistica AD and Somhdrmading AD, the latter was transformed
through a merge-in of Sopharma Logistica AD (AG2& of the Commercial Act). As a result of the

" through a merger in Sopharma Trading AD
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transformation, the total assets of Sopharma Liogi®tD was transferred to Sopharma Trading AD and
Sopharma Logistica AD was wound-up without liquiolat As a result of the merger all shareholders of
Sopharma Logistica AD acquired shares in the dagit8opharma Trading by obtaining at nominal value
0.5313 shares of Sopharma Trading AD against eddhedr own shares. As a result of the above
circumstances, the parent company acquired thramgkxchange additional 849,144 shares from the
capital of Sopharma Trading AD. The purpose of ttassformation of both companies was to lead to
optimisation and expanding the distribution anddibgactivities of the acquirer as well as impnoant of

the quality of service in the area of pre-distitnutand competitiveness.

The carrying amounts and fair values of the neetassn acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 2.3) are
presented below:

In 2011
Tabina Interpharm Total

carryin
carrying carrying fair g
fair value amount fair value amount  value amount

08.04.20108.04.20 17.12.201 17.12.20

1 11 1 11
BGN'000 BGN'O0O BGN'000 BGN'0O0 BGN'00 BGN'0O
0 0 0 00
Property, plant and equipment (Note 16) 84 84 55 64 139 148
Intangible assets (Note 17) 660 . 831 . 1.491 .
Other non-current assets 432 432 2 2 434 434
Inventories 671 671 788 788 1,459 1,459
Trade receivables 2 2 3 3 5 5
Other current receivables 41 41 10 10 51 51
Cash and cash equivalents 30 30 45 45 75 75
Deferred tax liabilities (158) _ (200) _ (358) _
Trade payables (1,027) (1,027) (211)  (211) (1,238) (1,238)
Payables to related parties ; ; (10) (10) (10) (10)
Payables to personnel and for social security (34) (34) (69) (69) (103) (103)
Net assets 697 195 1,233 611 1,930 806

Non-controlling interest /%/ 49.51% 49.51% 50.73% 50.73%
Share of non-controlling interest /BGN’000/ 345 97 626 310 971 407
Acquired net assets from the Group 352 98 607 301 959 399
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In 2010
Unipharm AD Sopharma Total
Logistica through
Sopharma
Trading AD
carrying carrying carrying
fair value amount fair value amount fair value amount
27.10.2010 27.10.2010 4.09.2010 4.09.2010
BGN'000 BGN'000  BGN'000 BGN'000  BGN'000 BGN'000
Property, plant and equipment (Note 16) 18,927 9,815 5,064 318 23,991 10,133
Intangible assets (Note 17) 5,528 658 , - 5,528 658
Investment property - - - 4,762 - 4,762
Investments in associates 24 879 - - 24 879
Available-for-sale investments 1,595 1,611 1,677 1,677 3,272 3,288
Deferred tax assets - 38 - 2 - 40
Inventories 2,302 2,302 - - 2,302 2,302
Receivables from related parties 3,416 3,416 40 40 3,456 3,456
Trade receivables 1,366 1,366 - - 1,366 1,366
Other current receivables 292 292 11 9 303 301
Cash and cash equivalents 1,032 1,032 132 147 1,164 1,179
Deferred tax liabilities (1,309) - - - (1,309) -
Lease liabilities (34) (34) - - (34) (34)
Long-term bank loans (1,074) (1,074) - - (1,074) (1,074)
Retirement benefit obligations (Note 30)
(238) (238) - - (238) (238)
Other non-current liabilities (865) (865) - - (865) (865)
Trade payables (415)  (415) (28)  (28) (443)  (443)
Payables to related parties (208) (208) - (208) (208)
Liabilities under sold rights from shares issue - - (887) (887) (887) (887)
Payables to personnel and for social security (577)(577) 3) 3) (580) (580)
Other current liabilities (602) (601) (24) (24) (626) (625)
Net assets 29,160 17,397 5,982 6,013 35,142 23,410
Non-controlling interest /%/ 50.13% 50.13%  16.24% 16.24%
Share of non-controlling interest /BGN’000/ 14,61¢ 8,721 972 977 15,59( 9,69¢
Acquired net assets from the Group 14,54 8,67¢ 5,01C 5,03¢ 19,552 13,71

Sopharma Warsaw EOOD was established by Sopharmandhe subscribed capital has not been paid-
in yet as far as the term for payment has not eat@iccording to the Polish legislation.

The investment price on the acquisition of subseBaand the resulting goodwill at the date of the
transaction for acquisition of control by the pampany itself were as follows:
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In 2011

Tabina Interpharm Total
BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000
Acquisition cost (cost)
Amounts paid in current period 4,607 3,142 7,749
Share of the non-controlling interest in the
investment on indirect acquisition (2,257) (1,539) (3,796)
Measurement to fair value of previous interesthsy t
date of acquisition of control - (406) (406)
Total acquisition cost 2,350 1,197 3,547
Fair value of the acquired net assets 352 607 959
Goodwill 1,998 590 2,588
The cash outflows from acquisition of control waeefollows:
Cash flows on acquisition of control Tabina Interpharm Total
BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000
Payment with cash 4,607 3,142 7,749
Cash and cash equivalents in the acquired companies (30) (45) (75)
Cash outflow on acquisition of control 4,577 3,097 7,674
In 2010
Unipharm AD Sopharma Logistice Total
AD through
Sopharma Trading
AD
BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000
Acquisition cost (cost)
Amounts paid in current period 17,692 27 17,719
Amounts paid in prior periods 1,607 1,825 3,432
Measurement at fair value of previous interesthey t
date of acquisition of control 490 (680) (190)
Exchange of additional capital issue of the subasjdi .
on the merger operation 2,657 2,657
Indirectly acquired investment in a subsidiary 6 - 6
Total acquisition cost 19,79t 3,82¢ 23,62¢
Fair value of the acquired net assets 14,54 5,01( 19,552
Goodwill/(gain from a bargain purchase) 5,252 (1,181) 4,072

Sopharma Warsaw EOOD was established by Sopharman8iDherefore, no goodwill or gain from a

bargain purchase had been recognised.
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The cash outflows/(inflows) from acquisition of txhwere as follows:

Cash flows on acquisition of control Sopharma

Unipharm Logistica
through Total

AD

Sopharma

Trading AD
BGN ‘000 BGN'000 BGN'000
Payment with cash (17,692) (27) (17,719)

Cash and cash equivalents in the

acquired companies 1,032 132 1,164
Cash outflow on acquisition of control (16,660) (105) (16,555)

The capital of Sopharma Warsaw EOOD was paid-20iil.

42.2. Increase in interests (purchases of non-caiing interest)

The Group performed the following transactions fiarchase of additional shares of non-controlling
interest:

In 2011
Increase in interests transaction % change in acquired net
(purchases of non-controlling interest) date interest assets
BGN ‘000
Unipharm AD 31.12.2011 2.04% 591
Bulgarian Rose AD 31.12.2011 0.95% 219
Momina Krepost AD 31.12.2011 1.80% 89
Sopharma Buildings REIT 31.12.2011 0.05% 26
925
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The acquisition cost of the purchased additionateshin 2011, the effects and the cash outflovatjimg
to these transactions, were as follows:

Increase in interests (purchases Unipharm Bulgarian Momina Sopharma Total
of non-controlling interest) AD Rose AD Krepost AD  Buildings
REIT
Bulgaria Bulgaria Bulgaria Bulgaria
BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'O00 BGN'000
Acquisition cost (cost)
Payment with cash (870) (249) (112) (35) (1,266)
Total acquisition cost (870) (249) (112) (35) (1,266)
Fair value of the acquired net
assets 591 21¢ 89 26 92E

Effects assumed by the Group at

the account of Group’s reserve

‘accumulated profits’ (279) (30) (23) (9) (341)
Cash outflow on increase in

interests (purchases of non-

controlling interests) (870) (249) (112) (35) (1,266)
In 2010
Increase in interests (purchases of non- transaction % acquired net
controlling interest) date change in assets
interest

BGN ‘000
Bulgarian Rose Sevtopolis AD, Bulgaria 04.09.2010 1.79% 339
Momina Krepost AD, Bulgaria 04.09.2010 0.44% 22
Sopharma Buildings REIT, Bulgaria 31.12.2010 0.13% 2
Unipharm AD 31.12.2010 0.14% 40
403

The acquisition cost of the purchased additionateshin 2010, the effects and the cash outflovagjig
to these transactions, were as follows:
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Increase in interests (purchases
of non-controlling interest)

Acquisition cost (cost)
Payment with cash

Paid by issue of shares in a
subsidiary

Total acquisition cost

Fair value of the acquired net
assets

Effects assumed by the Group at
the account of Group’s reserve
‘accumulated profits’

Cash outflow on increase in
interest (purchases of non-
controlling interests)

Unipharm Bulgarian Momina Sopharma Total
AD Rose Krepost AD  Buildings
Sevtopolis AD REIT
Bulgaria Bulgaria Bulgaria Bulgaria
BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'0O00 BGN'000 BGN'000
45 - - 3 48
5 426 14 - 445
50 426 14 3 493
(40) (340) (22) (2) (403)
10 81 (8) 1 84
(45) - - 3 (48)

43. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND DECREASING THE INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES

43.1. Total disposal of subsidiaries
In 2011 and 2010, the Group did not dispose totdilgny subsidiary.

43.2 Decreasing interests (sales of non-controllimjerests)

In 2011

The decrease (partial disposals of) in interestrést) in subsidiaries without loss of control, ¢ffects and

cash flows, relating to the transactions, werebsis:

Decrease in interests (sales of non- transaction

controlling interest)

Bulgarian Rose AD
Momina Krepost AD
Sopharma Trading AD

date

31.12.2011
31.12.2011
31.12.2011

% change in
interest

-0.79%
-0.79%
-1.16%

acquired net
assets

BGN ‘000
(43)
(39)
(662)

(744)
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Decrease in interests (sales of non- Bulgarian Momina Sopharma Total
controlling interest) Rose AD Krepost AD Trading AD
Bulgaria Bulgaria Bulgaria
BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'0O00 BGN'000
Proceeds from partial disposal of 56 46 688 790
subsidiaries
Carrying amount of the net assets at the date (43) (39) (662) (744

of partial disposal of subsidiaries

Effects assumed by non-controlling interests
at the account of Group’s reserve 13 7 26 46
‘accumulated profits’

Net cash inflow on partial disposal of 56 46 688 790
subsidiaries

In 2010

The decrease (partial disposals of) in interestrést) in subsidiaries without loss of control, effects and
cash flows, relating to the transactions, werebsis:

Sold interest % Sopharma Trading
AD
BGN ‘000
Proceeds from partial disposal of subsidiaries 1,681
Carrying amount of the net assets at the date of
partial disposal of subsidiaries 9.06% (1,991)
Effects assumed by non-controlling interests at
the account of Group’s reserve ‘accumulated
profits’ (310)
Sopharma Trading
AD
BGN ‘000
Net cash inflow on partial disposal of subsidiaries 1,681
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44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related partie

Telecomplect AD*(formal holder of the shares as per
the Registry at the Central Depository (CD) urhté entry of
Telecomplect Invest AD in the CD Registry)

Telecomplect AD
Donev Investments AD
Sopharma Logistica AD

Unipharm AD

Pharmachim Holding EAD

NIHFI AD

Kaliman RT AD

Seiba Pharmacies and Drugstores AD
Mineralcommerce AD

SCS Franchise AD / Sanita Franchising AD/
Sopharma Properties REIT

Sofia Inform AD

Sofprint Group AD

Sofconsult Group AD

Elpharma AD

Telso AD
Media Group Bulgaria Holding

DOH Group

Relation type
Main shareholding company

Main shareholding company
Main shareholding company

Associate

Company under a common indirect control
Company under a common indirect control
Company under a common indirect control
Company under a common indirect control
Company under a common indirect control
Company under a common indirect control
Company under a common indirect control
Company under a common indirect control
Company under a common indirect control
Company under a common indirect control
Company under a common indirect control
Company under a common indirect control
Company under a common indirect control

Company under a common indirect control
through key managing personnel

Companies under a joint indirect control
through key managing personnel

Company under a common control through
key managing personnel

Relation period
2011

2010

2010 and 2011

until 03.09.2010

from 04.09.2010 and 20
until 26.10.2010

2010 and 2011

2010 and until 05.08.2011
2010 and 2011

2010 and 2011

2010 and 2011

until 03.05.2010

2010 and 2011

2010 and 2011

2010 and 2011

2010 and 2011

2010 and 2011

2010 and 2011
from 09.04.201

2010 and 2011

* According to the plan for transformation of Teleqdett AD under the procedure of the

Commercial Act (Art. 262a, para 2) through spifinf establishing a new company - Telecomplect
Invest AD (entered in the Commercial Register under 164905 of 29 July 2011), the title on

26,948,052 shares of the capital of Sopharma AfEarssferred to the newly established company.

At the date of issue of these consolidated annnah€ial statements, the transfer of the shares to
Telecomplect Invest AD has not been registeredny€entral Depository AD.

For the purpose of disclosing the deals, transastand balances with related parties, the Group has
accepted the rule of giving priority to the fornhkadgjal criteria for ownership and disposal of shares
held by a particular person, regardless of the @rinsubstance and the intents of the partiesthior
reason, the transactions and balances with TeldeotfD for the whole year 2011 are presented as
type of relationship "main shareholding company".

In 2011, Sopharma Group did not perform deals Wilecomplect Invest AD and had no outstanding
balances therewith as at 31 December 2011.
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SOPHARMA GROUP

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

Supplies from related parties:

Supply of inventories from:
Companies under a common indirect control
Main shareholding companies

Companies under a common control through key magagi
personnel

Supply of services from:

Main shareholding companies

Companies under a common control through key magagi
personnel

Companies under a common indirect control

Associates

Supply of tangible fixed assets from:
Main shareholding companies
Companies under a common indirect control

Supplies for acquisition of non-current assets:
Main shareholding companies
Companies under a common indirect control

Sales to related parties

Sales of inventories to:
Companies under a common indirect control

Main shareholding companies
Companies under a common indirect control throughrkanaging
personnel

Sales of services to:
Companies under a common indirect control
Main shareholding companies

Other sales to:
Companies under a common indirect control
Main shareholding companies

2011 2010
BGN ‘000  BGN ‘000
10,75 18,42¢
243 227
23 23
11,02( 18,67
2,79€ 2,79
47C 45C
367 7,291
- 24z
3,63: 10,77¢
56 295
- 5
56 30C
16,54¢ 5,85¢
488 -
17,03 5,85¢
31,74¢ 35,60
2011 2010
BGN‘000  BGN ‘000
8,340 10,815
56 28
5 -
8,401 10,843
169 514
51 64
220 578
9 171
5 8
14 179
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SOPHARMA GROUP
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

Interest on loans granted:

Main shareholding companies 2,567 762

Companies under a common indirect control through 1,356 861
key managing personnel

Companies under a common indirect control 612 887

4,535 2,510

13,170 14,110

The terms and conditions of these transactionsada@viate significantly from the market ones for
similar transactions.

The accounts and balances with related partiegiseiosed in Notes 19, 23 and 34.

The composition of key management personnel of Gneup includes the disclosed in Note 1
Executive Director and the members of the BoarBioéctors of the parent company. Additionally, it

includes the Executive Directors, the members @rBse of Directors and the General Managers of the
subsidiaries in the Group.

Salaries and other short-term benefits of key miagagersonnel amount to BGN 3,637 thousand
(2010: BGN 2,218 thousand), including:

* current wages and salaries — BGN 3,231 thous20#iQ; BGN 2,218 thousand);
* tantieme — BGN 406 thousand (2010: none).
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45. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 31 January 2012, the subsidiary company Briz GQIatvia acquired 18 % of the capital of OOO
Vivaton Plus in Belarus. The prospects are thatrémeaining 57 % shall be acquired in line with a
concluded contract in the period 2012 — 2013.

On 15 February 2012, the Group through its subrgidieiz OOD — Latvia sold its interest in the sutsry
OOO Superlats in Belarus.

On 10 April 2012, the Board of Directors of thegy@rcompany took a decision to sell all of its eban
the subsidiary ZAO Rostbalkanpharm in Russia.

On 8 May 2012, the Board of Directors of the pammnpany took a decision to establish a company
Sopharma Ukraine OOD with a seat in the Ukrainiapital Kiev and share capital of UAH 1 million
(about BGN 200 thousand).

On 18 April 2012, Notifications for the revealing shareholding interests under Art. 145 of the eubl
Offering of Securities Act were lodged by Gramesgject Master Fund, Georgetown, USA for the sale of
6.51% of the capital to Sopharma AD and by Gramé&merging Markets Fund, Georgetown, USA for
the sale of 6.05% of the capital to Sopharma AD relwe both funds closed their positions in the
Company. The transactions were registered in tidr&depository on 9 April 2012.

At a session, held on 2 May 2012, the Board of diims of the parent company took a decision for
summoning of the General Meeting of Shareholders®dune 2012 with an agenda including a proposal
to the shareholders for taking the following dexist &/ for the distribution of the profit of Sopima AD

for 2011 /BGN 40,791 thousand/ for dividends todh®unt of BGN 6,450 thousand after the mandatory
transfer of 10% to the Reserve fund, and the reteain in the other reserves of the Company; biHer
payment of additional remuneration to the Execulector at the amount of 1% of parent company's
profit generated in 2011 as well as a proposaldfstribution of 2% of the profit for 2011, upon the
discretion of the Executive Director, among the rnera of the upper management staff of the parent
company (according to the Articles of Associatibithe parent company the decision for the paymént o
such remuneration is only within the powers of@@neral Meeting of Shareholders).
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